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VI A M CROSOFT TEAMS; WVEDNESDAY, JUNE 21, 2023
1:30 P.M

--000- -

CHAIR DREW Good afternoon. This is
Kat hl een Drew, Chair of the Energy Facility Site
Eval uati on Council, calling our June neeting to order.
Ms. Gantham w Il you call the role.
M5. GRANTHAM  Certainly, Chair Drew.
Depart ment of Conmmerce?
M5. KELLY: Kate Kelly present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Departnent of Ecol ogy?
Departnent of Fish and WIldlife?
MR LEVITT: Sorry. Ecology, Eli Levitt
present .
M5. GRANTHAM  Thank you.
Back to, Departnent of Fish and WIldlife?
Departnent of Natural Resources?
MR. YOUNG Lenny Young present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Utilities and
Transportati on Conm ssion?
MS. BREWSTER  Stacey Brewster present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Local governnent and

optional state agencies. For the Horse Heaven Project,

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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for the Departnent of Agriculture?
MR. SANDI SON: Derek Sandi son present.
M5, GRANTHAM  For Benton County?
MR. SHARP: Dave Sharp present.
M5. GRANTHAM This is for Horse Heaven,
Bent on County, Ed Brost; although, |I don't see him
MR SHARP: Ch. | amsorry. | got to
wai t .
M5. GRANTHAM  No problem
For Badger Mbuntain, Douglas County?
M5. GULIO Jordyn Guilio present.
M5. GRANTHAM  For the Wautoma Sol ar
Project, for Benton County, M. Sharp?
MR. SHARP: Present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Thank you.
Washi ngton State Departnent of Transportation?
For the Hop Hill Solar Project, for Benton
County, Paul Krupin?
For the Carriger Solar Project, for Klickitat
County, Matt Chiles?
MR, CH LES: WMatt Chil es present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Thank you.
For the Assistant Attorney Generals, Jon
Thonpson?
Jenna Sl ocun?
253.627.6401 B:AL.T.GAT.ON S schedule@balitigation.com
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M5. SLOCUM Jenna Sl ocum present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Adm ni strative Law Judges,
Adam Tor enf
JUDGE TOREM  Present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Laura Bradl ey?
Dan Cerard?
JUDGE GERARD: Present.
M5. GRANTHAM M cah Larri pa?
JUDGE LARRI PA:  Present.
MS. GRANTHAM  For EFSEC Council Staff,
Soni a Bunpus?
MS. BUWPUS: Present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Am Haf keneyer ?
MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Any Mbon?
MS. MOON. Any Moon present.
M5. GRANTHAM St ew Hender son?
MR. HENDERSON: St ew Hender son present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Joan Oaens?
M5. OVNENS: Present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Dave \al ker?
MR WALKER: Present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Sonj a Skavl and?
MS. SKAVLAND: Present.
M5. GRANTHAM Li sa Masengal e?
253.627.6401 B:AL.T.GAT.ON S schedule@balitigation.com
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Sara Randol ph?

RANDOLPH:  Present.
GCRANTHAM  Sean G eene?
GREENE: Present.
CGRANTHAM  Lance Caputo?
CAPUTO  Present.
GRANTHAM  John Bar nes?
BARNES: Present.
GRANTHAM  Osta Davi s?

52 H DD DD D

Joanne Snar ski ?

MS. SNARSKI : Present.

M5. GRANTHAM Al ex Shiley?

MS. SHI LEY: Present.

M5. GRANTHAM  For the operational
updates, Kittitas Valley Wnd Power Project -- or,
"Project,"” excuse ne, Eric Melbardis?

MR. MELBARDI S: Present.

M5. GRANTHAM  For the WIld Horse Wnd
Power Project?

M5. RANDOLPH: This is Sara Randol ph.
wi |l be speaking for WIld Horse.

M5. GRANTHAM  For the Grays Harbor Energy
Center?

THE WTNESS: Again this is Sara Randol ph.
| wll be speaking for G ays Harbor.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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M5. GRANTHAM  Chehalis CGeneration
Facility?
MR SMTH This is Jereny Smth. | am
present .
M5. GRANTHAM  Thank you.

Col unbi a Generating Station?

M5. RAMOS: For Col unbia CGenerating
Station, this is Mary Ranps.
M5. GRANTHAM  Thank you.
Col unbi a Sol ar ?
Goose Prairie Sol ar?
MR BURTTSCHELL: Cody Burttschell
present.
M5. GRANTHAM  And do we have soneone for
the Counsel for the Environnent?
REYNEVEL Sarah Reyneveld
RANDOLRPH:  Yes. Sara—Randolph
present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Thank you.

Chair, there is a quorumfor the regular
council, Horse Heaven council, Badger Mountain council,
Waut oma Sol ar council, Hop H |l council, and Carriger
Sol ar council. Thank you.

CHAI R DREW Thank you.

You Council Menbers see the proposed agenda in

front of us. |Is there a notion to adopt the proposed
253.627.6401 B:AL.T.GAT.ON S schedule@balitigation.com
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agenda?

MR. YOUNG Lenny Young. So noved.
CHAI R DREW  Second?
MR, LEVITT: Eli Levitt. Second.
CHAI R DREW  Thank you.

Any di scussi on?

Al those in favor, say "aye."
MULTI PLE SPEAKERS: Aye.
CHAIR DREW  Qpposed?

Agenda i s adopt ed.

Moving on to the neeting mnutes. W have two
sets of neeting mnutes in front of us, one fromthe
May 16th Carriger Solar |and use hearing m nutes and one
fromthe May 17th nonthly neeting m nutes.

Bringing the May 16th Carriger Solar |and use
hearing mnutes in front of us. |Is there a notion to
approve the m nutes?

MR. CHILES: Matt Chiles. So noved.

CHAI R DREW  Second?

THE W TNESS: Stacey Brewster. Second.

M5. GRANTHAM  Chair Drew, really qui ck.
Apol ogies. | did not get the mnutes into the Council
packet sonehow, so | will be pulling themup briefly.

CHAIR DREW Ch, okay.

M5. GRANTHAM  Apol ogi es.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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CHAIR DREW | don't have -- no worries.
| have no corrections. | don't know if anyone el se
does.

Does anyone have corrections?

Hearing none, let's just take a vote on
approving the May 16th Carriger Solar |and use heari ng
m nutes. Al those in favor of approval, say "aye."

MULTI PLE SPEAKERS: Aye.

CHAIR DREW  Qpposed?

The notion carries.

Moving on to the May 17th nonthly neeting

mnutes. |s there a notion to approve the m nutes?

CHAI R DREW Thank you.
Second?
MS. BREWSTER St acey Brewster.
CHAI R DREW Thank you.
| only have one correction that | saw
There is feedback. \Woever is -- has their
m ke open, please turn that off. |[|'d appreciate it.
Thank you.
The only correction I found was on page 14,
line 15. The word "rider," r-i-d-e-r, should be

"witer," wr-i-t-e-r.

Are there any other corrections?

M5. KELLY: Kate Kelly. Move to approve.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES
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Hearing none, all those in favor of approving

the May 17th nonthly neeting m nutes as anended, pl ease

say "aye.
MJULTI PLE SPEAKERS: Aye.
CHAIR DREW  Qpposed?
Meeting m nutes are approved.
Movi ng on to our operational updates. Kittitas
Vall ey Wnd Project; Eric Ml bardis.
MR. MELBARDI S: Good afternoon, Chair
Drew, EFSEC Council, and Staff. This is Eric Mel bardis
with EDP Renewabl es for the Kittitas Valley Wnd Power
Project. | have nothing nonroutine to report.
CHAI R DREW Thank you.
WI!ld Horse Wnd Power Project; M. Randol ph.
M5. RANDOLPH. Good afternoon, Chair Drew,
Counci | Menbers, and Staff. For the record, this is
Sara Randol ph, Site Specialist for Wld Horse Facility.
The facility update is provided in your packet. There
are no nonroutine updates to report.
Are there any questions?
CHAI R DREW Thank you. Chehalis
Ceneration Facility; Jereny Smth.
MR. SM TH. Good afternoon, Chair Drew,
Council, and EFSEC Staff. | amJereny Smith, the

Mai nt enance Manager at the Chehalis Generation Facility.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES
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The only -- we only have one nonroutine thing. The
pl ant manager has recently resigned the position, and we
are proceeding forward with filling our position.
CHAIR DREW Thank you. Good luck with
t he search.
Moving on to Grays Harbor Energy Center;
Ms. Randol ph.
M5. RANDOLPH:  Chair Drew, Council
Menbers, and Staff, the facility update is provided in
your packet. There are no nonroutine itens to report.
Are there any questions?
CHAIR DREW Thank you.
Colunbia Solar. |Is M. Cushing there or are --
Ms. Randol ph?
It looks like there are no nonroutine itens to
report there, as well.
Movi ng on to Col unbia Generating Station;
Ms. Ranos.
M5. RAMOS: (Good afternoon, Chair Drew,
EFSEC Council, and Staff. For the record, this is Mary
Ranmbs with Energy Northwest. | do have with ne in the
room Marshall Schmtt and then al so Felicia Najera-Paxon
of Energy Northwest, as well.
For VNP 1 and 4, | do not have any nonroutine

itens to report. | do have one itemto report for

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES
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Col unbi a Generating Station.

For Col unbia Generating Station, on Tuesday,
June 13th, when Col unbia Generating Station was shut
down for our refueling and nmai nt enance outage, the
facility experienced an unintended | oss of no nore than
300 gallons of oil fromthe turbine oil heat exchanger
when a tube failed during routine maintenance. The oil,
which is | abeled Mbil DTE 732, is not hazardous,
according to the safety data sheet for the product. The
oil was lost at a site cooling system which consists of
six cooling towers, an intake structure in the river,
and a discharge pipe to the Colunbia River. The
di scharge, also terned a blowdown, is authorized by a
national pollutant discharge elimnation system permt
whi ch has been issued by EFSEC to Energy Nort hwest.

Once the failure was identified, the
circulating water systemwas i medi ately isol ated and
di scharge to the Colunbia River ceased. Energy
Nort hwest notified the U S. Coast Guard, Wshi ngton
St ate Energency Managenent Division, and EFSEC of the
potential discharge for the river on the day that it was
identified, which was June 13th. Washington State
Depart nent of Ecol ogy and Energy Northwest conducted
I ndependent visual observations of the Col unbia River

near the Col unbia Generating Station discharge outfall

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES
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on June 13th and confirmed no visible oil sheen observed
on the Colunbia River.

Energy Northwest inmmediately worked with
GrayMar Environnental Services, an approved and |icensed
envi ronnental services conpany, to renove oil fromthe
cooling water system G ayMar assessed the cooling
wat er system on the norning of June 14th to assess and
devel op a cleanup strategy. G ayMar began work to
renove oil fromthe cooling water system using absorbent
materials the norning of June 15th.

| apol ogi ze. There is a plant announcenent.

CHAIR DREW | amsorry, there is trouble
wi th the audio.

Go ahead.

M5. RAMOS: | apol ogi ze for that
interruption. There was a plant announcenent, and | had
to go on nute. So I wll continue.

So like | was saying, GayMar assessed the
cooling water systemon June 14th to assist in
devel oping a cleanup strategy. G ayMar began work to
renove oil fromthe cooling water system using absorbent
materials the norning of June 15t h.

This strategy for -- used for renoving oil has
been very effective. As of June 20th, approximtely 137

gal l ons of oil had been recovered, and this estimate is

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES
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based on the weight of oil-soaked absorbent materials.

As of today, no oil sheen is visible on the
circulating water system based on visual observation.
However, as a precautionary neasure, absorbent materials
to renove oil fromthe circulating water remain in place
and continue to be nonitored.

In addition, Energy Northwest worked with
Washi ngt on State Departnent of Ecol ogy, G ayMar, and
EFSEC to devel op and inplenent a pollution prevention
strategy for restoring bl owdowns; in other words,

di scharge of circulating cooling water to the Col unbi a
River. On June 20th, absorbent boons were strategically
pl aced downstream of the outfall, based on river flow
and conditions. Blowdown was restarted on June 20th at
approxi mately 10:51 a.m for about eight hours. During
t he di scharge period, G ayMar, Ecol ogy, and Energy

Nort hwest were on boats on the river near the outfall to
visually nmonitor for oil sheens. |In addition, drones
were used to support the river nonitoring. No visible
oil sheen was observed by boat or drone.

Energy Northwest has been providing frequent
updates to Ecol ogy and EFSEC on the status of the oil
recovery and during the planned restoration, a bl owdown
on June 20th. Communi cations wth Ecol ogy and EFSEC

continue to work -- continue as the work progresses.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES
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And | do want to add that Energy Northwest sincerely
appreci ates the col |l aborati on and ongoi ng comruni cati ons
wi t h EFSEC and Ecol ogy on this incident.
That's all | have to report.
CHAIR DREW Thank you for your update.
Are there questions from Council Menbers?

M5. BREWSTER: This is Stacey Brewster.
Just a quick question. | amwondering what will the
vari abl es be to determne that cleanup is conplete?

M5. RAMOS: Yes. This is Mary Ranopbs
again. So we are continuing conmunication on the
progress with EFSEC and Ecol ogy. | am happy to report
that as of today, there is no visible oil sheen on our
circulating water system

As far as duration of nonitoring in the river,
we are continuing those discussions with EFSEC and
Ecol ogy, and we have anot her neeting schedul ed at 4:00
p.m this afternoon.

Does that hel p answer your question?

M5. BREWSTER: Yes. Thank you.

M5. RAMOS: Ckay. Thank you.

CHAIR DREW O her questions from Counci |
Menber s?

MR YOUNG Chair Drew, this is Lenny

Young. | have a question.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

EFSEC 2023 Monthly Council Meetings

June, Remote - June 21, 2023 Page 17

CHAIR DREW Yes. Go ahead.

MR YOUNG | think you nentioned that 137
pounds of oil has been recovered so far fromthe
absorbent materials; is that correct?

M5. RAMOS: 137 gallons of oil, that

MR. YOUNG  Ckay.
M5. RAMOS: -- an estinate based on
yesterday, and it's based on the wei ght of the

oi | -soaked absorbent materials that we have gathered so

far.
MR. YOUNG  kay.
M5. RAMOS: Those absorbent materials
do -- are -- continue to be in place to recover as nuch

oil as possible fromour circulating water system

MR. YOUNG So roughly, alittle less than
hal f the oil has been recovered?

M5. RAMOS: That's correct. And | do want
to enphasize that the 300 gallons is a very conservative
maxi mum pot enti al rel ease.

MR. YOUNG Understood. Thank you.

M5. RAMOS: Thank you.

CHAIR DREW O her questions from Counci l
Menber s?

Wll, we will continue to | ook forward to

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES
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updates fromyou. Thank everybody for their response
during this effort, and appreciate your ability to give
us this conplete report today. Thank you.

Movi ng on to Goose Prairie Sol ar Project
update. M. Burttschell, welcone. | don't know that we
have heard from you before.

MR, BURTTSCHELL: Hi. No, this is ny
first neeting, so apologies if this isn't how it
normal |y goes, but. Should | just go ahead and read off
of the tick list or update forn? | nean --

CHAIR DREW  Just provide us -- just --
and you're just undergoing construction, so just give us
an overview of what's happeni ng and what you expect is
next, and you can keep it short.

MR, BURTTSCHELL: |[I'Ill be short, yes.

CHAIR DREW And answer questions if there
are any.

MR. BURTTSCHELL: Got it. Yes.

So really, the project is in a soft
mobi | i zati on phase right now wth the full nobilization
| ooking to be happening either the end of next week or
the beginning of July. So at this tine next nonth, the
update will be a little bit nore substantial. But at
this point, it's just nobilization at the nonent with

construction starting probably first week of July.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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CHAIR DREW Do you have an estimte of
how | ong construction m ght take?
MR, BURTTSCHELL: Right now, we are
| ooking at a conpletion date of |ate October of 2024.
Un yeah. At this tinme, that's our ET -- current
schedul e. So about 16 nonths.
CHAIR DREW Ckay. Thank you. Are there
any other questions from Council Menbers?
Thank you and wel cone agai n.
MR. BURTTSCHELL: Thanks.
CHAIR DREW Moving on to the H gh Top and
OGstrea Project update; M. Randol ph
M5. RANDOLPH: Chair Drew, Council
Menbers, and Staff, for the record, this is Sara
Randol ph, Site Specialist for H gh Top and Ostrea
Facilities. EFSEC Staff are coordinating with the
certificate holder on subm ssion of preconstruction
pl ans and schedul es.
Are there any questions?
CHAIR DREW Any questions?
Ckay. Thank you.
Moving on to Wihistling Ridge Energy Project
update; M. Caputo.
MR. CAPUTO Thank you, Chair Drew, and

Counci| Menbers. For the record, ny nanme is Lance

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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Caputo, and I amthe Siting Specialist recently assigned
to the Wiistling Ridge Energy Facility.

On March 2, 2022, EFSEC received a request from
Wi stling R dge Energy LLC for a three-year extension of
its site certification agreenent. Wistling R dge
Energy LLC is the certificate holder and owner of the
proposed facility. Twn Creek -- excuse ne. Tw n
Creeks Tinber LLC is the owner of Wistling R dge
Ener gy.

The current agreenment wll expire in Novenber
of this year. The certificate holder's request w !l
extend the site certification agreenent until Novenber
2025. The certificate holder is requesting an extension
to review the financial and environnental feasibility of
constructing its proposed facility. Excuse ne.
"Approved” facility. Updated environnental studies,
sone of which are species-specific and seasonally
sensitive, need to be perforned; hence, the request for
t hree years.

On March 16, 2022, EFSEC received a request
fromTwi n Creeks Tinber LLC that they intended to submt
a transfer request of ownership of Wistling R dge
Energy and requested the Council consider both requests
si mul t aneousl vy.

On April 27th of this year, EFSEC received a
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request for transfer of ownership fromthe certificate
hol der. Staff will schedule a public informtional
neeting and will coordinate with the Council on its
avail abilities.

Thank you. And | am available for any
guesti ons.

CHAIR DREW So the three years is from
that first date in 2022; is that correct?

MR, CAPUTO Well, fromthe date the
certificate agreenent will be -- have expired. It would
have expired in Novenber of this year. So they are
requesting three years fromthis fall -- this Novenber,
upcom ng Novenber

CHAIR DREW Ckay. So that's 2026. Okay.

Ms. Haf keneyer ?
M5. HAFKEMEYER: Thank you, Chair Drew.
| just wanted to junp in and indicate that
M. MMhan is present on the line for sonme of these
questions if the Council has additional questions about
Wi stling R dge or the requests that have been
subm tted.

CHAIR DREW | amjust not sure if | heard
the date right. So what date is it that they are asking
for the extension until?

M. MMhan maybe?
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MR. MCMAHAN:. Thank you, Chair Drew. |
appreci ate the opportunity to respond to the questions.

Ti m McMahan, for the record, and | represent Twin Creeks

Tinber. Lance struggled with that. It is difficult to
say qui ckly.
And just to do a really quick rewind. | don't

want to take very nmuch time here because really, this is
all ainmed to having a public neeting in the near future.

So the key thing that we really need to do here
Is to transfer the site certificate so that you have the
right billing entity. Wistling Ridge Energy is the
project, and there is an LLC, Wi stling Ri dge Energy
LLC. But the way that the Council Staff interprets
this, and | don't disagree, is, it's really the upstream
owner that is responsible for maki ng paynents and
staying on top of the conditioning of the project, et
cetera, so that is Twn Creeks Tinber. And we have
provi ded you with sonme consi derabl e financi al
i nformation that we can tal k about when we actually head
into the adjudication, itself.

There is -- you know, | would say that there is

sone debate about the expiration of the site

certificate. The -- and we will -- that's sonething we
wi Il need to tal k about when we actually do neet here.
But the -- | would say the shortest tine frane that we
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woul d be asking for is -- would be assum ng expiration
of the site certificate this fall in 2018, and for an

addi tional three-year period is what we are requesting
in order to --

MR CAPUTG  2026.

MR MCMAHAN:  Yeah. In 20- -- yeah.
Excuse ne. Yeah.

And Greg Corbin, by the way, from TCT is on the
line, as well.

So we wll be requesting the extension in order
to determne the feasibility of continuing wwth this
project, and we are asking the Council's authorization
to do so.

So, | guess, you know, | am avail able for
addi tional questions, but | don't really want to, you
know, kind of nove into argunent about the nerits of
this because that's really --

CHAI R DREW  No.

MR. MCMAHAN: -- what the upcom ng hearing
is for.
checking CHAIR DREW That's fine. | was just
—pecking. But we will get back to the date after we hear
nore information --

MR. MCMAHAN: R ght.

CHAIR DREW -- at the public neeting.
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M. Young?
MR. YOUNG Yeah. | amjust | ooking at
t he docunent that's on the screen. In the first
paragraph, it looks like it says the extension is
requested to Novenber of 20257
MR CAPUTQO  Yes.
CHAIR DREW And that's what | heard
M. Caputo say, so that's why | was raising the
guestion, but that's okay. W wll hear nore as it goes

on.
MR. CAPUTO Thank you. And Chair Drew,
if I could clarify one quick thing? That docunent was
witten a year ago. So we were asking for a three-year
extension which will put us at 2026.
CHAIR DREW Ckay. Thank you.

And what we need to do, Council Menbers, is to
conduct not an adjudication but a public infornmational
neeting, and that will be the next step, and that w |
be a full presentation by the certificate -- well, let's
just say by Twin...okay. Now | amforgetting.

MR. MCMAHAN:  Twin Creeks Tinber. Yeah.
CHAIR DREW Twi n Creeks Ti nber.

MR. MCMAHAN: O the certificate hol der.
CHAIR DREW Certificate hol der, about the

change in ownership which would officially nake themthe
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certificate hol der.
MR. MCMAHAN: There you go.
CHAIR DREW So. That's the conplicating
factor here. Ckay.
So we will be able to discuss this in nore
detail with the public present at a virtual public
i nformati onal neeting as soon as we schedule it.
O her questions?
MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Chair Drew.
CHAIR DREW Thank you.
Moving on to Desert Claimsite certification
agreenent anmendnent update; Ms. Moon.
M5. MOON. Yes. Good afternoon, Council,
Chair Drew, and Council Menbers. Just, again, for the
record, this is Ary Mon providing a project update on
Desert Claim
At the May 2023 Council neeting, | provided an
update on the Desert Cl aimProject detailing the receipt
of a request to anend the Desert Claimsite
certification agreenent. W shortened that to "SCA."
The request was received from EDF Renewabl es on May 5th
of 2023 and was a request to extend the deadline for
conpl eting construction by five years, fromthe current
date of Novenber 13, 2023, to Novenber 13, 2028.

The signed certification agreenent authorizes
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the certificate holder to construct the project such
that substantial conpletion is achieved no |ater than
five years fromthe date that Anmendnent No. 1 was
approved by the Council. So we had an SCA, and then we
had Anmendnent No. 1 to that SCA. The Council approved
that on Novenber 13th of 2018; therefore, the current
SCA substantial conpletion date is Novenber of 2023.

Revi ew of the extension request is being
conpl eted by EFSEC Staff in consultation with the EFSEC
| egal counsel under the Washi ngton Adm ni strative Code
463-68-080. An informational neeting on the SCA
anmendnment is schedul ed for Thursday, July 13, 2023, at
5:00 p.m

Does the Council have any questions?

CHAIR DREW Are there any questions?

So at that neeting, we can expect a full
presentation fromthe certificate holder, as well as
comrents fromthe public, and that, too, will be a
virtual neeting.

M5. MOON: Yes. Thank you, Chair Drew.
CHAI R DREW  Thank you.

Moving on to the Horse Heaven W nd Farm Proj ect
update; Ms. Moon.

M5. MOON: (Good afternoon again, Council,

Chair Drew, and Council Menbers. | am providing an
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update on the Horse Heaven Wnd Project.

EFSEC Staff continued work on the preparation
of the final environnental inpact statenent, or final
EIS. Staff are currently engaged in review ng revisions
to the final EIS as prepared by our consultant
WEP/ Gol der .

EFSEC Staff are also coordinating final EIS
revision reviews by Washi ngton state agency experts in
resource topic areas such as wildlife and habitat,
veget ati on, and water resources.

Preparation of the final EIS includes
I ncorporation of coments received fromthe public and
agencies during the draft EIS public comment period
whi ch was hel d Decenber 19th of 2022 through
February 1st of 2023 in which over 2,500 witten and
oral comments were received.

Part of responding to the coments received on
the draft EISis to eval uate updated and additi onal
I nformati on received. Responses to data requests on air
quality, visual, water, and transportation are currently
bei ng eval uated and used to update the draft
envi ronnmental inpact statenent. [In addition, EFSEC
Staff continue to actively engage with Washi ngton state
agenci es regardi ng potential inpact anal ysis and

mtigation opportunities.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

EFSEC 2023 Monthly Council Meetings

June, Remote - June 21, 2023 Page 28

The final EIS preparation is also infornmed by
the updated application for site certification submtted
by the applicant in Decenber 2022. In addition, an
updat ed application scheduled for submttal after
adj udi cation, which is a separate process from preparing
the environnental inpact statenent under SEPA, will also
informthe final EIS.

EFSEC Staff would also like to informthe
Council that along with the pre-filed adjudication
testinony already avail able, additional subm ssions wll
be added to the Council SharePoint for review as we
approach the schedul ed adj udi cati on heari ngs.

Does the Council have any questions regarding
the project update?

CHAIR DREW Are there any questions for
Ms. Moon about the project update?

M5. MOON:. (kay. Hearing none --

CHAIR DREW Go ahead with the -- yes.

M5. MOON: Ckay.

CHAI R DREW The extension request. o
ahead.

M5. MOON: Ckay. So on the extension
request. EFSEC Staff worked with the applicant to
establish an updated comm tnent date to conplete the

processi ng of the Horse Heaven application for site
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certification. This new date, referred to as the
extension date, as defined in the Revised Code of
Washi ngt on 80.50. 100, that requires that the Council
shall report to the Governor its recommendations as to

t he approval or rejection of an application for
certification wwthin 12 nonths of receipt by the Council
of such an application or such later tinme as is nutually
agreed by the Council and the applicant.

The current date to report to the Governor is
set as July 8th of 2023. However, Scout C ean Energy
submtted a third extension request to the EFSEC Counci |
on June 12, 2023, to extend the application processing
of the proposed Horse Heaven Wnd Farm application for
site certification to January 31st of 2024. A copy of
the extension request letter is included in the Council
packet, and it's on display on our screens.

Does the Council have any questions regarding
t he extension request?

CHAIR DREW So the extension request was
received on June 12th and posted to the Council's
website and a request as a final action itemwas put
out. Ddwe receive -- as is our practice, we take
witten comments unl ess we do not provide enough tine
for people to nake those witten comments. Did we

receive any witten comments on this itenf
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M5. MOON:. | amgoing to have to refer to
the EFSEC O fice Staff. | amnot aware of any witten

conment s.
Joan or Andrea?
M5. GRANTHAM Hi. This is Andrea, Chair
Drew. | | ooked, and we did not receive any witten
comrents for the conmment canpai gn we put out |ast week.
CHAIR DREW Ckay. Thank you.
Counci|l Menbers, are there questions?
| do see a hand by Shona Voel ckers, | believe,
with the Yakama Tribe. And | know we received a letter
to the Council, but that was about adjudication. This
IS not an issue of adjudication. This is an issue of
what is in front of us, is, the extension, which, we
know the project wll not be ready to be recommended one
way or another to the Governor the first week of July,
So our practice is not to take public comments if we
have given people that opportunity to provide witten
comment s ahead-of -ti ne.
Counci | Menbers --
VOELCKER
M5, GRANTHAM |If | may? Chair Drew, we
did submt witten comments, and | would just like to
make that clear to the Council that we submtted a
|l etter commenting on the specific extension request.

Three of the parties did yesterday.
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CHAIR DREW Ckay. Thank you for that. |
will pull -- let's see. Andrea or Joan, can you pull
that up? | -- let's pull that letter up. Thank you.

W will take a couple-mnute break here so we
can make sure the Council can see that.
(Pause in proceedings.)

M5. BUMPUS: Chair Drew, this is Sonia
Bunpus. | just wanted to nention that when we opened
the public coment period for this extension request,
that was closed |last week, so if this letter -- the
letter that cane in related to requesting nore tine for
the adjudication in light of this extension, if it cane
I n yesterday or what have you, it would be past the
deadline to submt comments on this particular action.

CHAIR DREW Ckay. |If we have a copy of
the letter, I'd like it to be put forward for the
Council to look at. Thank you.

M5. BUMPUS:. Sure.

Joan and Andrea, do you have access to the
letter?

M5. GRANTHAM | -- this is Andrea
Grantham | amcurrently having issues finding it
within the email.

Ms. Voel ckers, do you know which email you sent

it to, if it was maybe to the adjudication group or did
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you have it directly listed as a comment for this itenf

M5. VOELCKERS: It was submtted to EFSEC
at "efsec.wa.gov" wth the adjudication parties cc'd; to
the full service list, including EFSEC Staff.

M5. BUWPUS: | think | have | ocated an
email withit. It looks like --

MR. MCMAHAN:.  Chair Drew --

M5. BUMPUS: It looks like it cane in
yest er day.

M5. GRANTHAM Yes. | believe | have
found it.

MR. MCMAHAN:  Chair Drew, Tim McMahan. If
| could just say sonething very quickly here concerning
this matter?

CHAI R DREW (Go ahead.

MR. MCVAHAN.  We were aware that this
|l etter cane in because Scout C ean Energy -- and, by the
way, Tim McMahan with Scout C ean Energy.

Because we were certainly aware of the cutoff
time for the letter, we did not respond. W didn't
think that was in order. So | would -- | have sone
concerns wth the Council considering this at this point
in time.

CHAIR DREW Ckay. Thank you.

M5. BUWPUS: Al right, Chair Drew. W
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have the letter up so that the Council can take a | ook
at this.

And | just wanted to rem nd the Council --

CHAIR DREW This is an adjudication, and
| read it as an adjudication letter.

May -- can we see the | ast page, please.

This is an adjudication issue, not an issue
about the extension request, fromny review here. The
ext ensi on does not deal with adjudication. Adjudication
is dealt with through Judge Torem and the adj udi cation
Process. VOELCKER
M5. BUMRUS: We just respectfully request
the Council be allowed to read the letter that was
submtted to the Council. Thank you.

CHAIR DREW We will read it. It is not

germane to the issue of whether or not we have an

extension of this project. It is germane to the
adjudication. It is not germane to the extension
request .

Counci | Menbers, are there questions?
M5. KELLY: Chair, this is Kate Kelly.
CHAIR DREW Go ahead.
M5. KELLY: Just in reading this short
letter from Scout Energy, it doesn't really ask for an

extension date. | nean, it says that they extend with
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an expectation of conpleting the adjudication. So that
they are asking for an extension through January 31,
2024; is that correct?

CHAIR DREW Yes. The first paragraph
there. And they are explaining why they are asking for
t hat extension request to January 31, 2024. But that's
the request. Ckay?

MS. KELLY: Okay. Yes.

CHAIR DREW Thank you.

O her questions from Council Menbers?

MR YOUNG Chair Drew, this is Lenny
Young. Does Staff have coments for a reconmendati on,
Wi th respect to Scout's request?

CHAI R DREW Thank you.

M5. BUWUS. This is Sonia Bunpus, the
Director for EFSEC. And this extension request is an
adm nistrative extension. It basically just allows --
which, as the -- as the letter from Scout discusses, it
allows EFSEC the tine it needs to conplete the SEPA
revi ew process, to conduct the adjudicative proceedi ngs,
and then to deliberate and nake the recomendati on, and
soO.

Staff's recommendation is that the Council go
ahead and approve this extension request. |It's going to

all ow us to conplete our processes so that we can get
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our recomrendati on package to the Governor, and the hope
Is that we would conplete that before the January 31,
2024, extension date.

MR. YOUNG Thank you.

CHAIR DREW Are there questions from
Counci | Menbers or discussion?

M5. KELLY: Chair Drew, this is Kate
Kelly. | amjust trying to understand what is the
consequence if we were to not approve the extension;
t hat extension request?

CHAIR DREW Ms. Bunpus?

M5. BUMPUS: Yes.

So when an application is submtted, the
applicant provides an initial deposit, and work
comences on the review of the application, and all of
these different processes | just tal ked about.

| f the extension request is not granted,
essentially we would cease our review on this
application, and the review of this application for site
certification would stop, and that would be it. So
by -- so by the -- sorry.

CHAIR DREW O her -- go ahead.
M5. BUWPUS: | was just going to -- | am
just going to say that so by extending the request --

or, providing this extension, it allows the process to
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continue, and to allow us to conplete all of these
different steps that are part of our process that we
need to conplete before we can nake our recomrendati on.
But if then the Council were not to extend it, then the
wor k woul d cease.

M5. KELLY: So -- this is Kate again.

So the adjudication schedule was set with the
assunption that this deadline woul d be extended by the
Counci | .

CHAIR DREW It woul d...

M5. BUWUS: So -- Chair Drew, do you want
nme to respond?

CHAIR DREW Pl ease. Yes. Thank you.

M5. BUWUS:. Well, so the extension -- the
adj udi cati on was schedul ed, based off what steps
remai ned |eft to be conpleted. W knew that we woul d
i kely need an extension, but -- in order to conplete
adj udi cation, but the question was, we al so knew that we
were going to need tine to conplete the final
envi ronnental inpact statenent, and so. You know, our
goal is to not do nultiple extensions if we don't need
to do that, so what we did was, we worked with Scout on
drafting and finalizing a schedule for the final
envi ronnent al inpact statenent, and that hel ped to

informthis extension request here, in hopes that we

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 36




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

EFSEC 2023 Monthly Council Meetings

June, Remote - June 21, 2023 Page 37

woul d not be having to do nultiple. You know For

I nstance, having to do another one right after

adj udi cati on; doi ng another one perhaps after the final
environnental inpact statenent. So by trying to
synchroni ze the schedul es that were set for adjudication
and what is estimated for the final environnental i npact
statenent, we think we have got an extension request

t hat captures, you know, the tine needed to conplete the
full process.

Now, Council Menber Kelly, | would add, though,
that it's possible we would need nore tine, but we don't
anticipate that at this point.

CHAIR DREW Ms. Bunpus, can you descri be
the steps that take place after adjudication?

M5. BUWUS: Well, there is quite a bit
that goes into it. One of the things that wll occur
after the adjudication is that the applicant will have
an opportunity to submt a final application for site
certification. Well, I should say, rather, a revised or
updat ed application for site certification. This
typically reflects things that were proffered through
t he adjudicative proceeding. And so we would get an
updated application for site certification. That
i nformation --

CHAIR DREW And what is -- can you say
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what the tine frane is for that updated application
after the adjudication?

M5. BUWPUS: Of the top of ny head, |
believe it's 60 days. | believe our rules say 60 days
is their deadline. Wthin 60 days of ending the
adj udi cative proceedi ng, the applicant nust submt an
updated application for site certification. 1'd want to
doubl e-check it, but | believe it's 60 days.

And so after that occurs -- or, | should say,
concurrently, you know, as that is happening, the
Counci |l would be working with our Adm nistrative Law
Judge to prepare Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law
whi ch are based off the adjudicative proceeding. And
then once the application for site certification that's
been updated is received, the Staff will take a | ook at
that. It will also be shared with the public and the
Council, posted to our website, et cetera, and we w |
| ook at that to see if there is anything in the final
environnental inpact statenent that nmay need to be
t weaked or, you know, edited in sonme way to refl ect
anyt hi ng.

Usual |y, and historically, there is not, you
know, vast differences between the original application
and the application that foll ows adjudication, but every

project is different. And so after those processes are
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conpl eted. The Council would have the final
environnental inpact statenent conpleted, they would
take sone tinme to review that, and then there would be
an opportunity to deliberate on the full record, which
woul d be everything fromthe adjudicative proceedi ng,
the final environnental inpact statenent, and anything
that came in through tribal government to gover nnment
consultation. And after that, a recommendati on woul d be
made to the Governor.

| am-- | am you know, just very high |evel.
There is a lot nore to it. But those are sort of the
bi g hi ghlights.

CHAIR DREW O her questions from Counci l
Menber s?

O, Ms. Kelly, does that answer your question?

M5. KELLY: That did. Thank you for that
detail .

CHAIR DREW |s there a notion on the
ext ensi on request?

M5. BREWSTER: Stacey Brewster. | wll
nove that the Council approve the extension request with
the date of January 31, 2024.

CHAI R DREW Thank you.

|s there a second?

VR. SANDI SON: Der ek Sandi son. Second.
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CHAI R DREW Thank you.
Al'l those in favor, please -- any nore
di scussion, | should say? 1Is there any discussion about
this itenf? W have had a ot of information. Do
Counci | Menbers have comments?

M5. BREWSTER: This is Stacey Brewster
again. Yeah, this is quite a project and quite a
process that takes a ot of tinme and energy, and |
appreciate all the information and all the hard work
Staff has done. And | think the extra tinme wll
definitely give us the opportunity to fully assess the
proj ect.

CHAI R DREW Thank you.

M. Young?

MR YOUNG Wuld it be fair to say that
irrespective of Scout's request, that EFSEC Staff would
need nore tine to conduct the process to its concl usion?

CHAIR DREW So yes. The issue is how our
| aw i s structured.

Ms. Bunpus, do you want to -- so it says that
an extension is agreed to by the applicant and EFSEC.
|s that correct, M. Bunpus?

M5. BUWPUS: Correct.

CHAIR DREW And so in order to do that,
the Staff and the applicant work together, the Staff
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know ng all the pieces that need to cone together, the
applicant also understanding that, to put forward an
ext ensi on request, which, although | know there are
peopl e who have a | ot of concern about extension
requests, are -- actually happen with nost of our
projects that are conpl ex.

Because of the anpbunt of review that this one
takes, | believe that we very nuch need this extension,
and yes, M. Young, because we need it for the
conpletion of the EIS, we need it for the adjudication,
we need it for the steps after adjudication, and for all
of that to cone together so that the Council has tine to
del i berate before we nmake a recommendation to the
Governor. So yes, for all of those reasons.

MR. YOUNG Thank you.

M5. KELLY: Chair, this is Kate Kelly.
CHAIR DREW Go ahead, Ms. Kelly. Yeah.
M5. KELLY: In reading that RCWwhich is

cited inthe -- Scout's letter, | -- you know, it works
in the favor of the Council -- it seens to work in the
favor of the Council to agree -- nutually agree to this

extension with this applicant, just as a matter of due
diligence, and -- and again, and al so the conplexity of
t he project.

| wll just say that with regard to public
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submtted on this, | -- it's just -- it's just so

terribly inportant that we have an opportunity to hear
fromthe public, so, as this project goes through the
process, and | know there is processes for that, but
just want to nmake the point that that's an inportant
role for us as Council Menbers, is, to be part of that
dialog with community and others who have an interest in
this, so you' d hope that we can continue that.

Anot her point is, on the subject of the
schedul e and the steps that Sonia just went through,
| -- the nore communi cation we can get as Counci l
Menbers on what the schedule -- what we shoul d be
antici pating and what work -- you know, review processes
wi |l be upcom ng would be very hel pful for us as
part-tinme Council Menbers and real-tinme State enpl oyees,
so thank you for that.

CHAIR DREW Yes. And as -- this is truly
an adm nistrative allowance as long as it's -- you know,
we do take public comment on it. W have a parallel
process. That extending the tine frame for the project
doesn't rule on the adjudication. The adjudication
iIs -- we have Judge Adam Torem who will be answering on
behal f of the Council that -- those schedul es, requests,

and we can provide you with nore information on that, as

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 42




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

EFSEC 2023 Monthly Council Meetings

June, Remote - June 21, 2023 Page 43
well. So. | think that is part of the confusion, if
you wll, for the subject of today's neeting since this

I s about the extension of the project, it is not about
t he adj udi cati on.

Are there nore comments by Council Menbers?

Heari ng none, all those in favor of approving
t he extension request, please say "aye."

MULTI PLE SPEAKERS: Aye.

CHAIR DREW All those opposed?

Motion carries.

Thank you. Thank you for the robust
di scussi on.

Movi ng on to the Badger Muntain Sol ar Energy
Proj ect update.

M5. SNARSKI: Thank you, Chair Drew, and
good afternoon, Council Menbers. For the record, this
I s Joanne Snar ski .

On June 19, 2023, we received responses to our
third data request and al so an update to the Badger
Mountain grass pellet survey fromthe springs field
wor k. The applicant has also submtted a revised draft
of the cultural resources survey which is currently
under review by our contracted agencies and
participating tribal nations. W anticipate their

f eedback by the second week of July. The information
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provided in response to these data requests shall be
used to support the devel opnent of the draft
environnental inpact statenent that is currently
I n- progress.
Are there any questions?
CHAIR DREW Are there any questions?
Heari ng none, thank you.
Moving on to -- | turned ny mc off. Ckay.
Moving on to the Wautonma Sol ar Project update;
M. Caput o.
MR. CAPUTG  Thank you, Chair Drew, and
Counci |l Menbers. This one should be pretty
strai ghtforward.
On June 1st of this year, the Council received
a request for a five-nonth extension of the application
review date. As you wll recall, on June 9th, at a
speci al Council neeting, the Council granted this
request. The applicant is perform ng additional culture
resource field surveys as requested by EFSEC Staff in
order to conplete our SEPA threshol d determ nati on.
| am avail abl e for questions.
CHAI R DREW Any questions?
Thank you.
Moving on to the Hop Hill Sol ar Project update;

M . Bar nes.
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MR. BARNES:. Thank you, Chair Drew, and
Counci | Menbers. For the record, this is John Barnes,
EFSEC Staff, for the Hop Hill application update for
May .

W received additional materials fromBrett
Kni ght, the applicant, a revised cultural resource
report which is being reviewed by Council Staff in
coordi nation with the Washi ngton Departnent of
Archaeol ogi cal and H storic Preservation. W have al so
recei ved updat ed project production information fromthe
applicant. These revisions include clarifications to
the MADC generating capacity and percentage of the AC
capacity factor. This updated information can be found
on the Hop Hill Project page on the EFSEC website.

We are continuing to coordinate and revi ew t he
application with our contractor, contracted agencies,
and tribal governnents.

Are there any -- or, there are no updates to
report on. No further updates to report on.

Are there any questions?

CHAIR DREW Are there any questions for
M. Barnes?

Thank you for your update.

Moving on to the Carriger Solar Project update;
Ms. Snarski .
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M5. SNARSKI : Thanks again, Chair Drew.
Again, this is Joanne Snar ski .

As you wll recall, on June 9, 2023, the
Council held a special neeting and voted to extend the
time line for a decision on whether or not to grant
expedited review. Extension extends that decision
t hrough August 17, 2023.

On June 16, 2023, we received responses to our
first data request for supplenental information on the
proposed Carriger Solar Facility. The information we
received is assisting us in conpleting our State
Envi ronnmental Policy Act threshold determ nation for
this project.

Foll owi ng the May 16th | and use hearing for the
proposed facility, Staff supported the devel opnent of
the legal brief on the | and use consistency the Council
has received fromour Assistant Attorney General, Jon
Thonpson. The legal brief is intended to provide
Counci| Menbers | egal context for your discussion on the
project's consistency with |ocal, County, and regional
| and use ordi nances and codes for the forthcom ng | and
use consi stency determ nation.

At this time, EFSEC Staff would |ike to request
that the Council direct Staff coordinate with the

Adm ni strative Law Judge to prepare a | and use
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consi stency order to then be brought to the Council for
del i beration and potentially for Council action at the
August Council neeti ng.
Are there any questions?
CHAIR DREW Are there any questions?
Counci|l Menbers, so the process for this is
that we would ask the Staff to work with the
Adm ni strative Law Judge to prepare a | and use
consi stency order. | believe we are expecting to get
that before the August neeting. W will ask for public
comrent about | and use consistency. W have al ready had
a hearing on | and use consistency, but we wll take
additional witten comments before that neeting, and
then we will have those comments fromthe public. The
order wll be shared wth the Council Menbers to review
before the neeting, and then we woul d make a deci si on on
the | and use consi stency order.
Are there guestions about that?
MR. CHILES: Chair Drew, this is Matt
Chiles. So we are not voting on the consistency at this
point; it won't be until August, if |I amreading things
correctly?
CHAIR DREW Correct. Wat we would be
doing at this point would be directing the Staff to work

wth the Adm nistrative Law Judge to prepare that
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consi stency order.

So what we are saying is, is the Staff
recomendi ng that they work with the Admnistrative Law
Judge to prepare a | and use consi stency order?

Ms. Snarski ?

M5. SNARSKI: Yes. That's correct.

CHAIR DREW But we are not deciding that
until the August neeting, but we are asking for the
order to be drawn-up and drafted.

Does that answer your question? And it would
be for consistency, M. Chiles.

MR. CHI LES: Yes, that answers ny
question, | believe. So basically, we are asking for
the Staff to draw sonething so we are ready for August,
correct?

CHAIR DREW And we are asking for that to
be an order of consistency, |and use consistency. Gkay?

MR, CHI LES. GCkay. | have sone things
where | do not believe it's consistent. Does that need
to wait until August, or should | be in discussions wth
the Staff at this point? | have read the Attorney
Ceneral's report, and there are a couple things that |
do not believe they are interpreting properly. So if
the Staff's report is going to be to basically do what

the Attorney General said, then | amnot going to be
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voting for it in August. So that's ny know edge at this
poi nt, although obviously today is not the voting point.
So --

CHAIR DREW Correct.

MR CHLES. -- ny question is, do ny
concerns wwth -- would now be a good tine for ne to be
di recting those concerns to the Staff or the
Adm ni strative Law Judge or should |I be waiting until

t he August when we have discussion on that?

CHAIR DREW Ckay. | see our -- one of
our Assistant AGs, Jenna Slocum w Il conment on that.
Go ahead.
M5. SLOCUM Hi. | worked with Jon in

preparing this neno. And | wanted to say that, first, |
nmean, | definitely want to hear from ALJ Larripa on this
and how he sees this process, but fromour side, we
woul d very nuch |Iike to have your input now, Council
Menber Chiles. It would be very hel pful for us in
preparing this, working with Staff, working with the
ALJ, and working through this. | think, for the vote,
you know, that will conme at the August tine |ine, but
getting this -- this hashed out now would be very
i nportant.

MR CHI LES. Thank you. By "now," do you

nmean you want the input right now at the neeting or
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should | contact you later in the week?
M5. SLOCUM Right. | neant later in the
week. | think we are going to be working on this for
the next nonth, two nonths, sonething |ike that, so we
will have plenty of tinme, but right. | nean, if you
have questions right now, we can go into it. It m ght
be hel pful with the Council there. O you could reach
out to us separately; that would be great. Thank you.
MR CHLES: | think it will be just fine

for ne to reach out to you separately.

M5. SLOCUM  Ckay.

MR CHLES: So |l will do that. Thank you
very much.

M5. SLOCUM Yeah. Thank you.

CHAIR DREW If any Council Menbers do
have questions about the nmeno fromthe Attorney General,
pl ease reach out to either Ms. Slocumor M. Thonpson,
and they can answer your questions; provide additional
information. And we will have robust conversation about
that. You wll get the |land use consi stency order
before the neeting to review. So that wll be com ng
| ater.

Are there additional questions?
Ckay. Al those in favor of -- oh, wait.

need a noti on.
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Ckay. Is there a notion to direct Staff to
coordinate with our Adm nistrative Law Judge and Staff
to coordinate -- which includes our Attorney Ceneral's
Staff to coordinate with the Adm nistrative Law Judge,
to prepare a | and use consistency order to be brought to
the Council for deliberation and potentially for Council
action at the August Council neeting.

MR. YOUNG Lenny Young. So noved.

CHAIR DREW Thank you.

A second?

MR, LEVITT: Eli Levitt. Second.

CHAIR DREW Thank you.

Any further discussion?

M5. KELLY: Chair, this is Kate Kelly.

And | have read the neno a couple tines, and | -- the --
there -- the possibility exists that we can find | and
use consistency with sone of the -- part of the site and
not wwth -- because there is three different zones

i npl i cat ed.

CHAI R DREW  Yes.

M5. KELLY: |Is that correct? |Is there --
maybe that's sonething | should followup with the Staff
after, but.

CHAIR DREW | think it would be good to

foll owup because the Council has precedent on what
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consi stency is.

Ms. Sl ocum would you like to comment on what

our determ nation of consistency is based on?
M5. SLOCUM  Sure.

So we | ook at past precedents, or past cases,
past decisions that the Council has issued. And in this
case, there is a Colunbia Solar, is the nane of the
case, where they explained the test for whether or not
it's consistent. So in this neno, what we were | ooking
at was whether or not this specific case in Klickitat
County fit with the tests previously established, so
whether, at the tinme of application, the facility was
consi stent/in conpliance with the I and use plans and
zoni ng ordi nances, and then specifically at what
constitutes | and use plans and zoni ng ordi nances, and
then the -- go through -- and then the test being
whet her the pertinent |ocal |and use provisions
expressly prohibit, or, by operation, clearly,
convi nci ngly, and unequivocally prohibit this type of
use, so if it can be permtted through sone type of
separate conditional use permt or provision or the
nmoratoriumis only a short-term suspension rather than
an outright prohibition.

According to the Council's precedent, that

woul d mean that it's still consistent with | and use.
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And | think, in this case, we have got, you're right,
three overlapping zones. | think two of themare
overl apping, and then all of it is within the energy
overlay zone. So you have got these two -- you have got
the extensive agriculture and the general rural zone,
and then about two-thirds of it also falls within the
energy overlay zone. So we |ooked at each three of --
each of those separately and tried to see how t hose
woul d fit under the test. And none of them as far as
we could tell, have an outright prohibition, so. |
nean, | definitely want to hear from Council Menber
Chiles on how he would interpret this, but as far as we
| ooked at this fromprecedent fromthe Council, this
woul d fall within the previous decision in Col unbia
Solar for finding that it is consistent.

CHAIR DREW Does that answer your
guestion, M. Kelly?

M5. KELLY: Yes. Thank you.

Thanks for that explanation, Jen.

M5. SLOCUM M hmm

CHAIR DREW Are there any other questions
from Counci| Menbers?

M5. BREWSTER: This is Stacey Brewster.
So just to get this clear in ny head, so. Wth the

precedent set prior and consistency doesn't necessarily
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mean approved. There is still a process for the
condi tional use permt comng; is that right?

M5. SLOCUM Yes. Absolutely. Yes.
Ri ght .

M5. BREWSTER:  Thanks.

CHAI R DREW Qur consistency test has a
threshold of, is it prohibited, and that's how t he
Council has nmade its decision prior to now.

Any ot her questions or comments?

Ckay. W have a notion in front of us. Al
those in favor of directing the Staff to coordinate with
the Adm nistrative Law Judge to prepare a | and use
consi stency order to be brought before the Council for

del i beration and potential action at the August Council

neeti ng, please say
MULTI PLE SPEAKERS: Aye.
CHAI R DREW  Qpposed?

aye.

Motion carries. Thank you.
That concl udes our agenda for today. Thank
you, all. There were many conpl ex issues before us.
O, not many, but a few | appreciate the conversation,
t he questions, and the comments. And our business is
concluded. The neeting is adjourned.
(The neeting was adj ourned at

2:42 p.m)
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STATE OF WASHI NGTON ) I, Lori K Haworth, CCR, RPR,
) ss a certified court reporter
COUNTY OF PI ERCE ) in the State of Washi ngton, do

hereby certify:

That the foregoing Monthly Meeting of the
Washi ngton State Energy Facility Site Eval uati on Counci
was conducted in ny presence and adj ourned on June 21,
2023; and thereafter was transcri bed under ny direction;
that the transcript is a full, true and conpl ete
transcript of the said neeting, transcribed to the best
of ny ability;

That | amnot a rel ative, enployee, attorney or
counsel of any party to this matter or relative or
enpl oyee of any such attorney or counsel and that | am

not financially interested in the said matter or the
out cone t her eof;

I N WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny hand
this 5th day of July, 2023.

Lori K. Haworth
Lori K. Haworth, CCR, RPR
Certified Court Reporter No. 2958
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 4

 5

 6                 CHAIR DREW:  Good afternoon.  This is

 7   Kathleen Drew, Chair of the Energy Facility Site

 8   Evaluation Council, calling our June meeting to order.

 9            Ms. Grantham, will you call the role.

10                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair Drew.

11            Department of Commerce?

12                 MS. KELLY:  Kate Kelly present.

13                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Ecology?

14            Department of Fish and Wildlife?

15                 MR. LEVITT:  Sorry.  Ecology, Eli Levitt

16   present.

17                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

18            Back to, Department of Fish and Wildlife?

19            Department of Natural Resources?

20                 MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young present.

21                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities and

22   Transportation Commission?

23                 MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster present.

24                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Local government and

25   optional state agencies.  For the Horse Heaven Project,
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 1   for the Department of Agriculture?

 2                 MR. SANDISON:  Derek Sandison present.

 3                 MS. GRANTHAM:  For Benton County?

 4                 MR. SHARP:  Dave Sharp present.

 5                 MS. GRANTHAM:  This is for Horse Heaven,

 6   Benton County, Ed Brost; although, I don't see him.

 7                 MR. SHARP:  Oh.  I am sorry.  I got to

 8   wait.

 9                 MS. GRANTHAM:  No problem.

10            For Badger Mountain, Douglas County?

11                 MS. GUILIO:  Jordyn Guilio present.

12                 MS. GRANTHAM:  For the Wautoma Solar

13   Project, for Benton County, Mr. Sharp?

14                 MR. SHARP:  Present.

15                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

16            Washington State Department of Transportation?

17            For the Hop Hill Solar Project, for Benton

18   County, Paul Krupin?

19            For the Carriger Solar Project, for Klickitat

20   County, Matt Chiles?

21                 MR. CHILES:  Matt Chiles present.

22                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

23            For the Assistant Attorney Generals, Jon

24   Thompson?

25            Jenna Slocum?
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 1                 MS. SLOCUM:  Jenna Slocum present.

 2                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Administrative Law Judges,

 3   Adam Torem?

 4                 JUDGE TOREM:  Present.

 5                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Laura Bradley?

 6            Dan Gerard?

 7                 JUDGE GERARD:  Present.

 8                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Micah Larripa?

 9                 JUDGE LARRIPA:  Present.

10                 MS. GRANTHAM:  For EFSEC Council Staff,

11   Sonia Bumpus?

12                 MS. BUMPUS:  Present.

13                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer?

14                 MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.

15                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon?

16                 MS. MOON:  Amy Moon present.

17                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Stew Henderson?

18                 MR. HENDERSON:  Stew Henderson present.

19                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Joan Owens?

20                 MS. OWENS:  Present.

21                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Dave Walker?

22                 MR. WALKER:  Present.

23                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Sonja Skavland?

24                 MS. SKAVLAND:  Present.

25                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Lisa Masengale?
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 1            Sara Randolph?

 2                 MS. RANDOLPH:  Present.

 3                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Sean Greene?

 4                 MR. GREENE:  Present.

 5                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo?

 6                 MR. CAPUTO:  Present.

 7                 MS. GRANTHAM:  John Barnes?

 8                 MR. BARNES:  Present.

 9                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Osta Davis?

10            Joanne Snarski?

11                 MS. SNARSKI:  Present.

12                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Alex Shiley?

13                 MS. SHILEY:  Present.

14                 MS. GRANTHAM:  For the operational

15   updates, Kittitas Valley Wind Power Project -- or,

16   "Project," excuse me, Eric Melbardis?

17                 MR. MELBARDIS:  Present.

18                 MS. GRANTHAM:  For the Wild Horse Wind

19   Power Project?

20                 MS. RANDOLPH:  This is Sara Randolph.  I

21   will be speaking for Wild Horse.

22                 MS. GRANTHAM:  For the Grays Harbor Energy

23   Center?

24                 THE WITNESS:  Again this is Sara Randolph.

25   I will be speaking for Grays Harbor.
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 1                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Chehalis Generation

 2   Facility?

 3                 MR. SMITH:  This is Jeremy Smith.  I am

 4   present.

 5                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

 6            Columbia Generating Station?

 7                 MS. RAMOS:  For Columbia Generating

 8   Station, this is Mary Ramos.

 9                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

10            Columbia Solar?

11            Goose Prairie Solar?

12                 MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Cody Burttschell

13   present.

14                 MS. GRANTHAM:  And do we have someone for

15   the Counsel for the Environment?

16                 MS. RANDOLPH:  Yes.  Sara Randolph

17   present.

18                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

19            Chair, there is a quorum for the regular

20   council, Horse Heaven council, Badger Mountain council,

21   Wautoma Solar council, Hop Hill council, and Carriger

22   Solar council.  Thank you.

23                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

24            You Council Members see the proposed agenda in

25   front of us.  Is there a motion to adopt the proposed
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 1   agenda?

 2                 MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.

 3                 CHAIR DREW:  Second?

 4                 MR. LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Second.

 5                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 6            Any discussion?

 7            All those in favor, say "aye."

 8                 MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 9                 CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

10            Agenda is adopted.

11            Moving on to the meeting minutes.  We have two

12   sets of meeting minutes in front of us, one from the

13   May 16th Carriger Solar land use hearing minutes and one

14   from the May 17th monthly meeting minutes.

15            Bringing the May 16th Carriger Solar land use

16   hearing minutes in front of us.  Is there a motion to

17   approve the minutes?

18                 MR. CHILES:  Matt Chiles.  So moved.

19                 CHAIR DREW:  Second?

20                 THE WITNESS:  Stacey Brewster.  Second.

21                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Chair Drew, really quick.

22   Apologies.  I did not get the minutes into the Council

23   packet somehow, so I will be pulling them up briefly.

24                 CHAIR DREW:  Oh, okay.

25                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Apologies.
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 1                 CHAIR DREW:  I don't have -- no worries.

 2   I have no corrections.  I don't know if anyone else

 3   does.

 4            Does anyone have corrections?

 5            Hearing none, let's just take a vote on

 6   approving the May 16th Carriger Solar land use hearing

 7   minutes.  All those in favor of approval, say "aye."

 8                 MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 9                 CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

10            The motion carries.

11            Moving on to the May 17th monthly meeting

12   minutes.  Is there a motion to approve the minutes?

13                 MS. KELLY:  Kate Kelly.  Move to approve.

14                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

15            Second?

16                 MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.

17                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

18            I only have one correction that I saw.

19            There is feedback.  Whoever is -- has their

20   mike open, please turn that off.  I'd appreciate it.

21   Thank you.

22            The only correction I found was on page 14,

23   line 15.  The word "rider," r-i-d-e-r, should be

24   "writer," w-r-i-t-e-r.

25            Are there any other corrections?
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 1            Hearing none, all those in favor of approving

 2   the May 17th monthly meeting minutes as amended, please

 3   say "aye."

 4                 MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 5                 CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

 6            Meeting minutes are approved.

 7            Moving on to our operational updates.  Kittitas

 8   Valley Wind Project; Eric Melbardis.

 9                 MR. MELBARDIS:  Good afternoon, Chair

10   Drew, EFSEC Council, and Staff.  This is Eric Melbardis

11   with EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wind Power

12   Project.  I have nothing nonroutine to report.

13                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

14            Wild Horse Wind Power Project; Ms. Randolph.

15                 MS. RANDOLPH:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,

16   Council Members, and Staff.  For the record, this is

17   Sara Randolph, Site Specialist for Wild Horse Facility.

18   The facility update is provided in your packet.  There

19   are no nonroutine updates to report.

20            Are there any questions?

21                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Chehalis

22   Generation Facility; Jeremy Smith.

23                 MR. SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,

24   Council, and EFSEC Staff.  I am Jeremy Smith, the

25   Maintenance Manager at the Chehalis Generation Facility.
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 1   The only -- we only have one nonroutine thing.  The

 2   plant manager has recently resigned the position, and we

 3   are proceeding forward with filling our position.

 4                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Good luck with

 5   the search.

 6            Moving on to Grays Harbor Energy Center;

 7   Ms. Randolph.

 8                 MS. RANDOLPH:  Chair Drew, Council

 9   Members, and Staff, the facility update is provided in

10   your packet.  There are no nonroutine items to report.

11            Are there any questions?

12                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

13            Columbia Solar.  Is Mr. Cushing there or are --

14   Ms. Randolph?

15            It looks like there are no nonroutine items to

16   report there, as well.

17            Moving on to Columbia Generating Station;

18   Ms. Ramos.

19                 MS. RAMOS:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,

20   EFSEC Council, and Staff.  For the record, this is Mary

21   Ramos with Energy Northwest.  I do have with me in the

22   room Marshall Schmitt and then also Felicia Najera-Paxon

23   of Energy Northwest, as well.

24            For WNP 1 and 4, I do not have any nonroutine

25   items to report.  I do have one item to report for
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 1   Columbia Generating Station.

 2            For Columbia Generating Station, on Tuesday,

 3   June 13th, when Columbia Generating Station was shut

 4   down for our refueling and maintenance outage, the

 5   facility experienced an unintended loss of no more than

 6   300 gallons of oil from the turbine oil heat exchanger

 7   when a tube failed during routine maintenance.  The oil,

 8   which is labeled Mobil DTE 732, is not hazardous,

 9   according to the safety data sheet for the product.  The

10   oil was lost at a site cooling system which consists of

11   six cooling towers, an intake structure in the river,

12   and a discharge pipe to the Columbia River.  The

13   discharge, also termed a blowdown, is authorized by a

14   national pollutant discharge elimination system permit

15   which has been issued by EFSEC to Energy Northwest.

16            Once the failure was identified, the

17   circulating water system was immediately isolated and

18   discharge to the Columbia River ceased.  Energy

19   Northwest notified the U.S. Coast Guard, Washington

20   State Emergency Management Division, and EFSEC of the

21   potential discharge for the river on the day that it was

22   identified, which was June 13th.  Washington State

23   Department of Ecology and Energy Northwest conducted

24   independent visual observations of the Columbia River

25   near the Columbia Generating Station discharge outfall
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 1   on June 13th and confirmed no visible oil sheen observed

 2   on the Columbia River.

 3            Energy Northwest immediately worked with

 4   GrayMar Environmental Services, an approved and licensed

 5   environmental services company, to remove oil from the

 6   cooling water system.  GrayMar assessed the cooling

 7   water system on the morning of June 14th to assess and

 8   develop a cleanup strategy.  GrayMar began work to

 9   remove oil from the cooling water system using absorbent

10   materials the morning of June 15th.

11            I apologize.  There is a plant announcement.

12                 CHAIR DREW:  I am sorry, there is trouble

13   with the audio.

14            Go ahead.

15                 MS. RAMOS:  I apologize for that

16   interruption.  There was a plant announcement, and I had

17   to go on mute.  So I will continue.

18            So like I was saying, GrayMar assessed the

19   cooling water system on June 14th to assist in

20   developing a cleanup strategy.  GrayMar began work to

21   remove oil from the cooling water system using absorbent

22   materials the morning of June 15th.

23            This strategy for -- used for removing oil has

24   been very effective.  As of June 20th, approximately 137

25   gallons of oil had been recovered, and this estimate is
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 1   based on the weight of oil-soaked absorbent materials.

 2            As of today, no oil sheen is visible on the

 3   circulating water system, based on visual observation.

 4   However, as a precautionary measure, absorbent materials

 5   to remove oil from the circulating water remain in place

 6   and continue to be monitored.

 7            In addition, Energy Northwest worked with

 8   Washington State Department of Ecology, GrayMar, and

 9   EFSEC to develop and implement a pollution prevention

10   strategy for restoring blowdowns; in other words,

11   discharge of circulating cooling water to the Columbia

12   River.  On June 20th, absorbent booms were strategically

13   placed downstream of the outfall, based on river flow

14   and conditions.  Blowdown was restarted on June 20th at

15   approximately 10:51 a.m. for about eight hours.  During

16   the discharge period, GrayMar, Ecology, and Energy

17   Northwest were on boats on the river near the outfall to

18   visually monitor for oil sheens.  In addition, drones

19   were used to support the river monitoring.  No visible

20   oil sheen was observed by boat or drone.

21            Energy Northwest has been providing frequent

22   updates to Ecology and EFSEC on the status of the oil

23   recovery and during the planned restoration, a blowdown

24   on June 20th.  Communications with Ecology and EFSEC

25   continue to work -- continue as the work progresses.
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 1   And I do want to add that Energy Northwest sincerely

 2   appreciates the collaboration and ongoing communications

 3   with EFSEC and Ecology on this incident.

 4            That's all I have to report.

 5                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you for your update.

 6            Are there questions from Council Members?

 7                 MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey Brewster.

 8   Just a quick question.  I am wondering what will the

 9   variables be to determine that cleanup is complete?

10                 MS. RAMOS:  Yes.  This is Mary Ramos

11   again.  So we are continuing communication on the

12   progress with EFSEC and Ecology.  I am happy to report

13   that as of today, there is no visible oil sheen on our

14   circulating water system.

15            As far as duration of monitoring in the river,

16   we are continuing those discussions with EFSEC and

17   Ecology, and we have another meeting scheduled at 4:00

18   p.m. this afternoon.

19            Does that help answer your question?

20                 MS. BREWSTER:  Yes.  Thank you.

21                 MS. RAMOS:  Okay.  Thank you.

22                 CHAIR DREW:  Other questions from Council

23   Members?

24                 MR. YOUNG:  Chair Drew, this is Lenny

25   Young.  I have a question.
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 1                 CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  Go ahead.

 2                 MR. YOUNG:  I think you mentioned that 137

 3   pounds of oil has been recovered so far from the

 4   absorbent materials; is that correct?

 5                 MS. RAMOS:  137 gallons of oil, that

 6   was --

 7                 MR. YOUNG:  Okay.

 8                 MS. RAMOS:  -- an estimate based on

 9   yesterday, and it's based on the weight of the

10   oil-soaked absorbent materials that we have gathered so

11   far.

12                 MR. YOUNG:  Okay.

13                 MS. RAMOS:  Those absorbent materials

14   do -- are -- continue to be in place to recover as much

15   oil as possible from our circulating water system.

16                 MR. YOUNG:  So roughly, a little less than

17   half the oil has been recovered?

18                 MS. RAMOS:  That's correct.  And I do want

19   to emphasize that the 300 gallons is a very conservative

20   maximum potential release.

21                 MR. YOUNG:  Understood.  Thank you.

22                 MS. RAMOS:  Thank you.

23                 CHAIR DREW:  Other questions from Council

24   Members?

25            Well, we will continue to look forward to
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 1   updates from you.  Thank everybody for their response

 2   during this effort, and appreciate your ability to give

 3   us this complete report today.  Thank you.

 4            Moving on to Goose Prairie Solar Project

 5   update.  Mr. Burttschell, welcome.  I don't know that we

 6   have heard from you before.

 7                 MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Hi.  No, this is my

 8   first meeting, so apologies if this isn't how it

 9   normally goes, but.  Should I just go ahead and read off

10   of the tick list or update form?  I mean --

11                 CHAIR DREW:  Just provide us -- just --

12   and you're just undergoing construction, so just give us

13   an overview of what's happening and what you expect is

14   next, and you can keep it short.

15                 MR. BURTTSCHELL:  I'll be short, yes.

16                 CHAIR DREW:  And answer questions if there

17   are any.

18                 MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Got it.  Yes.

19            So really, the project is in a soft

20   mobilization phase right now with the full mobilization

21   looking to be happening either the end of next week or

22   the beginning of July.  So at this time next month, the

23   update will be a little bit more substantial.  But at

24   this point, it's just mobilization at the moment with

25   construction starting probably first week of July.
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 1                 CHAIR DREW:  Do you have an estimate of

 2   how long construction might take?

 3                 MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Right now, we are

 4   looking at a completion date of late October of 2024.

 5   Um, yeah.  At this time, that's our ET -- current

 6   schedule.  So about 16 months.

 7                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.  Are there

 8   any other questions from Council Members?

 9            Thank you and welcome again.

10                 MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Thanks.

11                 CHAIR DREW:  Moving on to the High Top and

12   Ostrea Project update; Ms. Randolph.

13                 MS. RANDOLPH:  Chair Drew, Council

14   Members, and Staff, for the record, this is Sara

15   Randolph, Site Specialist for High Top and Ostrea

16   Facilities.  EFSEC Staff are coordinating with the

17   certificate holder on submission of preconstruction

18   plans and schedules.

19            Are there any questions?

20                 CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?

21            Okay.  Thank you.

22            Moving on to Whistling Ridge Energy Project

23   update; Mr. Caputo.

24                 MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and

25   Council Members.  For the record, my name is Lance
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 1   Caputo, and I am the Siting Specialist recently assigned

 2   to the Whistling Ridge Energy Facility.

 3            On March 2, 2022, EFSEC received a request from

 4   Whistling Ridge Energy LLC for a three-year extension of

 5   its site certification agreement.  Whistling Ridge

 6   Energy LLC is the certificate holder and owner of the

 7   proposed facility.  Twin Creek -- excuse me.  Twin

 8   Creeks Timber LLC is the owner of Whistling Ridge

 9   Energy.

10            The current agreement will expire in November

11   of this year.  The certificate holder's request will

12   extend the site certification agreement until November

13   2025.  The certificate holder is requesting an extension

14   to review the financial and environmental feasibility of

15   constructing its proposed facility.  Excuse me.

16   "Approved" facility.  Updated environmental studies,

17   some of which are species-specific and seasonally

18   sensitive, need to be performed; hence, the request for

19   three years.

20            On March 16, 2022, EFSEC received a request

21   from Twin Creeks Timber LLC that they intended to submit

22   a transfer request of ownership of Whistling Ridge

23   Energy and requested the Council consider both requests

24   simultaneously.

25            On April 27th of this year, EFSEC received a
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 1   request for transfer of ownership from the certificate

 2   holder.  Staff will schedule a public informational

 3   meeting and will coordinate with the Council on its

 4   availabilities.

 5            Thank you.  And I am available for any

 6   questions.

 7                 CHAIR DREW:  So the three years is from

 8   that first date in 2022; is that correct?

 9                 MR. CAPUTO:  Well, from the date the

10   certificate agreement will be -- have expired.  It would

11   have expired in November of this year.  So they are

12   requesting three years from this fall -- this November,

13   upcoming November.

14                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  So that's 2026.  Okay.

15            Ms. Hafkemeyer?

16                 MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you, Chair Drew.

17            I just wanted to jump in and indicate that

18   Mr. McMahan is present on the line for some of these

19   questions if the Council has additional questions about

20   Whistling Ridge or the requests that have been

21   submitted.

22                 CHAIR DREW:  I am just not sure if I heard

23   the date right.  So what date is it that they are asking

24   for the extension until?

25            Mr. McMahan maybe?
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 1                 MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Chair Drew.  I

 2   appreciate the opportunity to respond to the questions.

 3   Tim McMahan, for the record, and I represent Twin Creeks

 4   Timber.  Lance struggled with that.  It is difficult to

 5   say quickly.

 6            And just to do a really quick rewind.  I don't

 7   want to take very much time here because really, this is

 8   all aimed to having a public meeting in the near future.

 9            So the key thing that we really need to do here

10   is to transfer the site certificate so that you have the

11   right billing entity.  Whistling Ridge Energy is the

12   project, and there is an LLC, Whistling Ridge Energy

13   LLC.  But the way that the Council Staff interprets

14   this, and I don't disagree, is, it's really the upstream

15   owner that is responsible for making payments and

16   staying on top of the conditioning of the project, et

17   cetera, so that is Twin Creeks Timber.  And we have

18   provided you with some considerable financial

19   information that we can talk about when we actually head

20   into the adjudication, itself.

21            There is -- you know, I would say that there is

22   some debate about the expiration of the site

23   certificate.  The -- and we will -- that's something we

24   will need to talk about when we actually do meet here.

25   But the -- I would say the shortest time frame that we
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 1   would be asking for is -- would be assuming expiration

 2   of the site certificate this fall in 2018, and for an

 3   additional three-year period is what we are requesting

 4   in order to --

 5                 MR. CAPUTO:  2026.

 6                 MR. MCMAHAN:  Yeah.  In 20- -- yeah.

 7   Excuse me.  Yeah.

 8            And Greg Corbin, by the way, from TCT is on the

 9   line, as well.

10            So we will be requesting the extension in order

11   to determine the feasibility of continuing with this

12   project, and we are asking the Council's authorization

13   to do so.

14            So, I guess, you know, I am available for

15   additional questions, but I don't really want to, you

16   know, kind of move into argument about the merits of

17   this because that's really --

18                 CHAIR DREW:  No.

19                 MR. MCMAHAN:  -- what the upcoming hearing

20   is for.

21                 CHAIR DREW:  That's fine.  I was just

22   pecking.  But we will get back to the date after we hear

23   more information --

24                 MR. MCMAHAN:  Right.

25                 CHAIR DREW:  -- at the public meeting.
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 1            Mr. Young?

 2                 MR. YOUNG:  Yeah.  I am just looking at

 3   the document that's on the screen.  In the first

 4   paragraph, it looks like it says the extension is

 5   requested to November of 2025?

 6                 MR. CAPUTO:  Yes.

 7                 CHAIR DREW:  And that's what I heard

 8   Mr. Caputo say, so that's why I was raising the

 9   question, but that's okay.  We will hear more as it goes

10   on.

11                 MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you.  And Chair Drew,

12   if I could clarify one quick thing?  That document was

13   written a year ago.  So we were asking for a three-year

14   extension which will put us at 2026.

15                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.

16            And what we need to do, Council Members, is to

17   conduct not an adjudication but a public informational

18   meeting, and that will be the next step, and that will

19   be a full presentation by the certificate -- well, let's

20   just say by Twin...okay.  Now I am forgetting.

21                 MR. MCMAHAN:  Twin Creeks Timber.  Yeah.

22                 CHAIR DREW:  Twin Creeks Timber.

23                 MR. MCMAHAN:  Or the certificate holder.

24                 CHAIR DREW:  Certificate holder, about the

25   change in ownership which would officially make them the

0025

 1   certificate holder.

 2                 MR. MCMAHAN:  There you go.

 3                 CHAIR DREW:  So.  That's the complicating

 4   factor here.  Okay.

 5            So we will be able to discuss this in more

 6   detail with the public present at a virtual public

 7   informational meeting as soon as we schedule it.

 8            Other questions?

 9                 MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Chair Drew.

10                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

11            Moving on to Desert Claim site certification

12   agreement amendment update; Ms. Moon.

13                 MS. MOON:  Yes.  Good afternoon, Council,

14   Chair Drew, and Council Members.  Just, again, for the

15   record, this is Amy Moon providing a project update on

16   Desert Claim.

17            At the May 2023 Council meeting, I provided an

18   update on the Desert Claim Project detailing the receipt

19   of a request to amend the Desert Claim site

20   certification agreement.  We shortened that to "SCA."

21   The request was received from EDF Renewables on May 5th

22   of 2023 and was a request to extend the deadline for

23   completing construction by five years, from the current

24   date of November 13, 2023, to November 13, 2028.

25            The signed certification agreement authorizes
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 1   the certificate holder to construct the project such

 2   that substantial completion is achieved no later than

 3   five years from the date that Amendment No. 1 was

 4   approved by the Council.  So we had an SCA, and then we

 5   had Amendment No. 1 to that SCA.  The Council approved

 6   that on November 13th of 2018; therefore, the current

 7   SCA substantial completion date is November of 2023.

 8            Review of the extension request is being

 9   completed by EFSEC Staff in consultation with the EFSEC

10   legal counsel under the Washington Administrative Code

11   463-68-080.  An informational meeting on the SCA

12   amendment is scheduled for Thursday, July 13, 2023, at

13   5:00 p.m.

14            Does the Council have any questions?

15                 CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions?

16            So at that meeting, we can expect a full

17   presentation from the certificate holder, as well as

18   comments from the public, and that, too, will be a

19   virtual meeting.

20                 MS. MOON:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair Drew.

21                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

22            Moving on to the Horse Heaven Wind Farm Project

23   update; Ms. Moon.

24                 MS. MOON:  Good afternoon again, Council,

25   Chair Drew, and Council Members.  I am providing an
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 1   update on the Horse Heaven Wind Project.

 2            EFSEC Staff continued work on the preparation

 3   of the final environmental impact statement, or final

 4   EIS.  Staff are currently engaged in reviewing revisions

 5   to the final EIS as prepared by our consultant

 6   WSP/Golder.

 7            EFSEC Staff are also coordinating final EIS

 8   revision reviews by Washington state agency experts in

 9   resource topic areas such as wildlife and habitat,

10   vegetation, and water resources.

11            Preparation of the final EIS includes

12   incorporation of comments received from the public and

13   agencies during the draft EIS public comment period

14   which was held December 19th of 2022 through

15   February 1st of 2023 in which over 2,500 written and

16   oral comments were received.

17            Part of responding to the comments received on

18   the draft EIS is to evaluate updated and additional

19   information received.  Responses to data requests on air

20   quality, visual, water, and transportation are currently

21   being evaluated and used to update the draft

22   environmental impact statement.  In addition, EFSEC

23   Staff continue to actively engage with Washington state

24   agencies regarding potential impact analysis and

25   mitigation opportunities.
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 1            The final EIS preparation is also informed by

 2   the updated application for site certification submitted

 3   by the applicant in December 2022.  In addition, an

 4   updated application scheduled for submittal after

 5   adjudication, which is a separate process from preparing

 6   the environmental impact statement under SEPA, will also

 7   inform the final EIS.

 8            EFSEC Staff would also like to inform the

 9   Council that along with the pre-filed adjudication

10   testimony already available, additional submissions will

11   be added to the Council SharePoint for review as we

12   approach the scheduled adjudication hearings.

13            Does the Council have any questions regarding

14   the project update?

15                 CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions for

16   Ms. Moon about the project update?

17                 MS. MOON:  Okay.  Hearing none --

18                 CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead with the -- yes.

19                 MS. MOON:  Okay.

20                 CHAIR DREW:  The extension request.  Go

21   ahead.

22                 MS. MOON:  Okay.  So on the extension

23   request.  EFSEC Staff worked with the applicant to

24   establish an updated commitment date to complete the

25   processing of the Horse Heaven application for site

0029

 1   certification.  This new date, referred to as the

 2   extension date, as defined in the Revised Code of

 3   Washington 80.50.100, that requires that the Council

 4   shall report to the Governor its recommendations as to

 5   the approval or rejection of an application for

 6   certification within 12 months of receipt by the Council

 7   of such an application or such later time as is mutually

 8   agreed by the Council and the applicant.

 9            The current date to report to the Governor is

10   set as July 8th of 2023.  However, Scout Clean Energy

11   submitted a third extension request to the EFSEC Council

12   on June 12, 2023, to extend the application processing

13   of the proposed Horse Heaven Wind Farm application for

14   site certification to January 31st of 2024.  A copy of

15   the extension request letter is included in the Council

16   packet, and it's on display on our screens.

17            Does the Council have any questions regarding

18   the extension request?

19                 CHAIR DREW:  So the extension request was

20   received on June 12th and posted to the Council's

21   website and a request as a final action item was put

22   out.  Did we receive -- as is our practice, we take

23   written comments unless we do not provide enough time

24   for people to make those written comments.  Did we

25   receive any written comments on this item?
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 1                 MS. MOON:  I am going to have to refer to

 2   the EFSEC Office Staff.  I am not aware of any written

 3   comments.

 4            Joan or Andrea?

 5                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Hi.  This is Andrea, Chair

 6   Drew.  I looked, and we did not receive any written

 7   comments for the comment campaign we put out last week.

 8                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.

 9            Council Members, are there questions?

10            I do see a hand by Shona Voelckers, I believe,

11   with the Yakama Tribe.  And I know we received a letter

12   to the Council, but that was about adjudication.  This

13   is not an issue of adjudication.  This is an issue of

14   what is in front of us, is, the extension, which, we

15   know the project will not be ready to be recommended one

16   way or another to the Governor the first week of July,

17   so our practice is not to take public comments if we

18   have given people that opportunity to provide written

19   comments ahead-of-time.

20            Council Members --

21                 MS. GRANTHAM:  If I may?  Chair Drew, we

22   did submit written comments, and I would just like to

23   make that clear to the Council that we submitted a

24   letter commenting on the specific extension request.

25   Three of the parties did yesterday.
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 1                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you for that.  I

 2   will pull -- let's see.  Andrea or Joan, can you pull

 3   that up?  I -- let's pull that letter up.  Thank you.

 4            We will take a couple-minute break here so we

 5   can make sure the Council can see that.

 6                           (Pause in proceedings.)

 7                 MS. BUMPUS:  Chair Drew, this is Sonia

 8   Bumpus.  I just wanted to mention that when we opened

 9   the public comment period for this extension request,

10   that was closed last week, so if this letter -- the

11   letter that came in related to requesting more time for

12   the adjudication in light of this extension, if it came

13   in yesterday or what have you, it would be past the

14   deadline to submit comments on this particular action.

15                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  If we have a copy of

16   the letter, I'd like it to be put forward for the

17   Council to look at.  Thank you.

18                 MS. BUMPUS:  Sure.

19            Joan and Andrea, do you have access to the

20   letter?

21                 MS. GRANTHAM:  I -- this is Andrea

22   Grantham.  I am currently having issues finding it

23   within the email.

24            Ms. Voelckers, do you know which email you sent

25   it to, if it was maybe to the adjudication group or did
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 1   you have it directly listed as a comment for this item?

 2                 MS. VOELCKERS:  It was submitted to EFSEC

 3   at "efsec.wa.gov" with the adjudication parties cc'd; to

 4   the full service list, including EFSEC Staff.

 5                 MS. BUMPUS:  I think I have located an

 6   email with it.  It looks like --

 7                 MR. MCMAHAN:  Chair Drew --

 8                 MS. BUMPUS:  It looks like it came in

 9   yesterday.

10                 MS. GRANTHAM:  Yes.  I believe I have

11   found it.

12                 MR. MCMAHAN:  Chair Drew, Tim McMahan.  If

13   I could just say something very quickly here concerning

14   this matter?

15                 CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.

16                 MR. MCMAHAN:  We were aware that this

17   letter came in because Scout Clean Energy -- and, by the

18   way, Tim McMahan with Scout Clean Energy.

19            Because we were certainly aware of the cutoff

20   time for the letter, we did not respond.  We didn't

21   think that was in order.  So I would -- I have some

22   concerns with the Council considering this at this point

23   in time.

24                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.

25                 MS. BUMPUS:  All right, Chair Drew.  We
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 1   have the letter up so that the Council can take a look

 2   at this.

 3            And I just wanted to remind the Council --

 4                 CHAIR DREW:  This is an adjudication, and

 5   I read it as an adjudication letter.

 6            May -- can we see the last page, please.

 7            This is an adjudication issue, not an issue

 8   about the extension request, from my review here.  The

 9   extension does not deal with adjudication.  Adjudication

10   is dealt with through Judge Torem and the adjudication

11   process.

12                 MS. BUMPUS:  We just respectfully request

13   the Council be allowed to read the letter that was

14   submitted to the Council.  Thank you.

15                 CHAIR DREW:  We will read it.  It is not

16   germane to the issue of whether or not we have an

17   extension of this project.  It is germane to the

18   adjudication.  It is not germane to the extension

19   request.

20            Council Members, are there questions?

21                 MS. KELLY:  Chair, this is Kate Kelly.

22                 CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.

23                 MS. KELLY:  Just in reading this short

24   letter from Scout Energy, it doesn't really ask for an

25   extension date.  I mean, it says that they extend with
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 1   an expectation of completing the adjudication.  So that

 2   they are asking for an extension through January 31,

 3   2024; is that correct?

 4                 CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  The first paragraph

 5   there.  And they are explaining why they are asking for

 6   that extension request to January 31, 2024.  But that's

 7   the request.  Okay?

 8                 MS. KELLY:  Okay.  Yes.

 9                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

10            Other questions from Council Members?

11                 MR. YOUNG:  Chair Drew, this is Lenny

12   Young.  Does Staff have comments for a recommendation,

13   with respect to Scout's request?

14                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

15                 MS. BUMPUS:  This is Sonia Bumpus, the

16   Director for EFSEC.  And this extension request is an

17   administrative extension.  It basically just allows --

18   which, as the -- as the letter from Scout discusses, it

19   allows EFSEC the time it needs to complete the SEPA

20   review process, to conduct the adjudicative proceedings,

21   and then to deliberate and make the recommendation, and

22   so.

23            Staff's recommendation is that the Council go

24   ahead and approve this extension request.  It's going to

25   allow us to complete our processes so that we can get
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 1   our recommendation package to the Governor, and the hope

 2   is that we would complete that before the January 31,

 3   2024, extension date.

 4                 MR. YOUNG:  Thank you.

 5                 CHAIR DREW:  Are there questions from

 6   Council Members or discussion?

 7                 MS. KELLY:  Chair Drew, this is Kate

 8   Kelly.  I am just trying to understand what is the

 9   consequence if we were to not approve the extension;

10   that extension request?

11                 CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Bumpus?

12                 MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.

13            So when an application is submitted, the

14   applicant provides an initial deposit, and work

15   commences on the review of the application, and all of

16   these different processes I just talked about.

17            If the extension request is not granted,

18   essentially we would cease our review on this

19   application, and the review of this application for site

20   certification would stop, and that would be it.  So

21   by -- so by the -- sorry.

22                 CHAIR DREW:  Other -- go ahead.

23                 MS. BUMPUS:  I was just going to -- I am

24   just going to say that so by extending the request --

25   or, providing this extension, it allows the process to
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 1   continue, and to allow us to complete all of these

 2   different steps that are part of our process that we

 3   need to complete before we can make our recommendation.

 4   But if then the Council were not to extend it, then the

 5   work would cease.

 6                 MS. KELLY:  So -- this is Kate again.

 7            So the adjudication schedule was set with the

 8   assumption that this deadline would be extended by the

 9   Council.

10                 CHAIR DREW:  It would...

11                 MS. BUMPUS:  So -- Chair Drew, do you want

12   me to respond?

13                 CHAIR DREW:  Please.  Yes.  Thank you.

14                 MS. BUMPUS:  Well, so the extension -- the

15   adjudication was scheduled, based off what steps

16   remained left to be completed.  We knew that we would

17   likely need an extension, but -- in order to complete

18   adjudication, but the question was, we also knew that we

19   were going to need time to complete the final

20   environmental impact statement, and so.  You know, our

21   goal is to not do multiple extensions if we don't need

22   to do that, so what we did was, we worked with Scout on

23   drafting and finalizing a schedule for the final

24   environmental impact statement, and that helped to

25   inform this extension request here, in hopes that we
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 1   would not be having to do multiple.  You know.  For

 2   instance, having to do another one right after

 3   adjudication; doing another one perhaps after the final

 4   environmental impact statement.  So by trying to

 5   synchronize the schedules that were set for adjudication

 6   and what is estimated for the final environmental impact

 7   statement, we think we have got an extension request

 8   that captures, you know, the time needed to complete the

 9   full process.

10            Now, Council Member Kelly, I would add, though,

11   that it's possible we would need more time, but we don't

12   anticipate that at this point.

13                 CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Bumpus, can you describe

14   the steps that take place after adjudication?

15                 MS. BUMPUS:  Well, there is quite a bit

16   that goes into it.  One of the things that will occur

17   after the adjudication is that the applicant will have

18   an opportunity to submit a final application for site

19   certification.  Well, I should say, rather, a revised or

20   updated application for site certification.  This

21   typically reflects things that were proffered through

22   the adjudicative proceeding.  And so we would get an

23   updated application for site certification.  That

24   information --

25                 CHAIR DREW:  And what is -- can you say
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 1   what the time frame is for that updated application

 2   after the adjudication?

 3                 MS. BUMPUS:  Off the top of my head, I

 4   believe it's 60 days.  I believe our rules say 60 days

 5   is their deadline.  Within 60 days of ending the

 6   adjudicative proceeding, the applicant must submit an

 7   updated application for site certification.  I'd want to

 8   double-check it, but I believe it's 60 days.

 9            And so after that occurs -- or, I should say,

10   concurrently, you know, as that is happening, the

11   Council would be working with our Administrative Law

12   Judge to prepare Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

13   which are based off the adjudicative proceeding.  And

14   then once the application for site certification that's

15   been updated is received, the Staff will take a look at

16   that.  It will also be shared with the public and the

17   Council, posted to our website, et cetera, and we will

18   look at that to see if there is anything in the final

19   environmental impact statement that may need to be

20   tweaked or, you know, edited in some way to reflect

21   anything.

22            Usually, and historically, there is not, you

23   know, vast differences between the original application

24   and the application that follows adjudication, but every

25   project is different.  And so after those processes are
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 1   completed.  The Council would have the final

 2   environmental impact statement completed, they would

 3   take some time to review that, and then there would be

 4   an opportunity to deliberate on the full record, which

 5   would be everything from the adjudicative proceeding,

 6   the final environmental impact statement, and anything

 7   that came in through tribal government to government

 8   consultation.  And after that, a recommendation would be

 9   made to the Governor.

10            I am -- I am, you know, just very high level.

11   There is a lot more to it.  But those are sort of the

12   big highlights.

13                 CHAIR DREW:  Other questions from Council

14   Members?

15            Or, Ms. Kelly, does that answer your question?

16                 MS. KELLY:  That did.  Thank you for that

17   detail.

18                 CHAIR DREW:  Is there a motion on the

19   extension request?

20                 MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.  I will

21   move that the Council approve the extension request with

22   the date of January 31, 2024.

23                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

24            Is there a second?

25                 MR. SANDISON:  Derek Sandison.  Second.
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 1                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 2            All those in favor, please -- any more

 3   discussion, I should say?  Is there any discussion about

 4   this item?  We have had a lot of information.  Do

 5   Council Members have comments?

 6                 MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey Brewster

 7   again.  Yeah, this is quite a project and quite a

 8   process that takes a lot of time and energy, and I

 9   appreciate all the information and all the hard work

10   Staff has done.  And I think the extra time will

11   definitely give us the opportunity to fully assess the

12   project.

13                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

14            Mr. Young?

15                 MR. YOUNG:  Would it be fair to say that

16   irrespective of Scout's request, that EFSEC Staff would

17   need more time to conduct the process to its conclusion?

18                 CHAIR DREW:  So yes.  The issue is how our

19   law is structured.

20            Ms. Bumpus, do you want to -- so it says that

21   an extension is agreed to by the applicant and EFSEC.

22   Is that correct, Ms. Bumpus?

23                 MS. BUMPUS:  Correct.

24                 CHAIR DREW:  And so in order to do that,

25   the Staff and the applicant work together, the Staff
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 1   knowing all the pieces that need to come together, the

 2   applicant also understanding that, to put forward an

 3   extension request, which, although I know there are

 4   people who have a lot of concern about extension

 5   requests, are -- actually happen with most of our

 6   projects that are complex.

 7            Because of the amount of review that this one

 8   takes, I believe that we very much need this extension,

 9   and yes, Mr. Young, because we need it for the

10   completion of the EIS, we need it for the adjudication,

11   we need it for the steps after adjudication, and for all

12   of that to come together so that the Council has time to

13   deliberate before we make a recommendation to the

14   Governor.  So yes, for all of those reasons.

15                 MR. YOUNG:  Thank you.

16                 MS. KELLY:  Chair, this is Kate Kelly.

17                 CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead, Ms. Kelly.  Yeah.

18                 MS. KELLY:  In reading that RCW which is

19   cited in the -- Scout's letter, I -- you know, it works

20   in the favor of the Council -- it seems to work in the

21   favor of the Council to agree -- mutually agree to this

22   extension with this applicant, just as a matter of due

23   diligence, and -- and again, and also the complexity of

24   the project.

25            I will just say that with regard to public
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 1   comment that may have been or -- or attempted to be

 2   submitted on this, I -- it's just -- it's just so

 3   terribly important that we have an opportunity to hear

 4   from the public, so, as this project goes through the

 5   process, and I know there is processes for that, but

 6   just want to make the point that that's an important

 7   role for us as Council Members, is, to be part of that

 8   dialog with community and others who have an interest in

 9   this, so you'd hope that we can continue that.

10            Another point is, on the subject of the

11   schedule and the steps that Sonia just went through,

12   I -- the more communication we can get as Council

13   Members on what the schedule -- what we should be

14   anticipating and what work -- you know, review processes

15   will be upcoming would be very helpful for us as

16   part-time Council Members and real-time State employees,

17   so thank you for that.

18                 CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  And as -- this is truly

19   an administrative allowance as long as it's -- you know,

20   we do take public comment on it.  We have a parallel

21   process.  That extending the time frame for the project

22   doesn't rule on the adjudication.  The adjudication

23   is -- we have Judge Adam Torem who will be answering on

24   behalf of the Council that -- those schedules, requests,

25   and we can provide you with more information on that, as
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 1   well.  So.  I think that is part of the confusion, if

 2   you will, for the subject of today's meeting since this

 3   is about the extension of the project, it is not about

 4   the adjudication.

 5            Are there more comments by Council Members?

 6            Hearing none, all those in favor of approving

 7   the extension request, please say "aye."

 8                 MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 9                 CHAIR DREW:  All those opposed?

10            Motion carries.

11            Thank you.  Thank you for the robust

12   discussion.

13            Moving on to the Badger Mountain Solar Energy

14   Project update.

15                 MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and

16   good afternoon, Council Members.  For the record, this

17   is Joanne Snarski.

18            On June 19, 2023, we received responses to our

19   third data request and also an update to the Badger

20   Mountain grass pellet survey from the springs field

21   work.  The applicant has also submitted a revised draft

22   of the cultural resources survey which is currently

23   under review by our contracted agencies and

24   participating tribal nations.  We anticipate their

25   feedback by the second week of July.  The information
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 1   provided in response to these data requests shall be

 2   used to support the development of the draft

 3   environmental impact statement that is currently

 4   in-progress.

 5            Are there any questions?

 6                 CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions?

 7            Hearing none, thank you.

 8            Moving on to -- I turned my mic off.  Okay.

 9            Moving on to the Wautoma Solar Project update;

10   Mr. Caputo.

11                 MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and

12   Council Members.  This one should be pretty

13   straightforward.

14            On June 1st of this year, the Council received

15   a request for a five-month extension of the application

16   review date.  As you will recall, on June 9th, at a

17   special Council meeting, the Council granted this

18   request.  The applicant is performing additional culture

19   resource field surveys as requested by EFSEC Staff in

20   order to complete our SEPA threshold determination.

21            I am available for questions.

22                 CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?

23            Thank you.

24            Moving on to the Hop Hill Solar Project update;

25   Mr. Barnes.
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 1                 MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and

 2   Council Members.  For the record, this is John Barnes,

 3   EFSEC Staff, for the Hop Hill application update for

 4   May.

 5            We received additional materials from Brett

 6   Knight, the applicant, a revised cultural resource

 7   report which is being reviewed by Council Staff in

 8   coordination with the Washington Department of

 9   Archaeological and Historic Preservation.  We have also

10   received updated project production information from the

11   applicant.  These revisions include clarifications to

12   the MWDC generating capacity and percentage of the AC

13   capacity factor.  This updated information can be found

14   on the Hop Hill Project page on the EFSEC website.

15            We are continuing to coordinate and review the

16   application with our contractor, contracted agencies,

17   and tribal governments.

18            Are there any -- or, there are no updates to

19   report on.  No further updates to report on.

20            Are there any questions?

21                 CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions for

22   Mr. Barnes?

23            Thank you for your update.

24            Moving on to the Carriger Solar Project update;

25   Ms. Snarski.
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 1                 MS. SNARSKI:  Thanks again, Chair Drew.

 2   Again, this is Joanne Snarski.

 3            As you will recall, on June 9, 2023, the

 4   Council held a special meeting and voted to extend the

 5   time line for a decision on whether or not to grant

 6   expedited review.  Extension extends that decision

 7   through August 17, 2023.

 8            On June 16, 2023, we received responses to our

 9   first data request for supplemental information on the

10   proposed Carriger Solar Facility.  The information we

11   received is assisting us in completing our State

12   Environmental Policy Act threshold determination for

13   this project.

14            Following the May 16th land use hearing for the

15   proposed facility, Staff supported the development of

16   the legal brief on the land use consistency the Council

17   has received from our Assistant Attorney General, Jon

18   Thompson.  The legal brief is intended to provide

19   Council Members legal context for your discussion on the

20   project's consistency with local, County, and regional

21   land use ordinances and codes for the forthcoming land

22   use consistency determination.

23            At this time, EFSEC Staff would like to request

24   that the Council direct Staff coordinate with the

25   Administrative Law Judge to prepare a land use
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 1   consistency order to then be brought to the Council for

 2   deliberation and potentially for Council action at the

 3   August Council meeting.

 4            Are there any questions?

 5                 CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions?

 6            Council Members, so the process for this is

 7   that we would ask the Staff to work with the

 8   Administrative Law Judge to prepare a land use

 9   consistency order.  I believe we are expecting to get

10   that before the August meeting.  We will ask for public

11   comment about land use consistency.  We have already had

12   a hearing on land use consistency, but we will take

13   additional written comments before that meeting, and

14   then we will have those comments from the public.  The

15   order will be shared with the Council Members to review

16   before the meeting, and then we would make a decision on

17   the land use consistency order.

18            Are there questions about that?

19                 MR. CHILES:  Chair Drew, this is Matt

20   Chiles.  So we are not voting on the consistency at this

21   point; it won't be until August, if I am reading things

22   correctly?

23                 CHAIR DREW:  Correct.  What we would be

24   doing at this point would be directing the Staff to work

25   with the Administrative Law Judge to prepare that
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 1   consistency order.

 2            So what we are saying is, is the Staff

 3   recommending that they work with the Administrative Law

 4   Judge to prepare a land use consistency order?

 5   Ms. Snarski?

 6                 MS. SNARSKI:  Yes.  That's correct.

 7                 CHAIR DREW:  But we are not deciding that

 8   until the August meeting, but we are asking for the

 9   order to be drawn-up and drafted.

10            Does that answer your question?  And it would

11   be for consistency, Mr. Chiles.

12                 MR. CHILES:  Yes, that answers my

13   question, I believe.  So basically, we are asking for

14   the Staff to draw something so we are ready for August,

15   correct?

16                 CHAIR DREW:  And we are asking for that to

17   be an order of consistency, land use consistency.  Okay?

18                 MR. CHILES:  Okay.  I have some things

19   where I do not believe it's consistent.  Does that need

20   to wait until August, or should I be in discussions with

21   the Staff at this point?  I have read the Attorney

22   General's report, and there are a couple things that I

23   do not believe they are interpreting properly.  So if

24   the Staff's report is going to be to basically do what

25   the Attorney General said, then I am not going to be
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 1   voting for it in August.  So that's my knowledge at this

 2   point, although obviously today is not the voting point.

 3   So --

 4                 CHAIR DREW:  Correct.

 5                 MR. CHILES:  -- my question is, do my

 6   concerns with -- would now be a good time for me to be

 7   directing those concerns to the Staff or the

 8   Administrative Law Judge or should I be waiting until

 9   the August when we have discussion on that?

10                 CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  I see our -- one of

11   our Assistant AGs, Jenna Slocum, will comment on that.

12            Go ahead.

13                 MS. SLOCUM:  Hi.  I worked with Jon in

14   preparing this memo.  And I wanted to say that, first, I

15   mean, I definitely want to hear from ALJ Larripa on this

16   and how he sees this process, but from our side, we

17   would very much like to have your input now, Council

18   Member Chiles.  It would be very helpful for us in

19   preparing this, working with Staff, working with the

20   ALJ, and working through this.  I think, for the vote,

21   you know, that will come at the August time line, but

22   getting this -- this hashed out now would be very

23   important.

24                 MR. CHILES:  Thank you.  By "now," do you

25   mean you want the input right now at the meeting or
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 1   should I contact you later in the week?

 2                 MS. SLOCUM:  Right.  I meant later in the

 3   week.  I think we are going to be working on this for

 4   the next month, two months, something like that, so we

 5   will have plenty of time, but right.  I mean, if you

 6   have questions right now, we can go into it.  It might

 7   be helpful with the Council there.  Or you could reach

 8   out to us separately; that would be great.  Thank you.

 9                 MR. CHILES:  I think it will be just fine

10   for me to reach out to you separately.

11                 MS. SLOCUM:  Okay.

12                 MR. CHILES:  So I will do that.  Thank you

13   very much.

14                 MS. SLOCUM:  Yeah.  Thank you.

15                 CHAIR DREW:  If any Council Members do

16   have questions about the memo from the Attorney General,

17   please reach out to either Ms. Slocum or Mr. Thompson,

18   and they can answer your questions; provide additional

19   information.  And we will have robust conversation about

20   that.  You will get the land use consistency order

21   before the meeting to review.  So that will be coming

22   later.

23            Are there additional questions?

24            Okay.  All those in favor of -- oh, wait.  I

25   need a motion.
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 1            Okay.  Is there a motion to direct Staff to

 2   coordinate with our Administrative Law Judge and Staff

 3   to coordinate -- which includes our Attorney General's

 4   Staff to coordinate with the Administrative Law Judge,

 5   to prepare a land use consistency order to be brought to

 6   the Council for deliberation and potentially for Council

 7   action at the August Council meeting.

 8                 MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.

 9                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

10            A second?

11                 MR. LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Second.

12                 CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

13            Any further discussion?

14                 MS. KELLY:  Chair, this is Kate Kelly.

15   And I have read the memo a couple times, and I -- the --

16   there -- the possibility exists that we can find land

17   use consistency with some of the -- part of the site and

18   not with -- because there is three different zones

19   implicated.

20                 CHAIR DREW:  Yes.

21                 MS. KELLY:  Is that correct?  Is there --

22   maybe that's something I should follow-up with the Staff

23   after, but.

24                 CHAIR DREW:  I think it would be good to

25   follow-up because the Council has precedent on what
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 1   consistency is.

 2            Ms. Slocum, would you like to comment on what

 3   our determination of consistency is based on?

 4                 MS. SLOCUM:  Sure.

 5            So we look at past precedents, or past cases,

 6   past decisions that the Council has issued.  And in this

 7   case, there is a Columbia Solar, is the name of the

 8   case, where they explained the test for whether or not

 9   it's consistent.  So in this memo, what we were looking

10   at was whether or not this specific case in Klickitat

11   County fit with the tests previously established, so

12   whether, at the time of application, the facility was

13   consistent/in compliance with the land use plans and

14   zoning ordinances, and then specifically at what

15   constitutes land use plans and zoning ordinances, and

16   then the -- go through -- and then the test being

17   whether the pertinent local land use provisions

18   expressly prohibit, or, by operation, clearly,

19   convincingly, and unequivocally prohibit this type of

20   use, so if it can be permitted through some type of

21   separate conditional use permit or provision or the

22   moratorium is only a short-term suspension rather than

23   an outright prohibition.

24            According to the Council's precedent, that

25   would mean that it's still consistent with land use.

0053

 1   And I think, in this case, we have got, you're right,

 2   three overlapping zones.  I think two of them are

 3   overlapping, and then all of it is within the energy

 4   overlay zone.  So you have got these two -- you have got

 5   the extensive agriculture and the general rural zone,

 6   and then about two-thirds of it also falls within the

 7   energy overlay zone.  So we looked at each three of --

 8   each of those separately and tried to see how those

 9   would fit under the test.  And none of them, as far as

10   we could tell, have an outright prohibition, so.  I

11   mean, I definitely want to hear from Council Member

12   Chiles on how he would interpret this, but as far as we

13   looked at this from precedent from the Council, this

14   would fall within the previous decision in Columbia

15   Solar for finding that it is consistent.

16                 CHAIR DREW:  Does that answer your

17   question, Ms. Kelly?

18                 MS. KELLY:  Yes.  Thank you.

19            Thanks for that explanation, Jen.

20                 MS. SLOCUM:  M-hmm.

21                 CHAIR DREW:  Are there any other questions

22   from Council Members?

23                 MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey Brewster.

24   So just to get this clear in my head, so.  With the

25   precedent set prior and consistency doesn't necessarily

0054

 1   mean approved.  There is still a process for the

 2   conditional use permit coming; is that right?

 3                 MS. SLOCUM:  Yes.  Absolutely.  Yes.

 4   Right.

 5                 MS. BREWSTER:  Thanks.

 6                 CHAIR DREW:  Our consistency test has a

 7   threshold of, is it prohibited, and that's how the

 8   Council has made its decision prior to now.

 9            Any other questions or comments?

10            Okay.  We have a motion in front of us.  All

11   those in favor of directing the Staff to coordinate with

12   the Administrative Law Judge to prepare a land use

13   consistency order to be brought before the Council for

14   deliberation and potential action at the August Council

15   meeting, please say "aye."

16                 MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

17                 CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

18            Motion carries.  Thank you.

19            That concludes our agenda for today.  Thank

20   you, all.  There were many complex issues before us.

21   Or, not many, but a few.  I appreciate the conversation,

22   the questions, and the comments.  And our business is

23   concluded.  The meeting is adjourned.

24                           (The meeting was adjourned at

25                            2:42 p.m.)
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		240						LN		8		15		false		         15        the Counsel for the Environment?				false

		241						LN		8		16		false		         16                      MS. RANDOLPH:  Yes.  Sara Randolph				false

		242						LN		8		17		false		         17        present.				false

		243						LN		8		18		false		         18                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.				false

		244						LN		8		19		false		         19                 Chair, there is a quorum for the regular				false

		245						LN		8		20		false		         20        council, Horse Heaven council, Badger Mountain council,				false

		246						LN		8		21		false		         21        Wautoma Solar council, Hop Hill council, and Carriger				false

		247						LN		8		22		false		         22        Solar council.  Thank you.				false

		248						LN		8		23		false		         23                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		249						LN		8		24		false		         24                 You Council Members see the proposed agenda in				false

		250						LN		8		25		false		         25        front of us.  Is there a motion to adopt the proposed				false

		251						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		252						LN		9		1		false		          1        agenda?				false

		253						LN		9		2		false		          2                      MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.				false

		254						LN		9		3		false		          3                      CHAIR DREW:  Second?				false

		255						LN		9		4		false		          4                      MR. LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Second.				false

		256						LN		9		5		false		          5                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		257						LN		9		6		false		          6                 Any discussion?				false

		258						LN		9		7		false		          7                 All those in favor, say "aye."				false

		259						LN		9		8		false		          8                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		260						LN		9		9		false		          9                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		261						LN		9		10		false		         10                 Agenda is adopted.				false

		262						LN		9		11		false		         11                 Moving on to the meeting minutes.  We have two				false

		263						LN		9		12		false		         12        sets of meeting minutes in front of us, one from the				false

		264						LN		9		13		false		         13        May 16th Carriger Solar land use hearing minutes and one				false

		265						LN		9		14		false		         14        from the May 17th monthly meeting minutes.				false

		266						LN		9		15		false		         15                 Bringing the May 16th Carriger Solar land use				false

		267						LN		9		16		false		         16        hearing minutes in front of us.  Is there a motion to				false

		268						LN		9		17		false		         17        approve the minutes?				false

		269						LN		9		18		false		         18                      MR. CHILES:  Matt Chiles.  So moved.				false

		270						LN		9		19		false		         19                      CHAIR DREW:  Second?				false

		271						LN		9		20		false		         20                      THE WITNESS:  Stacey Brewster.  Second.				false

		272						LN		9		21		false		         21                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Chair Drew, really quick.				false

		273						LN		9		22		false		         22        Apologies.  I did not get the minutes into the Council				false

		274						LN		9		23		false		         23        packet somehow, so I will be pulling them up briefly.				false

		275						LN		9		24		false		         24                      CHAIR DREW:  Oh, okay.				false

		276						LN		9		25		false		         25                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Apologies.				false

		277						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		278						LN		10		1		false		          1                      CHAIR DREW:  I don't have -- no worries.				false

		279						LN		10		2		false		          2        I have no corrections.  I don't know if anyone else				false

		280						LN		10		3		false		          3        does.				false

		281						LN		10		4		false		          4                 Does anyone have corrections?				false

		282						LN		10		5		false		          5                 Hearing none, let's just take a vote on				false

		283						LN		10		6		false		          6        approving the May 16th Carriger Solar land use hearing				false

		284						LN		10		7		false		          7        minutes.  All those in favor of approval, say "aye."				false

		285						LN		10		8		false		          8                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		286						LN		10		9		false		          9                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		287						LN		10		10		false		         10                 The motion carries.				false

		288						LN		10		11		false		         11                 Moving on to the May 17th monthly meeting				false

		289						LN		10		12		false		         12        minutes.  Is there a motion to approve the minutes?				false

		290						LN		10		13		false		         13                      MS. KELLY:  Kate Kelly.  Move to approve.				false

		291						LN		10		14		false		         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		292						LN		10		15		false		         15                 Second?				false

		293						LN		10		16		false		         16                      MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.				false

		294						LN		10		17		false		         17                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		295						LN		10		18		false		         18                 I only have one correction that I saw.				false

		296						LN		10		19		false		         19                 There is feedback.  Whoever is -- has their				false

		297						LN		10		20		false		         20        mike open, please turn that off.  I'd appreciate it.				false

		298						LN		10		21		false		         21        Thank you.				false

		299						LN		10		22		false		         22                 The only correction I found was on page 14,				false

		300						LN		10		23		false		         23        line 15.  The word "rider," r-i-d-e-r, should be				false

		301						LN		10		24		false		         24        "writer," w-r-i-t-e-r.				false

		302						LN		10		25		false		         25                 Are there any other corrections?				false

		303						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		304						LN		11		1		false		          1                 Hearing none, all those in favor of approving				false

		305						LN		11		2		false		          2        the May 17th monthly meeting minutes as amended, please				false

		306						LN		11		3		false		          3        say "aye."				false

		307						LN		11		4		false		          4                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		308						LN		11		5		false		          5                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		309						LN		11		6		false		          6                 Meeting minutes are approved.				false

		310						LN		11		7		false		          7                 Moving on to our operational updates.  Kittitas				false

		311						LN		11		8		false		          8        Valley Wind Project; Eric Melbardis.				false

		312						LN		11		9		false		          9                      MR. MELBARDIS:  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		313						LN		11		10		false		         10        Drew, EFSEC Council, and Staff.  This is Eric Melbardis				false

		314						LN		11		11		false		         11        with EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wind Power				false

		315						LN		11		12		false		         12        Project.  I have nothing nonroutine to report.				false

		316						LN		11		13		false		         13                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		317						LN		11		14		false		         14                 Wild Horse Wind Power Project; Ms. Randolph.				false

		318						LN		11		15		false		         15                      MS. RANDOLPH:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,				false

		319						LN		11		16		false		         16        Council Members, and Staff.  For the record, this is				false

		320						LN		11		17		false		         17        Sara Randolph, Site Specialist for Wild Horse Facility.				false

		321						LN		11		18		false		         18        The facility update is provided in your packet.  There				false

		322						LN		11		19		false		         19        are no nonroutine updates to report.				false

		323						LN		11		20		false		         20                 Are there any questions?				false

		324						LN		11		21		false		         21                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Chehalis				false

		325						LN		11		22		false		         22        Generation Facility; Jeremy Smith.				false

		326						LN		11		23		false		         23                      MR. SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,				false

		327						LN		11		24		false		         24        Council, and EFSEC Staff.  I am Jeremy Smith, the				false

		328						LN		11		25		false		         25        Maintenance Manager at the Chehalis Generation Facility.				false

		329						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		330						LN		12		1		false		          1        The only -- we only have one nonroutine thing.  The				false

		331						LN		12		2		false		          2        plant manager has recently resigned the position, and we				false

		332						LN		12		3		false		          3        are proceeding forward with filling our position.				false

		333						LN		12		4		false		          4                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Good luck with				false

		334						LN		12		5		false		          5        the search.				false

		335						LN		12		6		false		          6                 Moving on to Grays Harbor Energy Center;				false

		336						LN		12		7		false		          7        Ms. Randolph.				false

		337						LN		12		8		false		          8                      MS. RANDOLPH:  Chair Drew, Council				false

		338						LN		12		9		false		          9        Members, and Staff, the facility update is provided in				false

		339						LN		12		10		false		         10        your packet.  There are no nonroutine items to report.				false

		340						LN		12		11		false		         11                 Are there any questions?				false

		341						LN		12		12		false		         12                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		342						LN		12		13		false		         13                 Columbia Solar.  Is Mr. Cushing there or are --				false

		343						LN		12		14		false		         14        Ms. Randolph?				false

		344						LN		12		15		false		         15                 It looks like there are no nonroutine items to				false

		345						LN		12		16		false		         16        report there, as well.				false

		346						LN		12		17		false		         17                 Moving on to Columbia Generating Station;				false

		347						LN		12		18		false		         18        Ms. Ramos.				false

		348						LN		12		19		false		         19                      MS. RAMOS:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,				false

		349						LN		12		20		false		         20        EFSEC Council, and Staff.  For the record, this is Mary				false

		350						LN		12		21		false		         21        Ramos with Energy Northwest.  I do have with me in the				false

		351						LN		12		22		false		         22        room Marshall Schmitt and then also Felicia Najera-Paxon				false

		352						LN		12		23		false		         23        of Energy Northwest, as well.				false

		353						LN		12		24		false		         24                 For WNP 1 and 4, I do not have any nonroutine				false

		354						LN		12		25		false		         25        items to report.  I do have one item to report for				false

		355						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		356						LN		13		1		false		          1        Columbia Generating Station.				false

		357						LN		13		2		false		          2                 For Columbia Generating Station, on Tuesday,				false

		358						LN		13		3		false		          3        June 13th, when Columbia Generating Station was shut				false

		359						LN		13		4		false		          4        down for our refueling and maintenance outage, the				false

		360						LN		13		5		false		          5        facility experienced an unintended loss of no more than				false

		361						LN		13		6		false		          6        300 gallons of oil from the turbine oil heat exchanger				false

		362						LN		13		7		false		          7        when a tube failed during routine maintenance.  The oil,				false

		363						LN		13		8		false		          8        which is labeled Mobil DTE 732, is not hazardous,				false

		364						LN		13		9		false		          9        according to the safety data sheet for the product.  The				false

		365						LN		13		10		false		         10        oil was lost at a site cooling system which consists of				false

		366						LN		13		11		false		         11        six cooling towers, an intake structure in the river,				false

		367						LN		13		12		false		         12        and a discharge pipe to the Columbia River.  The				false

		368						LN		13		13		false		         13        discharge, also termed a blowdown, is authorized by a				false

		369						LN		13		14		false		         14        national pollutant discharge elimination system permit				false

		370						LN		13		15		false		         15        which has been issued by EFSEC to Energy Northwest.				false

		371						LN		13		16		false		         16                 Once the failure was identified, the				false

		372						LN		13		17		false		         17        circulating water system was immediately isolated and				false

		373						LN		13		18		false		         18        discharge to the Columbia River ceased.  Energy				false

		374						LN		13		19		false		         19        Northwest notified the U.S. Coast Guard, Washington				false

		375						LN		13		20		false		         20        State Emergency Management Division, and EFSEC of the				false

		376						LN		13		21		false		         21        potential discharge for the river on the day that it was				false

		377						LN		13		22		false		         22        identified, which was June 13th.  Washington State				false

		378						LN		13		23		false		         23        Department of Ecology and Energy Northwest conducted				false

		379						LN		13		24		false		         24        independent visual observations of the Columbia River				false

		380						LN		13		25		false		         25        near the Columbia Generating Station discharge outfall				false

		381						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		382						LN		14		1		false		          1        on June 13th and confirmed no visible oil sheen observed				false

		383						LN		14		2		false		          2        on the Columbia River.				false

		384						LN		14		3		false		          3                 Energy Northwest immediately worked with				false

		385						LN		14		4		false		          4        GrayMar Environmental Services, an approved and licensed				false

		386						LN		14		5		false		          5        environmental services company, to remove oil from the				false

		387						LN		14		6		false		          6        cooling water system.  GrayMar assessed the cooling				false

		388						LN		14		7		false		          7        water system on the morning of June 14th to assess and				false

		389						LN		14		8		false		          8        develop a cleanup strategy.  GrayMar began work to				false

		390						LN		14		9		false		          9        remove oil from the cooling water system using absorbent				false

		391						LN		14		10		false		         10        materials the morning of June 15th.				false

		392						LN		14		11		false		         11                 I apologize.  There is a plant announcement.				false

		393						LN		14		12		false		         12                      CHAIR DREW:  I am sorry, there is trouble				false

		394						LN		14		13		false		         13        with the audio.				false

		395						LN		14		14		false		         14                 Go ahead.				false

		396						LN		14		15		false		         15                      MS. RAMOS:  I apologize for that				false

		397						LN		14		16		false		         16        interruption.  There was a plant announcement, and I had				false

		398						LN		14		17		false		         17        to go on mute.  So I will continue.				false

		399						LN		14		18		false		         18                 So like I was saying, GrayMar assessed the				false

		400						LN		14		19		false		         19        cooling water system on June 14th to assist in				false

		401						LN		14		20		false		         20        developing a cleanup strategy.  GrayMar began work to				false

		402						LN		14		21		false		         21        remove oil from the cooling water system using absorbent				false

		403						LN		14		22		false		         22        materials the morning of June 15th.				false

		404						LN		14		23		false		         23                 This strategy for -- used for removing oil has				false

		405						LN		14		24		false		         24        been very effective.  As of June 20th, approximately 137				false

		406						LN		14		25		false		         25        gallons of oil had been recovered, and this estimate is				false

		407						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		408						LN		15		1		false		          1        based on the weight of oil-soaked absorbent materials.				false

		409						LN		15		2		false		          2                 As of today, no oil sheen is visible on the				false

		410						LN		15		3		false		          3        circulating water system, based on visual observation.				false

		411						LN		15		4		false		          4        However, as a precautionary measure, absorbent materials				false

		412						LN		15		5		false		          5        to remove oil from the circulating water remain in place				false

		413						LN		15		6		false		          6        and continue to be monitored.				false

		414						LN		15		7		false		          7                 In addition, Energy Northwest worked with				false

		415						LN		15		8		false		          8        Washington State Department of Ecology, GrayMar, and				false

		416						LN		15		9		false		          9        EFSEC to develop and implement a pollution prevention				false

		417						LN		15		10		false		         10        strategy for restoring blowdowns; in other words,				false

		418						LN		15		11		false		         11        discharge of circulating cooling water to the Columbia				false

		419						LN		15		12		false		         12        River.  On June 20th, absorbent booms were strategically				false

		420						LN		15		13		false		         13        placed downstream of the outfall, based on river flow				false

		421						LN		15		14		false		         14        and conditions.  Blowdown was restarted on June 20th at				false

		422						LN		15		15		false		         15        approximately 10:51 a.m. for about eight hours.  During				false

		423						LN		15		16		false		         16        the discharge period, GrayMar, Ecology, and Energy				false

		424						LN		15		17		false		         17        Northwest were on boats on the river near the outfall to				false

		425						LN		15		18		false		         18        visually monitor for oil sheens.  In addition, drones				false

		426						LN		15		19		false		         19        were used to support the river monitoring.  No visible				false

		427						LN		15		20		false		         20        oil sheen was observed by boat or drone.				false

		428						LN		15		21		false		         21                 Energy Northwest has been providing frequent				false

		429						LN		15		22		false		         22        updates to Ecology and EFSEC on the status of the oil				false

		430						LN		15		23		false		         23        recovery and during the planned restoration, a blowdown				false

		431						LN		15		24		false		         24        on June 20th.  Communications with Ecology and EFSEC				false

		432						LN		15		25		false		         25        continue to work -- continue as the work progresses.				false

		433						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		434						LN		16		1		false		          1        And I do want to add that Energy Northwest sincerely				false

		435						LN		16		2		false		          2        appreciates the collaboration and ongoing communications				false

		436						LN		16		3		false		          3        with EFSEC and Ecology on this incident.				false

		437						LN		16		4		false		          4                 That's all I have to report.				false

		438						LN		16		5		false		          5                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you for your update.				false

		439						LN		16		6		false		          6                 Are there questions from Council Members?				false

		440						LN		16		7		false		          7                      MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey Brewster.				false

		441						LN		16		8		false		          8        Just a quick question.  I am wondering what will the				false

		442						LN		16		9		false		          9        variables be to determine that cleanup is complete?				false

		443						LN		16		10		false		         10                      MS. RAMOS:  Yes.  This is Mary Ramos				false

		444						LN		16		11		false		         11        again.  So we are continuing communication on the				false

		445						LN		16		12		false		         12        progress with EFSEC and Ecology.  I am happy to report				false

		446						LN		16		13		false		         13        that as of today, there is no visible oil sheen on our				false

		447						LN		16		14		false		         14        circulating water system.				false

		448						LN		16		15		false		         15                 As far as duration of monitoring in the river,				false

		449						LN		16		16		false		         16        we are continuing those discussions with EFSEC and				false

		450						LN		16		17		false		         17        Ecology, and we have another meeting scheduled at 4:00				false

		451						LN		16		18		false		         18        p.m. this afternoon.				false

		452						LN		16		19		false		         19                 Does that help answer your question?				false

		453						LN		16		20		false		         20                      MS. BREWSTER:  Yes.  Thank you.				false

		454						LN		16		21		false		         21                      MS. RAMOS:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		455						LN		16		22		false		         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Other questions from Council				false

		456						LN		16		23		false		         23        Members?				false

		457						LN		16		24		false		         24                      MR. YOUNG:  Chair Drew, this is Lenny				false

		458						LN		16		25		false		         25        Young.  I have a question.				false

		459						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		460						LN		17		1		false		          1                      CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  Go ahead.				false

		461						LN		17		2		false		          2                      MR. YOUNG:  I think you mentioned that 137				false

		462						LN		17		3		false		          3        pounds of oil has been recovered so far from the				false

		463						LN		17		4		false		          4        absorbent materials; is that correct?				false

		464						LN		17		5		false		          5                      MS. RAMOS:  137 gallons of oil, that				false

		465						LN		17		6		false		          6        was --				false

		466						LN		17		7		false		          7                      MR. YOUNG:  Okay.				false

		467						LN		17		8		false		          8                      MS. RAMOS:  -- an estimate based on				false

		468						LN		17		9		false		          9        yesterday, and it's based on the weight of the				false

		469						LN		17		10		false		         10        oil-soaked absorbent materials that we have gathered so				false

		470						LN		17		11		false		         11        far.				false

		471						LN		17		12		false		         12                      MR. YOUNG:  Okay.				false

		472						LN		17		13		false		         13                      MS. RAMOS:  Those absorbent materials				false

		473						LN		17		14		false		         14        do -- are -- continue to be in place to recover as much				false

		474						LN		17		15		false		         15        oil as possible from our circulating water system.				false

		475						LN		17		16		false		         16                      MR. YOUNG:  So roughly, a little less than				false

		476						LN		17		17		false		         17        half the oil has been recovered?				false

		477						LN		17		18		false		         18                      MS. RAMOS:  That's correct.  And I do want				false

		478						LN		17		19		false		         19        to emphasize that the 300 gallons is a very conservative				false

		479						LN		17		20		false		         20        maximum potential release.				false

		480						LN		17		21		false		         21                      MR. YOUNG:  Understood.  Thank you.				false

		481						LN		17		22		false		         22                      MS. RAMOS:  Thank you.				false

		482						LN		17		23		false		         23                      CHAIR DREW:  Other questions from Council				false

		483						LN		17		24		false		         24        Members?				false

		484						LN		17		25		false		         25                 Well, we will continue to look forward to				false

		485						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		486						LN		18		1		false		          1        updates from you.  Thank everybody for their response				false

		487						LN		18		2		false		          2        during this effort, and appreciate your ability to give				false

		488						LN		18		3		false		          3        us this complete report today.  Thank you.				false

		489						LN		18		4		false		          4                 Moving on to Goose Prairie Solar Project				false

		490						LN		18		5		false		          5        update.  Mr. Burttschell, welcome.  I don't know that we				false

		491						LN		18		6		false		          6        have heard from you before.				false

		492						LN		18		7		false		          7                      MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Hi.  No, this is my				false

		493						LN		18		8		false		          8        first meeting, so apologies if this isn't how it				false

		494						LN		18		9		false		          9        normally goes, but.  Should I just go ahead and read off				false

		495						LN		18		10		false		         10        of the tick list or update form?  I mean --				false

		496						LN		18		11		false		         11                      CHAIR DREW:  Just provide us -- just --				false

		497						LN		18		12		false		         12        and you're just undergoing construction, so just give us				false

		498						LN		18		13		false		         13        an overview of what's happening and what you expect is				false

		499						LN		18		14		false		         14        next, and you can keep it short.				false

		500						LN		18		15		false		         15                      MR. BURTTSCHELL:  I'll be short, yes.				false

		501						LN		18		16		false		         16                      CHAIR DREW:  And answer questions if there				false

		502						LN		18		17		false		         17        are any.				false

		503						LN		18		18		false		         18                      MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Got it.  Yes.				false

		504						LN		18		19		false		         19                 So really, the project is in a soft				false

		505						LN		18		20		false		         20        mobilization phase right now with the full mobilization				false

		506						LN		18		21		false		         21        looking to be happening either the end of next week or				false

		507						LN		18		22		false		         22        the beginning of July.  So at this time next month, the				false

		508						LN		18		23		false		         23        update will be a little bit more substantial.  But at				false

		509						LN		18		24		false		         24        this point, it's just mobilization at the moment with				false

		510						LN		18		25		false		         25        construction starting probably first week of July.				false

		511						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		512						LN		19		1		false		          1                      CHAIR DREW:  Do you have an estimate of				false

		513						LN		19		2		false		          2        how long construction might take?				false

		514						LN		19		3		false		          3                      MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Right now, we are				false

		515						LN		19		4		false		          4        looking at a completion date of late October of 2024.				false

		516						LN		19		5		false		          5        Um, yeah.  At this time, that's our ET -- current				false

		517						LN		19		6		false		          6        schedule.  So about 16 months.				false

		518						LN		19		7		false		          7                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.  Are there				false

		519						LN		19		8		false		          8        any other questions from Council Members?				false

		520						LN		19		9		false		          9                 Thank you and welcome again.				false

		521						LN		19		10		false		         10                      MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Thanks.				false

		522						LN		19		11		false		         11                      CHAIR DREW:  Moving on to the High Top and				false

		523						LN		19		12		false		         12        Ostrea Project update; Ms. Randolph.				false

		524						LN		19		13		false		         13                      MS. RANDOLPH:  Chair Drew, Council				false

		525						LN		19		14		false		         14        Members, and Staff, for the record, this is Sara				false

		526						LN		19		15		false		         15        Randolph, Site Specialist for High Top and Ostrea				false

		527						LN		19		16		false		         16        Facilities.  EFSEC Staff are coordinating with the				false

		528						LN		19		17		false		         17        certificate holder on submission of preconstruction				false

		529						LN		19		18		false		         18        plans and schedules.				false

		530						LN		19		19		false		         19                 Are there any questions?				false

		531						LN		19		20		false		         20                      CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?				false

		532						LN		19		21		false		         21                 Okay.  Thank you.				false

		533						LN		19		22		false		         22                 Moving on to Whistling Ridge Energy Project				false

		534						LN		19		23		false		         23        update; Mr. Caputo.				false

		535						LN		19		24		false		         24                      MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and				false

		536						LN		19		25		false		         25        Council Members.  For the record, my name is Lance				false

		537						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		538						LN		20		1		false		          1        Caputo, and I am the Siting Specialist recently assigned				false

		539						LN		20		2		false		          2        to the Whistling Ridge Energy Facility.				false

		540						LN		20		3		false		          3                 On March 2, 2022, EFSEC received a request from				false

		541						LN		20		4		false		          4        Whistling Ridge Energy LLC for a three-year extension of				false

		542						LN		20		5		false		          5        its site certification agreement.  Whistling Ridge				false

		543						LN		20		6		false		          6        Energy LLC is the certificate holder and owner of the				false

		544						LN		20		7		false		          7        proposed facility.  Twin Creek -- excuse me.  Twin				false

		545						LN		20		8		false		          8        Creeks Timber LLC is the owner of Whistling Ridge				false

		546						LN		20		9		false		          9        Energy.				false

		547						LN		20		10		false		         10                 The current agreement will expire in November				false

		548						LN		20		11		false		         11        of this year.  The certificate holder's request will				false

		549						LN		20		12		false		         12        extend the site certification agreement until November				false

		550						LN		20		13		false		         13        2025.  The certificate holder is requesting an extension				false

		551						LN		20		14		false		         14        to review the financial and environmental feasibility of				false

		552						LN		20		15		false		         15        constructing its proposed facility.  Excuse me.				false

		553						LN		20		16		false		         16        "Approved" facility.  Updated environmental studies,				false

		554						LN		20		17		false		         17        some of which are species-specific and seasonally				false

		555						LN		20		18		false		         18        sensitive, need to be performed; hence, the request for				false

		556						LN		20		19		false		         19        three years.				false

		557						LN		20		20		false		         20                 On March 16, 2022, EFSEC received a request				false

		558						LN		20		21		false		         21        from Twin Creeks Timber LLC that they intended to submit				false

		559						LN		20		22		false		         22        a transfer request of ownership of Whistling Ridge				false

		560						LN		20		23		false		         23        Energy and requested the Council consider both requests				false

		561						LN		20		24		false		         24        simultaneously.				false

		562						LN		20		25		false		         25                 On April 27th of this year, EFSEC received a				false

		563						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		564						LN		21		1		false		          1        request for transfer of ownership from the certificate				false

		565						LN		21		2		false		          2        holder.  Staff will schedule a public informational				false

		566						LN		21		3		false		          3        meeting and will coordinate with the Council on its				false

		567						LN		21		4		false		          4        availabilities.				false

		568						LN		21		5		false		          5                 Thank you.  And I am available for any				false

		569						LN		21		6		false		          6        questions.				false

		570						LN		21		7		false		          7                      CHAIR DREW:  So the three years is from				false

		571						LN		21		8		false		          8        that first date in 2022; is that correct?				false

		572						LN		21		9		false		          9                      MR. CAPUTO:  Well, from the date the				false

		573						LN		21		10		false		         10        certificate agreement will be -- have expired.  It would				false

		574						LN		21		11		false		         11        have expired in November of this year.  So they are				false

		575						LN		21		12		false		         12        requesting three years from this fall -- this November,				false

		576						LN		21		13		false		         13        upcoming November.				false

		577						LN		21		14		false		         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  So that's 2026.  Okay.				false

		578						LN		21		15		false		         15                 Ms. Hafkemeyer?				false

		579						LN		21		16		false		         16                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you, Chair Drew.				false

		580						LN		21		17		false		         17                 I just wanted to jump in and indicate that				false

		581						LN		21		18		false		         18        Mr. McMahan is present on the line for some of these				false

		582						LN		21		19		false		         19        questions if the Council has additional questions about				false

		583						LN		21		20		false		         20        Whistling Ridge or the requests that have been				false

		584						LN		21		21		false		         21        submitted.				false

		585						LN		21		22		false		         22                      CHAIR DREW:  I am just not sure if I heard				false

		586						LN		21		23		false		         23        the date right.  So what date is it that they are asking				false

		587						LN		21		24		false		         24        for the extension until?				false

		588						LN		21		25		false		         25                 Mr. McMahan maybe?				false

		589						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		590						LN		22		1		false		          1                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Chair Drew.  I				false

		591						LN		22		2		false		          2        appreciate the opportunity to respond to the questions.				false

		592						LN		22		3		false		          3        Tim McMahan, for the record, and I represent Twin Creeks				false

		593						LN		22		4		false		          4        Timber.  Lance struggled with that.  It is difficult to				false

		594						LN		22		5		false		          5        say quickly.				false

		595						LN		22		6		false		          6                 And just to do a really quick rewind.  I don't				false

		596						LN		22		7		false		          7        want to take very much time here because really, this is				false

		597						LN		22		8		false		          8        all aimed to having a public meeting in the near future.				false

		598						LN		22		9		false		          9                 So the key thing that we really need to do here				false

		599						LN		22		10		false		         10        is to transfer the site certificate so that you have the				false

		600						LN		22		11		false		         11        right billing entity.  Whistling Ridge Energy is the				false

		601						LN		22		12		false		         12        project, and there is an LLC, Whistling Ridge Energy				false

		602						LN		22		13		false		         13        LLC.  But the way that the Council Staff interprets				false

		603						LN		22		14		false		         14        this, and I don't disagree, is, it's really the upstream				false

		604						LN		22		15		false		         15        owner that is responsible for making payments and				false

		605						LN		22		16		false		         16        staying on top of the conditioning of the project, et				false

		606						LN		22		17		false		         17        cetera, so that is Twin Creeks Timber.  And we have				false

		607						LN		22		18		false		         18        provided you with some considerable financial				false

		608						LN		22		19		false		         19        information that we can talk about when we actually head				false

		609						LN		22		20		false		         20        into the adjudication, itself.				false

		610						LN		22		21		false		         21                 There is -- you know, I would say that there is				false

		611						LN		22		22		false		         22        some debate about the expiration of the site				false

		612						LN		22		23		false		         23        certificate.  The -- and we will -- that's something we				false

		613						LN		22		24		false		         24        will need to talk about when we actually do meet here.				false

		614						LN		22		25		false		         25        But the -- I would say the shortest time frame that we				false

		615						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		616						LN		23		1		false		          1        would be asking for is -- would be assuming expiration				false

		617						LN		23		2		false		          2        of the site certificate this fall in 2018, and for an				false

		618						LN		23		3		false		          3        additional three-year period is what we are requesting				false

		619						LN		23		4		false		          4        in order to --				false

		620						LN		23		5		false		          5                      MR. CAPUTO:  2026.				false

		621						LN		23		6		false		          6                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Yeah.  In 20- -- yeah.				false

		622						LN		23		7		false		          7        Excuse me.  Yeah.				false

		623						LN		23		8		false		          8                 And Greg Corbin, by the way, from TCT is on the				false

		624						LN		23		9		false		          9        line, as well.				false

		625						LN		23		10		false		         10                 So we will be requesting the extension in order				false

		626						LN		23		11		false		         11        to determine the feasibility of continuing with this				false

		627						LN		23		12		false		         12        project, and we are asking the Council's authorization				false

		628						LN		23		13		false		         13        to do so.				false

		629						LN		23		14		false		         14                 So, I guess, you know, I am available for				false

		630						LN		23		15		false		         15        additional questions, but I don't really want to, you				false

		631						LN		23		16		false		         16        know, kind of move into argument about the merits of				false

		632						LN		23		17		false		         17        this because that's really --				false

		633						LN		23		18		false		         18                      CHAIR DREW:  No.				false

		634						LN		23		19		false		         19                      MR. MCMAHAN:  -- what the upcoming hearing				false

		635						LN		23		20		false		         20        is for.				false

		636						LN		23		21		false		         21                      CHAIR DREW:  That's fine.  I was just				false

		637						LN		23		22		false		         22        pecking.  But we will get back to the date after we hear				false

		638						LN		23		23		false		         23        more information --				false

		639						LN		23		24		false		         24                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Right.				false

		640						LN		23		25		false		         25                      CHAIR DREW:  -- at the public meeting.				false

		641						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		642						LN		24		1		false		          1                 Mr. Young?				false

		643						LN		24		2		false		          2                      MR. YOUNG:  Yeah.  I am just looking at				false

		644						LN		24		3		false		          3        the document that's on the screen.  In the first				false

		645						LN		24		4		false		          4        paragraph, it looks like it says the extension is				false

		646						LN		24		5		false		          5        requested to November of 2025?				false

		647						LN		24		6		false		          6                      MR. CAPUTO:  Yes.				false

		648						LN		24		7		false		          7                      CHAIR DREW:  And that's what I heard				false

		649						LN		24		8		false		          8        Mr. Caputo say, so that's why I was raising the				false

		650						LN		24		9		false		          9        question, but that's okay.  We will hear more as it goes				false

		651						LN		24		10		false		         10        on.				false

		652						LN		24		11		false		         11                      MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you.  And Chair Drew,				false

		653						LN		24		12		false		         12        if I could clarify one quick thing?  That document was				false

		654						LN		24		13		false		         13        written a year ago.  So we were asking for a three-year				false

		655						LN		24		14		false		         14        extension which will put us at 2026.				false

		656						LN		24		15		false		         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		657						LN		24		16		false		         16                 And what we need to do, Council Members, is to				false

		658						LN		24		17		false		         17        conduct not an adjudication but a public informational				false

		659						LN		24		18		false		         18        meeting, and that will be the next step, and that will				false

		660						LN		24		19		false		         19        be a full presentation by the certificate -- well, let's				false

		661						LN		24		20		false		         20        just say by Twin...okay.  Now I am forgetting.				false

		662						LN		24		21		false		         21                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Twin Creeks Timber.  Yeah.				false

		663						LN		24		22		false		         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Twin Creeks Timber.				false

		664						LN		24		23		false		         23                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Or the certificate holder.				false

		665						LN		24		24		false		         24                      CHAIR DREW:  Certificate holder, about the				false

		666						LN		24		25		false		         25        change in ownership which would officially make them the				false

		667						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		668						LN		25		1		false		          1        certificate holder.				false

		669						LN		25		2		false		          2                      MR. MCMAHAN:  There you go.				false

		670						LN		25		3		false		          3                      CHAIR DREW:  So.  That's the complicating				false

		671						LN		25		4		false		          4        factor here.  Okay.				false

		672						LN		25		5		false		          5                 So we will be able to discuss this in more				false

		673						LN		25		6		false		          6        detail with the public present at a virtual public				false

		674						LN		25		7		false		          7        informational meeting as soon as we schedule it.				false

		675						LN		25		8		false		          8                 Other questions?				false

		676						LN		25		9		false		          9                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Chair Drew.				false

		677						LN		25		10		false		         10                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		678						LN		25		11		false		         11                 Moving on to Desert Claim site certification				false

		679						LN		25		12		false		         12        agreement amendment update; Ms. Moon.				false

		680						LN		25		13		false		         13                      MS. MOON:  Yes.  Good afternoon, Council,				false

		681						LN		25		14		false		         14        Chair Drew, and Council Members.  Just, again, for the				false

		682						LN		25		15		false		         15        record, this is Amy Moon providing a project update on				false

		683						LN		25		16		false		         16        Desert Claim.				false

		684						LN		25		17		false		         17                 At the May 2023 Council meeting, I provided an				false

		685						LN		25		18		false		         18        update on the Desert Claim Project detailing the receipt				false

		686						LN		25		19		false		         19        of a request to amend the Desert Claim site				false

		687						LN		25		20		false		         20        certification agreement.  We shortened that to "SCA."				false

		688						LN		25		21		false		         21        The request was received from EDF Renewables on May 5th				false

		689						LN		25		22		false		         22        of 2023 and was a request to extend the deadline for				false

		690						LN		25		23		false		         23        completing construction by five years, from the current				false

		691						LN		25		24		false		         24        date of November 13, 2023, to November 13, 2028.				false

		692						LN		25		25		false		         25                 The signed certification agreement authorizes				false

		693						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		694						LN		26		1		false		          1        the certificate holder to construct the project such				false

		695						LN		26		2		false		          2        that substantial completion is achieved no later than				false

		696						LN		26		3		false		          3        five years from the date that Amendment No. 1 was				false

		697						LN		26		4		false		          4        approved by the Council.  So we had an SCA, and then we				false

		698						LN		26		5		false		          5        had Amendment No. 1 to that SCA.  The Council approved				false

		699						LN		26		6		false		          6        that on November 13th of 2018; therefore, the current				false

		700						LN		26		7		false		          7        SCA substantial completion date is November of 2023.				false

		701						LN		26		8		false		          8                 Review of the extension request is being				false

		702						LN		26		9		false		          9        completed by EFSEC Staff in consultation with the EFSEC				false

		703						LN		26		10		false		         10        legal counsel under the Washington Administrative Code				false

		704						LN		26		11		false		         11        463-68-080.  An informational meeting on the SCA				false

		705						LN		26		12		false		         12        amendment is scheduled for Thursday, July 13, 2023, at				false

		706						LN		26		13		false		         13        5:00 p.m.				false

		707						LN		26		14		false		         14                 Does the Council have any questions?				false

		708						LN		26		15		false		         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions?				false

		709						LN		26		16		false		         16                 So at that meeting, we can expect a full				false

		710						LN		26		17		false		         17        presentation from the certificate holder, as well as				false

		711						LN		26		18		false		         18        comments from the public, and that, too, will be a				false

		712						LN		26		19		false		         19        virtual meeting.				false

		713						LN		26		20		false		         20                      MS. MOON:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair Drew.				false

		714						LN		26		21		false		         21                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		715						LN		26		22		false		         22                 Moving on to the Horse Heaven Wind Farm Project				false

		716						LN		26		23		false		         23        update; Ms. Moon.				false

		717						LN		26		24		false		         24                      MS. MOON:  Good afternoon again, Council,				false

		718						LN		26		25		false		         25        Chair Drew, and Council Members.  I am providing an				false

		719						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		720						LN		27		1		false		          1        update on the Horse Heaven Wind Project.				false

		721						LN		27		2		false		          2                 EFSEC Staff continued work on the preparation				false

		722						LN		27		3		false		          3        of the final environmental impact statement, or final				false

		723						LN		27		4		false		          4        EIS.  Staff are currently engaged in reviewing revisions				false

		724						LN		27		5		false		          5        to the final EIS as prepared by our consultant				false

		725						LN		27		6		false		          6        WSP/Golder.				false

		726						LN		27		7		false		          7                 EFSEC Staff are also coordinating final EIS				false

		727						LN		27		8		false		          8        revision reviews by Washington state agency experts in				false

		728						LN		27		9		false		          9        resource topic areas such as wildlife and habitat,				false

		729						LN		27		10		false		         10        vegetation, and water resources.				false

		730						LN		27		11		false		         11                 Preparation of the final EIS includes				false

		731						LN		27		12		false		         12        incorporation of comments received from the public and				false

		732						LN		27		13		false		         13        agencies during the draft EIS public comment period				false

		733						LN		27		14		false		         14        which was held December 19th of 2022 through				false

		734						LN		27		15		false		         15        February 1st of 2023 in which over 2,500 written and				false

		735						LN		27		16		false		         16        oral comments were received.				false

		736						LN		27		17		false		         17                 Part of responding to the comments received on				false

		737						LN		27		18		false		         18        the draft EIS is to evaluate updated and additional				false

		738						LN		27		19		false		         19        information received.  Responses to data requests on air				false

		739						LN		27		20		false		         20        quality, visual, water, and transportation are currently				false

		740						LN		27		21		false		         21        being evaluated and used to update the draft				false

		741						LN		27		22		false		         22        environmental impact statement.  In addition, EFSEC				false

		742						LN		27		23		false		         23        Staff continue to actively engage with Washington state				false

		743						LN		27		24		false		         24        agencies regarding potential impact analysis and				false

		744						LN		27		25		false		         25        mitigation opportunities.				false

		745						PG		28		0		false		page 28				false

		746						LN		28		1		false		          1                 The final EIS preparation is also informed by				false

		747						LN		28		2		false		          2        the updated application for site certification submitted				false

		748						LN		28		3		false		          3        by the applicant in December 2022.  In addition, an				false

		749						LN		28		4		false		          4        updated application scheduled for submittal after				false

		750						LN		28		5		false		          5        adjudication, which is a separate process from preparing				false

		751						LN		28		6		false		          6        the environmental impact statement under SEPA, will also				false

		752						LN		28		7		false		          7        inform the final EIS.				false

		753						LN		28		8		false		          8                 EFSEC Staff would also like to inform the				false

		754						LN		28		9		false		          9        Council that along with the pre-filed adjudication				false

		755						LN		28		10		false		         10        testimony already available, additional submissions will				false

		756						LN		28		11		false		         11        be added to the Council SharePoint for review as we				false

		757						LN		28		12		false		         12        approach the scheduled adjudication hearings.				false

		758						LN		28		13		false		         13                 Does the Council have any questions regarding				false

		759						LN		28		14		false		         14        the project update?				false

		760						LN		28		15		false		         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions for				false

		761						LN		28		16		false		         16        Ms. Moon about the project update?				false

		762						LN		28		17		false		         17                      MS. MOON:  Okay.  Hearing none --				false

		763						LN		28		18		false		         18                      CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead with the -- yes.				false

		764						LN		28		19		false		         19                      MS. MOON:  Okay.				false

		765						LN		28		20		false		         20                      CHAIR DREW:  The extension request.  Go				false

		766						LN		28		21		false		         21        ahead.				false

		767						LN		28		22		false		         22                      MS. MOON:  Okay.  So on the extension				false

		768						LN		28		23		false		         23        request.  EFSEC Staff worked with the applicant to				false

		769						LN		28		24		false		         24        establish an updated commitment date to complete the				false

		770						LN		28		25		false		         25        processing of the Horse Heaven application for site				false

		771						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		772						LN		29		1		false		          1        certification.  This new date, referred to as the				false

		773						LN		29		2		false		          2        extension date, as defined in the Revised Code of				false

		774						LN		29		3		false		          3        Washington 80.50.100, that requires that the Council				false

		775						LN		29		4		false		          4        shall report to the Governor its recommendations as to				false

		776						LN		29		5		false		          5        the approval or rejection of an application for				false

		777						LN		29		6		false		          6        certification within 12 months of receipt by the Council				false

		778						LN		29		7		false		          7        of such an application or such later time as is mutually				false

		779						LN		29		8		false		          8        agreed by the Council and the applicant.				false

		780						LN		29		9		false		          9                 The current date to report to the Governor is				false

		781						LN		29		10		false		         10        set as July 8th of 2023.  However, Scout Clean Energy				false

		782						LN		29		11		false		         11        submitted a third extension request to the EFSEC Council				false

		783						LN		29		12		false		         12        on June 12, 2023, to extend the application processing				false

		784						LN		29		13		false		         13        of the proposed Horse Heaven Wind Farm application for				false

		785						LN		29		14		false		         14        site certification to January 31st of 2024.  A copy of				false

		786						LN		29		15		false		         15        the extension request letter is included in the Council				false

		787						LN		29		16		false		         16        packet, and it's on display on our screens.				false

		788						LN		29		17		false		         17                 Does the Council have any questions regarding				false

		789						LN		29		18		false		         18        the extension request?				false

		790						LN		29		19		false		         19                      CHAIR DREW:  So the extension request was				false

		791						LN		29		20		false		         20        received on June 12th and posted to the Council's				false

		792						LN		29		21		false		         21        website and a request as a final action item was put				false

		793						LN		29		22		false		         22        out.  Did we receive -- as is our practice, we take				false

		794						LN		29		23		false		         23        written comments unless we do not provide enough time				false

		795						LN		29		24		false		         24        for people to make those written comments.  Did we				false

		796						LN		29		25		false		         25        receive any written comments on this item?				false

		797						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		798						LN		30		1		false		          1                      MS. MOON:  I am going to have to refer to				false

		799						LN		30		2		false		          2        the EFSEC Office Staff.  I am not aware of any written				false

		800						LN		30		3		false		          3        comments.				false

		801						LN		30		4		false		          4                 Joan or Andrea?				false

		802						LN		30		5		false		          5                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Hi.  This is Andrea, Chair				false

		803						LN		30		6		false		          6        Drew.  I looked, and we did not receive any written				false

		804						LN		30		7		false		          7        comments for the comment campaign we put out last week.				false

		805						LN		30		8		false		          8                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		806						LN		30		9		false		          9                 Council Members, are there questions?				false

		807						LN		30		10		false		         10                 I do see a hand by Shona Voelckers, I believe,				false

		808						LN		30		11		false		         11        with the Yakama Tribe.  And I know we received a letter				false

		809						LN		30		12		false		         12        to the Council, but that was about adjudication.  This				false

		810						LN		30		13		false		         13        is not an issue of adjudication.  This is an issue of				false

		811						LN		30		14		false		         14        what is in front of us, is, the extension, which, we				false

		812						LN		30		15		false		         15        know the project will not be ready to be recommended one				false

		813						LN		30		16		false		         16        way or another to the Governor the first week of July,				false

		814						LN		30		17		false		         17        so our practice is not to take public comments if we				false

		815						LN		30		18		false		         18        have given people that opportunity to provide written				false

		816						LN		30		19		false		         19        comments ahead-of-time.				false

		817						LN		30		20		false		         20                 Council Members --				false

		818						LN		30		21		false		         21                      MS. GRANTHAM:  If I may?  Chair Drew, we				false

		819						LN		30		22		false		         22        did submit written comments, and I would just like to				false

		820						LN		30		23		false		         23        make that clear to the Council that we submitted a				false

		821						LN		30		24		false		         24        letter commenting on the specific extension request.				false

		822						LN		30		25		false		         25        Three of the parties did yesterday.				false

		823						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		824						LN		31		1		false		          1                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you for that.  I				false

		825						LN		31		2		false		          2        will pull -- let's see.  Andrea or Joan, can you pull				false

		826						LN		31		3		false		          3        that up?  I -- let's pull that letter up.  Thank you.				false

		827						LN		31		4		false		          4                 We will take a couple-minute break here so we				false

		828						LN		31		5		false		          5        can make sure the Council can see that.				false

		829						LN		31		6		false		          6                                (Pause in proceedings.)				false

		830						LN		31		7		false		          7                      MS. BUMPUS:  Chair Drew, this is Sonia				false

		831						LN		31		8		false		          8        Bumpus.  I just wanted to mention that when we opened				false

		832						LN		31		9		false		          9        the public comment period for this extension request,				false

		833						LN		31		10		false		         10        that was closed last week, so if this letter -- the				false

		834						LN		31		11		false		         11        letter that came in related to requesting more time for				false

		835						LN		31		12		false		         12        the adjudication in light of this extension, if it came				false

		836						LN		31		13		false		         13        in yesterday or what have you, it would be past the				false

		837						LN		31		14		false		         14        deadline to submit comments on this particular action.				false

		838						LN		31		15		false		         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  If we have a copy of				false

		839						LN		31		16		false		         16        the letter, I'd like it to be put forward for the				false

		840						LN		31		17		false		         17        Council to look at.  Thank you.				false

		841						LN		31		18		false		         18                      MS. BUMPUS:  Sure.				false

		842						LN		31		19		false		         19                 Joan and Andrea, do you have access to the				false

		843						LN		31		20		false		         20        letter?				false

		844						LN		31		21		false		         21                      MS. GRANTHAM:  I -- this is Andrea				false

		845						LN		31		22		false		         22        Grantham.  I am currently having issues finding it				false

		846						LN		31		23		false		         23        within the email.				false

		847						LN		31		24		false		         24                 Ms. Voelckers, do you know which email you sent				false

		848						LN		31		25		false		         25        it to, if it was maybe to the adjudication group or did				false

		849						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		850						LN		32		1		false		          1        you have it directly listed as a comment for this item?				false

		851						LN		32		2		false		          2                      MS. VOELCKERS:  It was submitted to EFSEC				false

		852						LN		32		3		false		          3        at "efsec.wa.gov" with the adjudication parties cc'd; to				false

		853						LN		32		4		false		          4        the full service list, including EFSEC Staff.				false

		854						LN		32		5		false		          5                      MS. BUMPUS:  I think I have located an				false

		855						LN		32		6		false		          6        email with it.  It looks like --				false

		856						LN		32		7		false		          7                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Chair Drew --				false

		857						LN		32		8		false		          8                      MS. BUMPUS:  It looks like it came in				false

		858						LN		32		9		false		          9        yesterday.				false

		859						LN		32		10		false		         10                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Yes.  I believe I have				false

		860						LN		32		11		false		         11        found it.				false

		861						LN		32		12		false		         12                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Chair Drew, Tim McMahan.  If				false

		862						LN		32		13		false		         13        I could just say something very quickly here concerning				false

		863						LN		32		14		false		         14        this matter?				false

		864						LN		32		15		false		         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.				false

		865						LN		32		16		false		         16                      MR. MCMAHAN:  We were aware that this				false

		866						LN		32		17		false		         17        letter came in because Scout Clean Energy -- and, by the				false

		867						LN		32		18		false		         18        way, Tim McMahan with Scout Clean Energy.				false

		868						LN		32		19		false		         19                 Because we were certainly aware of the cutoff				false

		869						LN		32		20		false		         20        time for the letter, we did not respond.  We didn't				false

		870						LN		32		21		false		         21        think that was in order.  So I would -- I have some				false

		871						LN		32		22		false		         22        concerns with the Council considering this at this point				false

		872						LN		32		23		false		         23        in time.				false

		873						LN		32		24		false		         24                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		874						LN		32		25		false		         25                      MS. BUMPUS:  All right, Chair Drew.  We				false

		875						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		876						LN		33		1		false		          1        have the letter up so that the Council can take a look				false

		877						LN		33		2		false		          2        at this.				false

		878						LN		33		3		false		          3                 And I just wanted to remind the Council --				false

		879						LN		33		4		false		          4                      CHAIR DREW:  This is an adjudication, and				false

		880						LN		33		5		false		          5        I read it as an adjudication letter.				false

		881						LN		33		6		false		          6                 May -- can we see the last page, please.				false

		882						LN		33		7		false		          7                 This is an adjudication issue, not an issue				false

		883						LN		33		8		false		          8        about the extension request, from my review here.  The				false

		884						LN		33		9		false		          9        extension does not deal with adjudication.  Adjudication				false

		885						LN		33		10		false		         10        is dealt with through Judge Torem and the adjudication				false

		886						LN		33		11		false		         11        process.				false

		887						LN		33		12		false		         12                      MS. BUMPUS:  We just respectfully request				false

		888						LN		33		13		false		         13        the Council be allowed to read the letter that was				false

		889						LN		33		14		false		         14        submitted to the Council.  Thank you.				false

		890						LN		33		15		false		         15                      CHAIR DREW:  We will read it.  It is not				false

		891						LN		33		16		false		         16        germane to the issue of whether or not we have an				false

		892						LN		33		17		false		         17        extension of this project.  It is germane to the				false

		893						LN		33		18		false		         18        adjudication.  It is not germane to the extension				false

		894						LN		33		19		false		         19        request.				false

		895						LN		33		20		false		         20                 Council Members, are there questions?				false

		896						LN		33		21		false		         21                      MS. KELLY:  Chair, this is Kate Kelly.				false

		897						LN		33		22		false		         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.				false

		898						LN		33		23		false		         23                      MS. KELLY:  Just in reading this short				false

		899						LN		33		24		false		         24        letter from Scout Energy, it doesn't really ask for an				false

		900						LN		33		25		false		         25        extension date.  I mean, it says that they extend with				false

		901						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		902						LN		34		1		false		          1        an expectation of completing the adjudication.  So that				false

		903						LN		34		2		false		          2        they are asking for an extension through January 31,				false

		904						LN		34		3		false		          3        2024; is that correct?				false

		905						LN		34		4		false		          4                      CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  The first paragraph				false

		906						LN		34		5		false		          5        there.  And they are explaining why they are asking for				false

		907						LN		34		6		false		          6        that extension request to January 31, 2024.  But that's				false

		908						LN		34		7		false		          7        the request.  Okay?				false

		909						LN		34		8		false		          8                      MS. KELLY:  Okay.  Yes.				false

		910						LN		34		9		false		          9                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		911						LN		34		10		false		         10                 Other questions from Council Members?				false

		912						LN		34		11		false		         11                      MR. YOUNG:  Chair Drew, this is Lenny				false

		913						LN		34		12		false		         12        Young.  Does Staff have comments for a recommendation,				false

		914						LN		34		13		false		         13        with respect to Scout's request?				false

		915						LN		34		14		false		         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		916						LN		34		15		false		         15                      MS. BUMPUS:  This is Sonia Bumpus, the				false

		917						LN		34		16		false		         16        Director for EFSEC.  And this extension request is an				false

		918						LN		34		17		false		         17        administrative extension.  It basically just allows --				false

		919						LN		34		18		false		         18        which, as the -- as the letter from Scout discusses, it				false

		920						LN		34		19		false		         19        allows EFSEC the time it needs to complete the SEPA				false

		921						LN		34		20		false		         20        review process, to conduct the adjudicative proceedings,				false

		922						LN		34		21		false		         21        and then to deliberate and make the recommendation, and				false

		923						LN		34		22		false		         22        so.				false

		924						LN		34		23		false		         23                 Staff's recommendation is that the Council go				false

		925						LN		34		24		false		         24        ahead and approve this extension request.  It's going to				false

		926						LN		34		25		false		         25        allow us to complete our processes so that we can get				false

		927						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		928						LN		35		1		false		          1        our recommendation package to the Governor, and the hope				false

		929						LN		35		2		false		          2        is that we would complete that before the January 31,				false

		930						LN		35		3		false		          3        2024, extension date.				false

		931						LN		35		4		false		          4                      MR. YOUNG:  Thank you.				false

		932						LN		35		5		false		          5                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there questions from				false

		933						LN		35		6		false		          6        Council Members or discussion?				false

		934						LN		35		7		false		          7                      MS. KELLY:  Chair Drew, this is Kate				false

		935						LN		35		8		false		          8        Kelly.  I am just trying to understand what is the				false

		936						LN		35		9		false		          9        consequence if we were to not approve the extension;				false

		937						LN		35		10		false		         10        that extension request?				false

		938						LN		35		11		false		         11                      CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Bumpus?				false

		939						LN		35		12		false		         12                      MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.				false

		940						LN		35		13		false		         13                 So when an application is submitted, the				false

		941						LN		35		14		false		         14        applicant provides an initial deposit, and work				false

		942						LN		35		15		false		         15        commences on the review of the application, and all of				false

		943						LN		35		16		false		         16        these different processes I just talked about.				false

		944						LN		35		17		false		         17                 If the extension request is not granted,				false

		945						LN		35		18		false		         18        essentially we would cease our review on this				false

		946						LN		35		19		false		         19        application, and the review of this application for site				false

		947						LN		35		20		false		         20        certification would stop, and that would be it.  So				false

		948						LN		35		21		false		         21        by -- so by the -- sorry.				false

		949						LN		35		22		false		         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Other -- go ahead.				false

		950						LN		35		23		false		         23                      MS. BUMPUS:  I was just going to -- I am				false

		951						LN		35		24		false		         24        just going to say that so by extending the request --				false

		952						LN		35		25		false		         25        or, providing this extension, it allows the process to				false

		953						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		954						LN		36		1		false		          1        continue, and to allow us to complete all of these				false

		955						LN		36		2		false		          2        different steps that are part of our process that we				false

		956						LN		36		3		false		          3        need to complete before we can make our recommendation.				false

		957						LN		36		4		false		          4        But if then the Council were not to extend it, then the				false

		958						LN		36		5		false		          5        work would cease.				false

		959						LN		36		6		false		          6                      MS. KELLY:  So -- this is Kate again.				false

		960						LN		36		7		false		          7                 So the adjudication schedule was set with the				false

		961						LN		36		8		false		          8        assumption that this deadline would be extended by the				false

		962						LN		36		9		false		          9        Council.				false

		963						LN		36		10		false		         10                      CHAIR DREW:  It would...				false

		964						LN		36		11		false		         11                      MS. BUMPUS:  So -- Chair Drew, do you want				false

		965						LN		36		12		false		         12        me to respond?				false

		966						LN		36		13		false		         13                      CHAIR DREW:  Please.  Yes.  Thank you.				false

		967						LN		36		14		false		         14                      MS. BUMPUS:  Well, so the extension -- the				false

		968						LN		36		15		false		         15        adjudication was scheduled, based off what steps				false

		969						LN		36		16		false		         16        remained left to be completed.  We knew that we would				false

		970						LN		36		17		false		         17        likely need an extension, but -- in order to complete				false

		971						LN		36		18		false		         18        adjudication, but the question was, we also knew that we				false

		972						LN		36		19		false		         19        were going to need time to complete the final				false

		973						LN		36		20		false		         20        environmental impact statement, and so.  You know, our				false

		974						LN		36		21		false		         21        goal is to not do multiple extensions if we don't need				false

		975						LN		36		22		false		         22        to do that, so what we did was, we worked with Scout on				false

		976						LN		36		23		false		         23        drafting and finalizing a schedule for the final				false

		977						LN		36		24		false		         24        environmental impact statement, and that helped to				false

		978						LN		36		25		false		         25        inform this extension request here, in hopes that we				false

		979						PG		37		0		false		page 37				false

		980						LN		37		1		false		          1        would not be having to do multiple.  You know.  For				false

		981						LN		37		2		false		          2        instance, having to do another one right after				false

		982						LN		37		3		false		          3        adjudication; doing another one perhaps after the final				false

		983						LN		37		4		false		          4        environmental impact statement.  So by trying to				false

		984						LN		37		5		false		          5        synchronize the schedules that were set for adjudication				false

		985						LN		37		6		false		          6        and what is estimated for the final environmental impact				false

		986						LN		37		7		false		          7        statement, we think we have got an extension request				false

		987						LN		37		8		false		          8        that captures, you know, the time needed to complete the				false

		988						LN		37		9		false		          9        full process.				false

		989						LN		37		10		false		         10                 Now, Council Member Kelly, I would add, though,				false

		990						LN		37		11		false		         11        that it's possible we would need more time, but we don't				false

		991						LN		37		12		false		         12        anticipate that at this point.				false

		992						LN		37		13		false		         13                      CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Bumpus, can you describe				false

		993						LN		37		14		false		         14        the steps that take place after adjudication?				false

		994						LN		37		15		false		         15                      MS. BUMPUS:  Well, there is quite a bit				false

		995						LN		37		16		false		         16        that goes into it.  One of the things that will occur				false

		996						LN		37		17		false		         17        after the adjudication is that the applicant will have				false

		997						LN		37		18		false		         18        an opportunity to submit a final application for site				false

		998						LN		37		19		false		         19        certification.  Well, I should say, rather, a revised or				false

		999						LN		37		20		false		         20        updated application for site certification.  This				false

		1000						LN		37		21		false		         21        typically reflects things that were proffered through				false

		1001						LN		37		22		false		         22        the adjudicative proceeding.  And so we would get an				false

		1002						LN		37		23		false		         23        updated application for site certification.  That				false

		1003						LN		37		24		false		         24        information --				false

		1004						LN		37		25		false		         25                      CHAIR DREW:  And what is -- can you say				false

		1005						PG		38		0		false		page 38				false

		1006						LN		38		1		false		          1        what the time frame is for that updated application				false

		1007						LN		38		2		false		          2        after the adjudication?				false

		1008						LN		38		3		false		          3                      MS. BUMPUS:  Off the top of my head, I				false

		1009						LN		38		4		false		          4        believe it's 60 days.  I believe our rules say 60 days				false

		1010						LN		38		5		false		          5        is their deadline.  Within 60 days of ending the				false

		1011						LN		38		6		false		          6        adjudicative proceeding, the applicant must submit an				false

		1012						LN		38		7		false		          7        updated application for site certification.  I'd want to				false

		1013						LN		38		8		false		          8        double-check it, but I believe it's 60 days.				false

		1014						LN		38		9		false		          9                 And so after that occurs -- or, I should say,				false

		1015						LN		38		10		false		         10        concurrently, you know, as that is happening, the				false

		1016						LN		38		11		false		         11        Council would be working with our Administrative Law				false

		1017						LN		38		12		false		         12        Judge to prepare Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law				false

		1018						LN		38		13		false		         13        which are based off the adjudicative proceeding.  And				false

		1019						LN		38		14		false		         14        then once the application for site certification that's				false

		1020						LN		38		15		false		         15        been updated is received, the Staff will take a look at				false

		1021						LN		38		16		false		         16        that.  It will also be shared with the public and the				false

		1022						LN		38		17		false		         17        Council, posted to our website, et cetera, and we will				false

		1023						LN		38		18		false		         18        look at that to see if there is anything in the final				false

		1024						LN		38		19		false		         19        environmental impact statement that may need to be				false

		1025						LN		38		20		false		         20        tweaked or, you know, edited in some way to reflect				false

		1026						LN		38		21		false		         21        anything.				false

		1027						LN		38		22		false		         22                 Usually, and historically, there is not, you				false

		1028						LN		38		23		false		         23        know, vast differences between the original application				false

		1029						LN		38		24		false		         24        and the application that follows adjudication, but every				false

		1030						LN		38		25		false		         25        project is different.  And so after those processes are				false

		1031						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		1032						LN		39		1		false		          1        completed.  The Council would have the final				false

		1033						LN		39		2		false		          2        environmental impact statement completed, they would				false

		1034						LN		39		3		false		          3        take some time to review that, and then there would be				false

		1035						LN		39		4		false		          4        an opportunity to deliberate on the full record, which				false

		1036						LN		39		5		false		          5        would be everything from the adjudicative proceeding,				false

		1037						LN		39		6		false		          6        the final environmental impact statement, and anything				false

		1038						LN		39		7		false		          7        that came in through tribal government to government				false

		1039						LN		39		8		false		          8        consultation.  And after that, a recommendation would be				false

		1040						LN		39		9		false		          9        made to the Governor.				false

		1041						LN		39		10		false		         10                 I am -- I am, you know, just very high level.				false

		1042						LN		39		11		false		         11        There is a lot more to it.  But those are sort of the				false

		1043						LN		39		12		false		         12        big highlights.				false

		1044						LN		39		13		false		         13                      CHAIR DREW:  Other questions from Council				false

		1045						LN		39		14		false		         14        Members?				false

		1046						LN		39		15		false		         15                 Or, Ms. Kelly, does that answer your question?				false

		1047						LN		39		16		false		         16                      MS. KELLY:  That did.  Thank you for that				false

		1048						LN		39		17		false		         17        detail.				false

		1049						LN		39		18		false		         18                      CHAIR DREW:  Is there a motion on the				false

		1050						LN		39		19		false		         19        extension request?				false

		1051						LN		39		20		false		         20                      MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.  I will				false

		1052						LN		39		21		false		         21        move that the Council approve the extension request with				false

		1053						LN		39		22		false		         22        the date of January 31, 2024.				false

		1054						LN		39		23		false		         23                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		1055						LN		39		24		false		         24                 Is there a second?				false

		1056						LN		39		25		false		         25                      MR. SANDISON:  Derek Sandison.  Second.				false

		1057						PG		40		0		false		page 40				false

		1058						LN		40		1		false		          1                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		1059						LN		40		2		false		          2                 All those in favor, please -- any more				false

		1060						LN		40		3		false		          3        discussion, I should say?  Is there any discussion about				false

		1061						LN		40		4		false		          4        this item?  We have had a lot of information.  Do				false

		1062						LN		40		5		false		          5        Council Members have comments?				false

		1063						LN		40		6		false		          6                      MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey Brewster				false

		1064						LN		40		7		false		          7        again.  Yeah, this is quite a project and quite a				false

		1065						LN		40		8		false		          8        process that takes a lot of time and energy, and I				false

		1066						LN		40		9		false		          9        appreciate all the information and all the hard work				false

		1067						LN		40		10		false		         10        Staff has done.  And I think the extra time will				false

		1068						LN		40		11		false		         11        definitely give us the opportunity to fully assess the				false

		1069						LN		40		12		false		         12        project.				false

		1070						LN		40		13		false		         13                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		1071						LN		40		14		false		         14                 Mr. Young?				false

		1072						LN		40		15		false		         15                      MR. YOUNG:  Would it be fair to say that				false

		1073						LN		40		16		false		         16        irrespective of Scout's request, that EFSEC Staff would				false

		1074						LN		40		17		false		         17        need more time to conduct the process to its conclusion?				false

		1075						LN		40		18		false		         18                      CHAIR DREW:  So yes.  The issue is how our				false

		1076						LN		40		19		false		         19        law is structured.				false

		1077						LN		40		20		false		         20                 Ms. Bumpus, do you want to -- so it says that				false

		1078						LN		40		21		false		         21        an extension is agreed to by the applicant and EFSEC.				false

		1079						LN		40		22		false		         22        Is that correct, Ms. Bumpus?				false

		1080						LN		40		23		false		         23                      MS. BUMPUS:  Correct.				false

		1081						LN		40		24		false		         24                      CHAIR DREW:  And so in order to do that,				false

		1082						LN		40		25		false		         25        the Staff and the applicant work together, the Staff				false

		1083						PG		41		0		false		page 41				false

		1084						LN		41		1		false		          1        knowing all the pieces that need to come together, the				false

		1085						LN		41		2		false		          2        applicant also understanding that, to put forward an				false

		1086						LN		41		3		false		          3        extension request, which, although I know there are				false

		1087						LN		41		4		false		          4        people who have a lot of concern about extension				false

		1088						LN		41		5		false		          5        requests, are -- actually happen with most of our				false

		1089						LN		41		6		false		          6        projects that are complex.				false

		1090						LN		41		7		false		          7                 Because of the amount of review that this one				false

		1091						LN		41		8		false		          8        takes, I believe that we very much need this extension,				false

		1092						LN		41		9		false		          9        and yes, Mr. Young, because we need it for the				false

		1093						LN		41		10		false		         10        completion of the EIS, we need it for the adjudication,				false

		1094						LN		41		11		false		         11        we need it for the steps after adjudication, and for all				false

		1095						LN		41		12		false		         12        of that to come together so that the Council has time to				false

		1096						LN		41		13		false		         13        deliberate before we make a recommendation to the				false

		1097						LN		41		14		false		         14        Governor.  So yes, for all of those reasons.				false

		1098						LN		41		15		false		         15                      MR. YOUNG:  Thank you.				false

		1099						LN		41		16		false		         16                      MS. KELLY:  Chair, this is Kate Kelly.				false

		1100						LN		41		17		false		         17                      CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead, Ms. Kelly.  Yeah.				false

		1101						LN		41		18		false		         18                      MS. KELLY:  In reading that RCW which is				false

		1102						LN		41		19		false		         19        cited in the -- Scout's letter, I -- you know, it works				false

		1103						LN		41		20		false		         20        in the favor of the Council -- it seems to work in the				false

		1104						LN		41		21		false		         21        favor of the Council to agree -- mutually agree to this				false

		1105						LN		41		22		false		         22        extension with this applicant, just as a matter of due				false

		1106						LN		41		23		false		         23        diligence, and -- and again, and also the complexity of				false

		1107						LN		41		24		false		         24        the project.				false

		1108						LN		41		25		false		         25                 I will just say that with regard to public				false

		1109						PG		42		0		false		page 42				false

		1110						LN		42		1		false		          1        comment that may have been or -- or attempted to be				false

		1111						LN		42		2		false		          2        submitted on this, I -- it's just -- it's just so				false

		1112						LN		42		3		false		          3        terribly important that we have an opportunity to hear				false

		1113						LN		42		4		false		          4        from the public, so, as this project goes through the				false

		1114						LN		42		5		false		          5        process, and I know there is processes for that, but				false

		1115						LN		42		6		false		          6        just want to make the point that that's an important				false

		1116						LN		42		7		false		          7        role for us as Council Members, is, to be part of that				false

		1117						LN		42		8		false		          8        dialog with community and others who have an interest in				false

		1118						LN		42		9		false		          9        this, so you'd hope that we can continue that.				false

		1119						LN		42		10		false		         10                 Another point is, on the subject of the				false

		1120						LN		42		11		false		         11        schedule and the steps that Sonia just went through,				false

		1121						LN		42		12		false		         12        I -- the more communication we can get as Council				false

		1122						LN		42		13		false		         13        Members on what the schedule -- what we should be				false

		1123						LN		42		14		false		         14        anticipating and what work -- you know, review processes				false

		1124						LN		42		15		false		         15        will be upcoming would be very helpful for us as				false

		1125						LN		42		16		false		         16        part-time Council Members and real-time State employees,				false

		1126						LN		42		17		false		         17        so thank you for that.				false

		1127						LN		42		18		false		         18                      CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  And as -- this is truly				false

		1128						LN		42		19		false		         19        an administrative allowance as long as it's -- you know,				false

		1129						LN		42		20		false		         20        we do take public comment on it.  We have a parallel				false

		1130						LN		42		21		false		         21        process.  That extending the time frame for the project				false

		1131						LN		42		22		false		         22        doesn't rule on the adjudication.  The adjudication				false

		1132						LN		42		23		false		         23        is -- we have Judge Adam Torem who will be answering on				false

		1133						LN		42		24		false		         24        behalf of the Council that -- those schedules, requests,				false

		1134						LN		42		25		false		         25        and we can provide you with more information on that, as				false

		1135						PG		43		0		false		page 43				false

		1136						LN		43		1		false		          1        well.  So.  I think that is part of the confusion, if				false

		1137						LN		43		2		false		          2        you will, for the subject of today's meeting since this				false

		1138						LN		43		3		false		          3        is about the extension of the project, it is not about				false

		1139						LN		43		4		false		          4        the adjudication.				false

		1140						LN		43		5		false		          5                 Are there more comments by Council Members?				false

		1141						LN		43		6		false		          6                 Hearing none, all those in favor of approving				false

		1142						LN		43		7		false		          7        the extension request, please say "aye."				false

		1143						LN		43		8		false		          8                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		1144						LN		43		9		false		          9                      CHAIR DREW:  All those opposed?				false

		1145						LN		43		10		false		         10                 Motion carries.				false

		1146						LN		43		11		false		         11                 Thank you.  Thank you for the robust				false

		1147						LN		43		12		false		         12        discussion.				false

		1148						LN		43		13		false		         13                 Moving on to the Badger Mountain Solar Energy				false

		1149						LN		43		14		false		         14        Project update.				false

		1150						LN		43		15		false		         15                      MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and				false

		1151						LN		43		16		false		         16        good afternoon, Council Members.  For the record, this				false

		1152						LN		43		17		false		         17        is Joanne Snarski.				false

		1153						LN		43		18		false		         18                 On June 19, 2023, we received responses to our				false

		1154						LN		43		19		false		         19        third data request and also an update to the Badger				false

		1155						LN		43		20		false		         20        Mountain grass pellet survey from the springs field				false

		1156						LN		43		21		false		         21        work.  The applicant has also submitted a revised draft				false

		1157						LN		43		22		false		         22        of the cultural resources survey which is currently				false

		1158						LN		43		23		false		         23        under review by our contracted agencies and				false

		1159						LN		43		24		false		         24        participating tribal nations.  We anticipate their				false

		1160						LN		43		25		false		         25        feedback by the second week of July.  The information				false

		1161						PG		44		0		false		page 44				false

		1162						LN		44		1		false		          1        provided in response to these data requests shall be				false

		1163						LN		44		2		false		          2        used to support the development of the draft				false

		1164						LN		44		3		false		          3        environmental impact statement that is currently				false

		1165						LN		44		4		false		          4        in-progress.				false

		1166						LN		44		5		false		          5                 Are there any questions?				false

		1167						LN		44		6		false		          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions?				false

		1168						LN		44		7		false		          7                 Hearing none, thank you.				false

		1169						LN		44		8		false		          8                 Moving on to -- I turned my mic off.  Okay.				false

		1170						LN		44		9		false		          9                 Moving on to the Wautoma Solar Project update;				false

		1171						LN		44		10		false		         10        Mr. Caputo.				false

		1172						LN		44		11		false		         11                      MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and				false

		1173						LN		44		12		false		         12        Council Members.  This one should be pretty				false

		1174						LN		44		13		false		         13        straightforward.				false

		1175						LN		44		14		false		         14                 On June 1st of this year, the Council received				false

		1176						LN		44		15		false		         15        a request for a five-month extension of the application				false

		1177						LN		44		16		false		         16        review date.  As you will recall, on June 9th, at a				false

		1178						LN		44		17		false		         17        special Council meeting, the Council granted this				false

		1179						LN		44		18		false		         18        request.  The applicant is performing additional culture				false

		1180						LN		44		19		false		         19        resource field surveys as requested by EFSEC Staff in				false

		1181						LN		44		20		false		         20        order to complete our SEPA threshold determination.				false

		1182						LN		44		21		false		         21                 I am available for questions.				false

		1183						LN		44		22		false		         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?				false

		1184						LN		44		23		false		         23                 Thank you.				false

		1185						LN		44		24		false		         24                 Moving on to the Hop Hill Solar Project update;				false

		1186						LN		44		25		false		         25        Mr. Barnes.				false

		1187						PG		45		0		false		page 45				false

		1188						LN		45		1		false		          1                      MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and				false

		1189						LN		45		2		false		          2        Council Members.  For the record, this is John Barnes,				false

		1190						LN		45		3		false		          3        EFSEC Staff, for the Hop Hill application update for				false

		1191						LN		45		4		false		          4        May.				false

		1192						LN		45		5		false		          5                 We received additional materials from Brett				false

		1193						LN		45		6		false		          6        Knight, the applicant, a revised cultural resource				false

		1194						LN		45		7		false		          7        report which is being reviewed by Council Staff in				false

		1195						LN		45		8		false		          8        coordination with the Washington Department of				false

		1196						LN		45		9		false		          9        Archaeological and Historic Preservation.  We have also				false

		1197						LN		45		10		false		         10        received updated project production information from the				false

		1198						LN		45		11		false		         11        applicant.  These revisions include clarifications to				false

		1199						LN		45		12		false		         12        the MWDC generating capacity and percentage of the AC				false

		1200						LN		45		13		false		         13        capacity factor.  This updated information can be found				false

		1201						LN		45		14		false		         14        on the Hop Hill Project page on the EFSEC website.				false

		1202						LN		45		15		false		         15                 We are continuing to coordinate and review the				false

		1203						LN		45		16		false		         16        application with our contractor, contracted agencies,				false

		1204						LN		45		17		false		         17        and tribal governments.				false

		1205						LN		45		18		false		         18                 Are there any -- or, there are no updates to				false

		1206						LN		45		19		false		         19        report on.  No further updates to report on.				false

		1207						LN		45		20		false		         20                 Are there any questions?				false

		1208						LN		45		21		false		         21                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions for				false

		1209						LN		45		22		false		         22        Mr. Barnes?				false

		1210						LN		45		23		false		         23                 Thank you for your update.				false

		1211						LN		45		24		false		         24                 Moving on to the Carriger Solar Project update;				false

		1212						LN		45		25		false		         25        Ms. Snarski.				false

		1213						PG		46		0		false		page 46				false

		1214						LN		46		1		false		          1                      MS. SNARSKI:  Thanks again, Chair Drew.				false

		1215						LN		46		2		false		          2        Again, this is Joanne Snarski.				false

		1216						LN		46		3		false		          3                 As you will recall, on June 9, 2023, the				false

		1217						LN		46		4		false		          4        Council held a special meeting and voted to extend the				false

		1218						LN		46		5		false		          5        time line for a decision on whether or not to grant				false

		1219						LN		46		6		false		          6        expedited review.  Extension extends that decision				false

		1220						LN		46		7		false		          7        through August 17, 2023.				false

		1221						LN		46		8		false		          8                 On June 16, 2023, we received responses to our				false

		1222						LN		46		9		false		          9        first data request for supplemental information on the				false

		1223						LN		46		10		false		         10        proposed Carriger Solar Facility.  The information we				false
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          4



          5



          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Good afternoon.  This is



          7        Kathleen Drew, Chair of the Energy Facility Site



          8        Evaluation Council, calling our June meeting to order.



          9                 Ms. Grantham, will you call the role.



         10                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair Drew.



         11                 Department of Commerce?



         12                      MS. KELLY:  Kate Kelly present.



         13                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Ecology?



         14                 Department of Fish and Wildlife?



         15                      MR. LEVITT:  Sorry.  Ecology, Eli Levitt



         16        present.



         17                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



         18                 Back to, Department of Fish and Wildlife?



         19                 Department of Natural Resources?



         20                      MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young present.



         21                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities and



         22        Transportation Commission?



         23                      MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster present.



         24                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Local government and



         25        optional state agencies.  For the Horse Heaven Project,
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          1        for the Department of Agriculture?



          2                      MR. SANDISON:  Derek Sandison present.



          3                      MS. GRANTHAM:  For Benton County?



          4                      MR. SHARP:  Dave Sharp present.



          5                      MS. GRANTHAM:  This is for Horse Heaven,



          6        Benton County, Ed Brost; although, I don't see him.



          7                      MR. SHARP:  Oh.  I am sorry.  I got to



          8        wait.



          9                      MS. GRANTHAM:  No problem.



         10                 For Badger Mountain, Douglas County?



         11                      MS. GUILIO:  Jordyn Guilio present.



         12                      MS. GRANTHAM:  For the Wautoma Solar



         13        Project, for Benton County, Mr. Sharp?



         14                      MR. SHARP:  Present.



         15                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



         16                 Washington State Department of Transportation?



         17                 For the Hop Hill Solar Project, for Benton



         18        County, Paul Krupin?



         19                 For the Carriger Solar Project, for Klickitat



         20        County, Matt Chiles?



         21                      MR. CHILES:  Matt Chiles present.



         22                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



         23                 For the Assistant Attorney Generals, Jon



         24        Thompson?



         25                 Jenna Slocum?
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          1                      MS. SLOCUM:  Jenna Slocum present.



          2                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Administrative Law Judges,



          3        Adam Torem?



          4                      JUDGE TOREM:  Present.



          5                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Laura Bradley?



          6                 Dan Gerard?



          7                      JUDGE GERARD:  Present.



          8                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Micah Larripa?



          9                      JUDGE LARRIPA:  Present.



         10                      MS. GRANTHAM:  For EFSEC Council Staff,



         11        Sonia Bumpus?



         12                      MS. BUMPUS:  Present.



         13                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer?



         14                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.



         15                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon?



         16                      MS. MOON:  Amy Moon present.



         17                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Stew Henderson?



         18                      MR. HENDERSON:  Stew Henderson present.



         19                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Joan Owens?



         20                      MS. OWENS:  Present.



         21                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Dave Walker?



         22                      MR. WALKER:  Present.



         23                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Sonja Skavland?



         24                      MS. SKAVLAND:  Present.



         25                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Lisa Masengale?

�







                                                                          7







          1                 Sara Randolph?



          2                      MS. RANDOLPH:  Present.



          3                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Sean Greene?



          4                      MR. GREENE:  Present.



          5                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo?



          6                      MR. CAPUTO:  Present.



          7                      MS. GRANTHAM:  John Barnes?



          8                      MR. BARNES:  Present.



          9                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Osta Davis?



         10                 Joanne Snarski?



         11                      MS. SNARSKI:  Present.



         12                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Alex Shiley?



         13                      MS. SHILEY:  Present.



         14                      MS. GRANTHAM:  For the operational



         15        updates, Kittitas Valley Wind Power Project -- or,



         16        "Project," excuse me, Eric Melbardis?



         17                      MR. MELBARDIS:  Present.



         18                      MS. GRANTHAM:  For the Wild Horse Wind



         19        Power Project?



         20                      MS. RANDOLPH:  This is Sara Randolph.  I



         21        will be speaking for Wild Horse.



         22                      MS. GRANTHAM:  For the Grays Harbor Energy



         23        Center?



         24                      THE WITNESS:  Again this is Sara Randolph.



         25        I will be speaking for Grays Harbor.
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          1                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Chehalis Generation



          2        Facility?



          3                      MR. SMITH:  This is Jeremy Smith.  I am



          4        present.



          5                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



          6                 Columbia Generating Station?



          7                      MS. RAMOS:  For Columbia Generating



          8        Station, this is Mary Ramos.



          9                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



         10                 Columbia Solar?



         11                 Goose Prairie Solar?



         12                      MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Cody Burttschell



         13        present.



         14                      MS. GRANTHAM:  And do we have someone for



         15        the Counsel for the Environment?



         16                      MS. RANDOLPH:  Yes.  Sara Randolph



         17        present.



         18                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



         19                 Chair, there is a quorum for the regular



         20        council, Horse Heaven council, Badger Mountain council,



         21        Wautoma Solar council, Hop Hill council, and Carriger



         22        Solar council.  Thank you.



         23                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         24                 You Council Members see the proposed agenda in



         25        front of us.  Is there a motion to adopt the proposed
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          1        agenda?



          2                      MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.



          3                      CHAIR DREW:  Second?



          4                      MR. LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Second.



          5                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          6                 Any discussion?



          7                 All those in favor, say "aye."



          8                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



          9                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



         10                 Agenda is adopted.



         11                 Moving on to the meeting minutes.  We have two



         12        sets of meeting minutes in front of us, one from the



         13        May 16th Carriger Solar land use hearing minutes and one



         14        from the May 17th monthly meeting minutes.



         15                 Bringing the May 16th Carriger Solar land use



         16        hearing minutes in front of us.  Is there a motion to



         17        approve the minutes?



         18                      MR. CHILES:  Matt Chiles.  So moved.



         19                      CHAIR DREW:  Second?



         20                      THE WITNESS:  Stacey Brewster.  Second.



         21                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Chair Drew, really quick.



         22        Apologies.  I did not get the minutes into the Council



         23        packet somehow, so I will be pulling them up briefly.



         24                      CHAIR DREW:  Oh, okay.



         25                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Apologies.
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          1                      CHAIR DREW:  I don't have -- no worries.



          2        I have no corrections.  I don't know if anyone else



          3        does.



          4                 Does anyone have corrections?



          5                 Hearing none, let's just take a vote on



          6        approving the May 16th Carriger Solar land use hearing



          7        minutes.  All those in favor of approval, say "aye."



          8                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



          9                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



         10                 The motion carries.



         11                 Moving on to the May 17th monthly meeting



         12        minutes.  Is there a motion to approve the minutes?



         13                      MS. KELLY:  Kate Kelly.  Move to approve.



         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         15                 Second?



         16                      MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.



         17                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         18                 I only have one correction that I saw.



         19                 There is feedback.  Whoever is -- has their



         20        mike open, please turn that off.  I'd appreciate it.



         21        Thank you.



         22                 The only correction I found was on page 14,



         23        line 15.  The word "rider," r-i-d-e-r, should be



         24        "writer," w-r-i-t-e-r.



         25                 Are there any other corrections?
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          1                 Hearing none, all those in favor of approving



          2        the May 17th monthly meeting minutes as amended, please



          3        say "aye."



          4                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



          5                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



          6                 Meeting minutes are approved.



          7                 Moving on to our operational updates.  Kittitas



          8        Valley Wind Project; Eric Melbardis.



          9                      MR. MELBARDIS:  Good afternoon, Chair



         10        Drew, EFSEC Council, and Staff.  This is Eric Melbardis



         11        with EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wind Power



         12        Project.  I have nothing nonroutine to report.



         13                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         14                 Wild Horse Wind Power Project; Ms. Randolph.



         15                      MS. RANDOLPH:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,



         16        Council Members, and Staff.  For the record, this is



         17        Sara Randolph, Site Specialist for Wild Horse Facility.



         18        The facility update is provided in your packet.  There



         19        are no nonroutine updates to report.



         20                 Are there any questions?



         21                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Chehalis



         22        Generation Facility; Jeremy Smith.



         23                      MR. SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,



         24        Council, and EFSEC Staff.  I am Jeremy Smith, the



         25        Maintenance Manager at the Chehalis Generation Facility.
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          1        The only -- we only have one nonroutine thing.  The



          2        plant manager has recently resigned the position, and we



          3        are proceeding forward with filling our position.



          4                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Good luck with



          5        the search.



          6                 Moving on to Grays Harbor Energy Center;



          7        Ms. Randolph.



          8                      MS. RANDOLPH:  Chair Drew, Council



          9        Members, and Staff, the facility update is provided in



         10        your packet.  There are no nonroutine items to report.



         11                 Are there any questions?



         12                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         13                 Columbia Solar.  Is Mr. Cushing there or are --



         14        Ms. Randolph?



         15                 It looks like there are no nonroutine items to



         16        report there, as well.



         17                 Moving on to Columbia Generating Station;



         18        Ms. Ramos.



         19                      MS. RAMOS:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,



         20        EFSEC Council, and Staff.  For the record, this is Mary



         21        Ramos with Energy Northwest.  I do have with me in the



         22        room Marshall Schmitt and then also Felicia Najera-Paxon



         23        of Energy Northwest, as well.



         24                 For WNP 1 and 4, I do not have any nonroutine



         25        items to report.  I do have one item to report for
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          1        Columbia Generating Station.



          2                 For Columbia Generating Station, on Tuesday,



          3        June 13th, when Columbia Generating Station was shut



          4        down for our refueling and maintenance outage, the



          5        facility experienced an unintended loss of no more than



          6        300 gallons of oil from the turbine oil heat exchanger



          7        when a tube failed during routine maintenance.  The oil,



          8        which is labeled Mobil DTE 732, is not hazardous,



          9        according to the safety data sheet for the product.  The



         10        oil was lost at a site cooling system which consists of



         11        six cooling towers, an intake structure in the river,



         12        and a discharge pipe to the Columbia River.  The



         13        discharge, also termed a blowdown, is authorized by a



         14        national pollutant discharge elimination system permit



         15        which has been issued by EFSEC to Energy Northwest.



         16                 Once the failure was identified, the



         17        circulating water system was immediately isolated and



         18        discharge to the Columbia River ceased.  Energy



         19        Northwest notified the U.S. Coast Guard, Washington



         20        State Emergency Management Division, and EFSEC of the



         21        potential discharge for the river on the day that it was



         22        identified, which was June 13th.  Washington State



         23        Department of Ecology and Energy Northwest conducted



         24        independent visual observations of the Columbia River



         25        near the Columbia Generating Station discharge outfall
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          1        on June 13th and confirmed no visible oil sheen observed



          2        on the Columbia River.



          3                 Energy Northwest immediately worked with



          4        GrayMar Environmental Services, an approved and licensed



          5        environmental services company, to remove oil from the



          6        cooling water system.  GrayMar assessed the cooling



          7        water system on the morning of June 14th to assess and



          8        develop a cleanup strategy.  GrayMar began work to



          9        remove oil from the cooling water system using absorbent



         10        materials the morning of June 15th.



         11                 I apologize.  There is a plant announcement.



         12                      CHAIR DREW:  I am sorry, there is trouble



         13        with the audio.



         14                 Go ahead.



         15                      MS. RAMOS:  I apologize for that



         16        interruption.  There was a plant announcement, and I had



         17        to go on mute.  So I will continue.



         18                 So like I was saying, GrayMar assessed the



         19        cooling water system on June 14th to assist in



         20        developing a cleanup strategy.  GrayMar began work to



         21        remove oil from the cooling water system using absorbent



         22        materials the morning of June 15th.



         23                 This strategy for -- used for removing oil has



         24        been very effective.  As of June 20th, approximately 137



         25        gallons of oil had been recovered, and this estimate is
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          1        based on the weight of oil-soaked absorbent materials.



          2                 As of today, no oil sheen is visible on the



          3        circulating water system, based on visual observation.



          4        However, as a precautionary measure, absorbent materials



          5        to remove oil from the circulating water remain in place



          6        and continue to be monitored.



          7                 In addition, Energy Northwest worked with



          8        Washington State Department of Ecology, GrayMar, and



          9        EFSEC to develop and implement a pollution prevention



         10        strategy for restoring blowdowns; in other words,



         11        discharge of circulating cooling water to the Columbia



         12        River.  On June 20th, absorbent booms were strategically



         13        placed downstream of the outfall, based on river flow



         14        and conditions.  Blowdown was restarted on June 20th at



         15        approximately 10:51 a.m. for about eight hours.  During



         16        the discharge period, GrayMar, Ecology, and Energy



         17        Northwest were on boats on the river near the outfall to



         18        visually monitor for oil sheens.  In addition, drones



         19        were used to support the river monitoring.  No visible



         20        oil sheen was observed by boat or drone.



         21                 Energy Northwest has been providing frequent



         22        updates to Ecology and EFSEC on the status of the oil



         23        recovery and during the planned restoration, a blowdown



         24        on June 20th.  Communications with Ecology and EFSEC



         25        continue to work -- continue as the work progresses.
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          1        And I do want to add that Energy Northwest sincerely



          2        appreciates the collaboration and ongoing communications



          3        with EFSEC and Ecology on this incident.



          4                 That's all I have to report.



          5                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you for your update.



          6                 Are there questions from Council Members?



          7                      MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey Brewster.



          8        Just a quick question.  I am wondering what will the



          9        variables be to determine that cleanup is complete?



         10                      MS. RAMOS:  Yes.  This is Mary Ramos



         11        again.  So we are continuing communication on the



         12        progress with EFSEC and Ecology.  I am happy to report



         13        that as of today, there is no visible oil sheen on our



         14        circulating water system.



         15                 As far as duration of monitoring in the river,



         16        we are continuing those discussions with EFSEC and



         17        Ecology, and we have another meeting scheduled at 4:00



         18        p.m. this afternoon.



         19                 Does that help answer your question?



         20                      MS. BREWSTER:  Yes.  Thank you.



         21                      MS. RAMOS:  Okay.  Thank you.



         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Other questions from Council



         23        Members?



         24                      MR. YOUNG:  Chair Drew, this is Lenny



         25        Young.  I have a question.
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          1                      CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  Go ahead.



          2                      MR. YOUNG:  I think you mentioned that 137



          3        pounds of oil has been recovered so far from the



          4        absorbent materials; is that correct?



          5                      MS. RAMOS:  137 gallons of oil, that



          6        was --



          7                      MR. YOUNG:  Okay.



          8                      MS. RAMOS:  -- an estimate based on



          9        yesterday, and it's based on the weight of the



         10        oil-soaked absorbent materials that we have gathered so



         11        far.



         12                      MR. YOUNG:  Okay.



         13                      MS. RAMOS:  Those absorbent materials



         14        do -- are -- continue to be in place to recover as much



         15        oil as possible from our circulating water system.



         16                      MR. YOUNG:  So roughly, a little less than



         17        half the oil has been recovered?



         18                      MS. RAMOS:  That's correct.  And I do want



         19        to emphasize that the 300 gallons is a very conservative



         20        maximum potential release.



         21                      MR. YOUNG:  Understood.  Thank you.



         22                      MS. RAMOS:  Thank you.



         23                      CHAIR DREW:  Other questions from Council



         24        Members?



         25                 Well, we will continue to look forward to
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          1        updates from you.  Thank everybody for their response



          2        during this effort, and appreciate your ability to give



          3        us this complete report today.  Thank you.



          4                 Moving on to Goose Prairie Solar Project



          5        update.  Mr. Burttschell, welcome.  I don't know that we



          6        have heard from you before.



          7                      MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Hi.  No, this is my



          8        first meeting, so apologies if this isn't how it



          9        normally goes, but.  Should I just go ahead and read off



         10        of the tick list or update form?  I mean --



         11                      CHAIR DREW:  Just provide us -- just --



         12        and you're just undergoing construction, so just give us



         13        an overview of what's happening and what you expect is



         14        next, and you can keep it short.



         15                      MR. BURTTSCHELL:  I'll be short, yes.



         16                      CHAIR DREW:  And answer questions if there



         17        are any.



         18                      MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Got it.  Yes.



         19                 So really, the project is in a soft



         20        mobilization phase right now with the full mobilization



         21        looking to be happening either the end of next week or



         22        the beginning of July.  So at this time next month, the



         23        update will be a little bit more substantial.  But at



         24        this point, it's just mobilization at the moment with



         25        construction starting probably first week of July.
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          1                      CHAIR DREW:  Do you have an estimate of



          2        how long construction might take?



          3                      MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Right now, we are



          4        looking at a completion date of late October of 2024.



          5        Um, yeah.  At this time, that's our ET -- current



          6        schedule.  So about 16 months.



          7                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.  Are there



          8        any other questions from Council Members?



          9                 Thank you and welcome again.



         10                      MR. BURTTSCHELL:  Thanks.



         11                      CHAIR DREW:  Moving on to the High Top and



         12        Ostrea Project update; Ms. Randolph.



         13                      MS. RANDOLPH:  Chair Drew, Council



         14        Members, and Staff, for the record, this is Sara



         15        Randolph, Site Specialist for High Top and Ostrea



         16        Facilities.  EFSEC Staff are coordinating with the



         17        certificate holder on submission of preconstruction



         18        plans and schedules.



         19                 Are there any questions?



         20                      CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?



         21                 Okay.  Thank you.



         22                 Moving on to Whistling Ridge Energy Project



         23        update; Mr. Caputo.



         24                      MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and



         25        Council Members.  For the record, my name is Lance
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          1        Caputo, and I am the Siting Specialist recently assigned



          2        to the Whistling Ridge Energy Facility.



          3                 On March 2, 2022, EFSEC received a request from



          4        Whistling Ridge Energy LLC for a three-year extension of



          5        its site certification agreement.  Whistling Ridge



          6        Energy LLC is the certificate holder and owner of the



          7        proposed facility.  Twin Creek -- excuse me.  Twin



          8        Creeks Timber LLC is the owner of Whistling Ridge



          9        Energy.



         10                 The current agreement will expire in November



         11        of this year.  The certificate holder's request will



         12        extend the site certification agreement until November



         13        2025.  The certificate holder is requesting an extension



         14        to review the financial and environmental feasibility of



         15        constructing its proposed facility.  Excuse me.



         16        "Approved" facility.  Updated environmental studies,



         17        some of which are species-specific and seasonally



         18        sensitive, need to be performed; hence, the request for



         19        three years.



         20                 On March 16, 2022, EFSEC received a request



         21        from Twin Creeks Timber LLC that they intended to submit



         22        a transfer request of ownership of Whistling Ridge



         23        Energy and requested the Council consider both requests



         24        simultaneously.



         25                 On April 27th of this year, EFSEC received a
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          1        request for transfer of ownership from the certificate



          2        holder.  Staff will schedule a public informational



          3        meeting and will coordinate with the Council on its



          4        availabilities.



          5                 Thank you.  And I am available for any



          6        questions.



          7                      CHAIR DREW:  So the three years is from



          8        that first date in 2022; is that correct?



          9                      MR. CAPUTO:  Well, from the date the



         10        certificate agreement will be -- have expired.  It would



         11        have expired in November of this year.  So they are



         12        requesting three years from this fall -- this November,



         13        upcoming November.



         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  So that's 2026.  Okay.



         15                 Ms. Hafkemeyer?



         16                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you, Chair Drew.



         17                 I just wanted to jump in and indicate that



         18        Mr. McMahan is present on the line for some of these



         19        questions if the Council has additional questions about



         20        Whistling Ridge or the requests that have been



         21        submitted.



         22                      CHAIR DREW:  I am just not sure if I heard



         23        the date right.  So what date is it that they are asking



         24        for the extension until?



         25                 Mr. McMahan maybe?
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          1                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Chair Drew.  I



          2        appreciate the opportunity to respond to the questions.



          3        Tim McMahan, for the record, and I represent Twin Creeks



          4        Timber.  Lance struggled with that.  It is difficult to



          5        say quickly.



          6                 And just to do a really quick rewind.  I don't



          7        want to take very much time here because really, this is



          8        all aimed to having a public meeting in the near future.



          9                 So the key thing that we really need to do here



         10        is to transfer the site certificate so that you have the



         11        right billing entity.  Whistling Ridge Energy is the



         12        project, and there is an LLC, Whistling Ridge Energy



         13        LLC.  But the way that the Council Staff interprets



         14        this, and I don't disagree, is, it's really the upstream



         15        owner that is responsible for making payments and



         16        staying on top of the conditioning of the project, et



         17        cetera, so that is Twin Creeks Timber.  And we have



         18        provided you with some considerable financial



         19        information that we can talk about when we actually head



         20        into the adjudication, itself.



         21                 There is -- you know, I would say that there is



         22        some debate about the expiration of the site



         23        certificate.  The -- and we will -- that's something we



         24        will need to talk about when we actually do meet here.



         25        But the -- I would say the shortest time frame that we
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          1        would be asking for is -- would be assuming expiration



          2        of the site certificate this fall in 2018, and for an



          3        additional three-year period is what we are requesting



          4        in order to --



          5                      MR. CAPUTO:  2026.



          6                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Yeah.  In 20- -- yeah.



          7        Excuse me.  Yeah.



          8                 And Greg Corbin, by the way, from TCT is on the



          9        line, as well.



         10                 So we will be requesting the extension in order



         11        to determine the feasibility of continuing with this



         12        project, and we are asking the Council's authorization



         13        to do so.



         14                 So, I guess, you know, I am available for



         15        additional questions, but I don't really want to, you



         16        know, kind of move into argument about the merits of



         17        this because that's really --



         18                      CHAIR DREW:  No.



         19                      MR. MCMAHAN:  -- what the upcoming hearing



         20        is for.



         21                      CHAIR DREW:  That's fine.  I was just



         22        pecking.  But we will get back to the date after we hear



         23        more information --



         24                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Right.



         25                      CHAIR DREW:  -- at the public meeting.
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          1                 Mr. Young?



          2                      MR. YOUNG:  Yeah.  I am just looking at



          3        the document that's on the screen.  In the first



          4        paragraph, it looks like it says the extension is



          5        requested to November of 2025?



          6                      MR. CAPUTO:  Yes.



          7                      CHAIR DREW:  And that's what I heard



          8        Mr. Caputo say, so that's why I was raising the



          9        question, but that's okay.  We will hear more as it goes



         10        on.



         11                      MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you.  And Chair Drew,



         12        if I could clarify one quick thing?  That document was



         13        written a year ago.  So we were asking for a three-year



         14        extension which will put us at 2026.



         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.



         16                 And what we need to do, Council Members, is to



         17        conduct not an adjudication but a public informational



         18        meeting, and that will be the next step, and that will



         19        be a full presentation by the certificate -- well, let's



         20        just say by Twin...okay.  Now I am forgetting.



         21                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Twin Creeks Timber.  Yeah.



         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Twin Creeks Timber.



         23                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Or the certificate holder.



         24                      CHAIR DREW:  Certificate holder, about the



         25        change in ownership which would officially make them the
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          1        certificate holder.



          2                      MR. MCMAHAN:  There you go.



          3                      CHAIR DREW:  So.  That's the complicating



          4        factor here.  Okay.



          5                 So we will be able to discuss this in more



          6        detail with the public present at a virtual public



          7        informational meeting as soon as we schedule it.



          8                 Other questions?



          9                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Chair Drew.



         10                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         11                 Moving on to Desert Claim site certification



         12        agreement amendment update; Ms. Moon.



         13                      MS. MOON:  Yes.  Good afternoon, Council,



         14        Chair Drew, and Council Members.  Just, again, for the



         15        record, this is Amy Moon providing a project update on



         16        Desert Claim.



         17                 At the May 2023 Council meeting, I provided an



         18        update on the Desert Claim Project detailing the receipt



         19        of a request to amend the Desert Claim site



         20        certification agreement.  We shortened that to "SCA."



         21        The request was received from EDF Renewables on May 5th



         22        of 2023 and was a request to extend the deadline for



         23        completing construction by five years, from the current



         24        date of November 13, 2023, to November 13, 2028.



         25                 The signed certification agreement authorizes
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          1        the certificate holder to construct the project such



          2        that substantial completion is achieved no later than



          3        five years from the date that Amendment No. 1 was



          4        approved by the Council.  So we had an SCA, and then we



          5        had Amendment No. 1 to that SCA.  The Council approved



          6        that on November 13th of 2018; therefore, the current



          7        SCA substantial completion date is November of 2023.



          8                 Review of the extension request is being



          9        completed by EFSEC Staff in consultation with the EFSEC



         10        legal counsel under the Washington Administrative Code



         11        463-68-080.  An informational meeting on the SCA



         12        amendment is scheduled for Thursday, July 13, 2023, at



         13        5:00 p.m.



         14                 Does the Council have any questions?



         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions?



         16                 So at that meeting, we can expect a full



         17        presentation from the certificate holder, as well as



         18        comments from the public, and that, too, will be a



         19        virtual meeting.



         20                      MS. MOON:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair Drew.



         21                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         22                 Moving on to the Horse Heaven Wind Farm Project



         23        update; Ms. Moon.



         24                      MS. MOON:  Good afternoon again, Council,



         25        Chair Drew, and Council Members.  I am providing an
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          1        update on the Horse Heaven Wind Project.



          2                 EFSEC Staff continued work on the preparation



          3        of the final environmental impact statement, or final



          4        EIS.  Staff are currently engaged in reviewing revisions



          5        to the final EIS as prepared by our consultant



          6        WSP/Golder.



          7                 EFSEC Staff are also coordinating final EIS



          8        revision reviews by Washington state agency experts in



          9        resource topic areas such as wildlife and habitat,



         10        vegetation, and water resources.



         11                 Preparation of the final EIS includes



         12        incorporation of comments received from the public and



         13        agencies during the draft EIS public comment period



         14        which was held December 19th of 2022 through



         15        February 1st of 2023 in which over 2,500 written and



         16        oral comments were received.



         17                 Part of responding to the comments received on



         18        the draft EIS is to evaluate updated and additional



         19        information received.  Responses to data requests on air



         20        quality, visual, water, and transportation are currently



         21        being evaluated and used to update the draft



         22        environmental impact statement.  In addition, EFSEC



         23        Staff continue to actively engage with Washington state



         24        agencies regarding potential impact analysis and



         25        mitigation opportunities.
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          1                 The final EIS preparation is also informed by



          2        the updated application for site certification submitted



          3        by the applicant in December 2022.  In addition, an



          4        updated application scheduled for submittal after



          5        adjudication, which is a separate process from preparing



          6        the environmental impact statement under SEPA, will also



          7        inform the final EIS.



          8                 EFSEC Staff would also like to inform the



          9        Council that along with the pre-filed adjudication



         10        testimony already available, additional submissions will



         11        be added to the Council SharePoint for review as we



         12        approach the scheduled adjudication hearings.



         13                 Does the Council have any questions regarding



         14        the project update?



         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions for



         16        Ms. Moon about the project update?



         17                      MS. MOON:  Okay.  Hearing none --



         18                      CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead with the -- yes.



         19                      MS. MOON:  Okay.



         20                      CHAIR DREW:  The extension request.  Go



         21        ahead.



         22                      MS. MOON:  Okay.  So on the extension



         23        request.  EFSEC Staff worked with the applicant to



         24        establish an updated commitment date to complete the



         25        processing of the Horse Heaven application for site
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          1        certification.  This new date, referred to as the



          2        extension date, as defined in the Revised Code of



          3        Washington 80.50.100, that requires that the Council



          4        shall report to the Governor its recommendations as to



          5        the approval or rejection of an application for



          6        certification within 12 months of receipt by the Council



          7        of such an application or such later time as is mutually



          8        agreed by the Council and the applicant.



          9                 The current date to report to the Governor is



         10        set as July 8th of 2023.  However, Scout Clean Energy



         11        submitted a third extension request to the EFSEC Council



         12        on June 12, 2023, to extend the application processing



         13        of the proposed Horse Heaven Wind Farm application for



         14        site certification to January 31st of 2024.  A copy of



         15        the extension request letter is included in the Council



         16        packet, and it's on display on our screens.



         17                 Does the Council have any questions regarding



         18        the extension request?



         19                      CHAIR DREW:  So the extension request was



         20        received on June 12th and posted to the Council's



         21        website and a request as a final action item was put



         22        out.  Did we receive -- as is our practice, we take



         23        written comments unless we do not provide enough time



         24        for people to make those written comments.  Did we



         25        receive any written comments on this item?
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          1                      MS. MOON:  I am going to have to refer to



          2        the EFSEC Office Staff.  I am not aware of any written



          3        comments.



          4                 Joan or Andrea?



          5                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Hi.  This is Andrea, Chair



          6        Drew.  I looked, and we did not receive any written



          7        comments for the comment campaign we put out last week.



          8                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.



          9                 Council Members, are there questions?



         10                 I do see a hand by Shona Voelckers, I believe,



         11        with the Yakama Tribe.  And I know we received a letter



         12        to the Council, but that was about adjudication.  This



         13        is not an issue of adjudication.  This is an issue of



         14        what is in front of us, is, the extension, which, we



         15        know the project will not be ready to be recommended one



         16        way or another to the Governor the first week of July,



         17        so our practice is not to take public comments if we



         18        have given people that opportunity to provide written



         19        comments ahead-of-time.



         20                 Council Members --



         21                      MS. GRANTHAM:  If I may?  Chair Drew, we



         22        did submit written comments, and I would just like to



         23        make that clear to the Council that we submitted a



         24        letter commenting on the specific extension request.



         25        Three of the parties did yesterday.
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          1                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you for that.  I



          2        will pull -- let's see.  Andrea or Joan, can you pull



          3        that up?  I -- let's pull that letter up.  Thank you.



          4                 We will take a couple-minute break here so we



          5        can make sure the Council can see that.



          6                                (Pause in proceedings.)



          7                      MS. BUMPUS:  Chair Drew, this is Sonia



          8        Bumpus.  I just wanted to mention that when we opened



          9        the public comment period for this extension request,



         10        that was closed last week, so if this letter -- the



         11        letter that came in related to requesting more time for



         12        the adjudication in light of this extension, if it came



         13        in yesterday or what have you, it would be past the



         14        deadline to submit comments on this particular action.



         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  If we have a copy of



         16        the letter, I'd like it to be put forward for the



         17        Council to look at.  Thank you.



         18                      MS. BUMPUS:  Sure.



         19                 Joan and Andrea, do you have access to the



         20        letter?



         21                      MS. GRANTHAM:  I -- this is Andrea



         22        Grantham.  I am currently having issues finding it



         23        within the email.



         24                 Ms. Voelckers, do you know which email you sent



         25        it to, if it was maybe to the adjudication group or did
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          1        you have it directly listed as a comment for this item?



          2                      MS. VOELCKERS:  It was submitted to EFSEC



          3        at "efsec.wa.gov" with the adjudication parties cc'd; to



          4        the full service list, including EFSEC Staff.



          5                      MS. BUMPUS:  I think I have located an



          6        email with it.  It looks like --



          7                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Chair Drew --



          8                      MS. BUMPUS:  It looks like it came in



          9        yesterday.



         10                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Yes.  I believe I have



         11        found it.



         12                      MR. MCMAHAN:  Chair Drew, Tim McMahan.  If



         13        I could just say something very quickly here concerning



         14        this matter?



         15                      CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.



         16                      MR. MCMAHAN:  We were aware that this



         17        letter came in because Scout Clean Energy -- and, by the



         18        way, Tim McMahan with Scout Clean Energy.



         19                 Because we were certainly aware of the cutoff



         20        time for the letter, we did not respond.  We didn't



         21        think that was in order.  So I would -- I have some



         22        concerns with the Council considering this at this point



         23        in time.



         24                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Thank you.



         25                      MS. BUMPUS:  All right, Chair Drew.  We
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          1        have the letter up so that the Council can take a look



          2        at this.



          3                 And I just wanted to remind the Council --



          4                      CHAIR DREW:  This is an adjudication, and



          5        I read it as an adjudication letter.



          6                 May -- can we see the last page, please.



          7                 This is an adjudication issue, not an issue



          8        about the extension request, from my review here.  The



          9        extension does not deal with adjudication.  Adjudication



         10        is dealt with through Judge Torem and the adjudication



         11        process.



         12                      MS. BUMPUS:  We just respectfully request



         13        the Council be allowed to read the letter that was



         14        submitted to the Council.  Thank you.



         15                      CHAIR DREW:  We will read it.  It is not



         16        germane to the issue of whether or not we have an



         17        extension of this project.  It is germane to the



         18        adjudication.  It is not germane to the extension



         19        request.



         20                 Council Members, are there questions?



         21                      MS. KELLY:  Chair, this is Kate Kelly.



         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.



         23                      MS. KELLY:  Just in reading this short



         24        letter from Scout Energy, it doesn't really ask for an



         25        extension date.  I mean, it says that they extend with
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          1        an expectation of completing the adjudication.  So that



          2        they are asking for an extension through January 31,



          3        2024; is that correct?



          4                      CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  The first paragraph



          5        there.  And they are explaining why they are asking for



          6        that extension request to January 31, 2024.  But that's



          7        the request.  Okay?



          8                      MS. KELLY:  Okay.  Yes.



          9                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         10                 Other questions from Council Members?



         11                      MR. YOUNG:  Chair Drew, this is Lenny



         12        Young.  Does Staff have comments for a recommendation,



         13        with respect to Scout's request?



         14                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         15                      MS. BUMPUS:  This is Sonia Bumpus, the



         16        Director for EFSEC.  And this extension request is an



         17        administrative extension.  It basically just allows --



         18        which, as the -- as the letter from Scout discusses, it



         19        allows EFSEC the time it needs to complete the SEPA



         20        review process, to conduct the adjudicative proceedings,



         21        and then to deliberate and make the recommendation, and



         22        so.



         23                 Staff's recommendation is that the Council go



         24        ahead and approve this extension request.  It's going to



         25        allow us to complete our processes so that we can get
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          1        our recommendation package to the Governor, and the hope



          2        is that we would complete that before the January 31,



          3        2024, extension date.



          4                      MR. YOUNG:  Thank you.



          5                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there questions from



          6        Council Members or discussion?



          7                      MS. KELLY:  Chair Drew, this is Kate



          8        Kelly.  I am just trying to understand what is the



          9        consequence if we were to not approve the extension;



         10        that extension request?



         11                      CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Bumpus?



         12                      MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.



         13                 So when an application is submitted, the



         14        applicant provides an initial deposit, and work



         15        commences on the review of the application, and all of



         16        these different processes I just talked about.



         17                 If the extension request is not granted,



         18        essentially we would cease our review on this



         19        application, and the review of this application for site



         20        certification would stop, and that would be it.  So



         21        by -- so by the -- sorry.



         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Other -- go ahead.



         23                      MS. BUMPUS:  I was just going to -- I am



         24        just going to say that so by extending the request --



         25        or, providing this extension, it allows the process to

�







                                                                         36







          1        continue, and to allow us to complete all of these



          2        different steps that are part of our process that we



          3        need to complete before we can make our recommendation.



          4        But if then the Council were not to extend it, then the



          5        work would cease.



          6                      MS. KELLY:  So -- this is Kate again.



          7                 So the adjudication schedule was set with the



          8        assumption that this deadline would be extended by the



          9        Council.



         10                      CHAIR DREW:  It would...



         11                      MS. BUMPUS:  So -- Chair Drew, do you want



         12        me to respond?



         13                      CHAIR DREW:  Please.  Yes.  Thank you.



         14                      MS. BUMPUS:  Well, so the extension -- the



         15        adjudication was scheduled, based off what steps



         16        remained left to be completed.  We knew that we would



         17        likely need an extension, but -- in order to complete



         18        adjudication, but the question was, we also knew that we



         19        were going to need time to complete the final



         20        environmental impact statement, and so.  You know, our



         21        goal is to not do multiple extensions if we don't need



         22        to do that, so what we did was, we worked with Scout on



         23        drafting and finalizing a schedule for the final



         24        environmental impact statement, and that helped to



         25        inform this extension request here, in hopes that we
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          1        would not be having to do multiple.  You know.  For



          2        instance, having to do another one right after



          3        adjudication; doing another one perhaps after the final



          4        environmental impact statement.  So by trying to



          5        synchronize the schedules that were set for adjudication



          6        and what is estimated for the final environmental impact



          7        statement, we think we have got an extension request



          8        that captures, you know, the time needed to complete the



          9        full process.



         10                 Now, Council Member Kelly, I would add, though,



         11        that it's possible we would need more time, but we don't



         12        anticipate that at this point.



         13                      CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Bumpus, can you describe



         14        the steps that take place after adjudication?



         15                      MS. BUMPUS:  Well, there is quite a bit



         16        that goes into it.  One of the things that will occur



         17        after the adjudication is that the applicant will have



         18        an opportunity to submit a final application for site



         19        certification.  Well, I should say, rather, a revised or



         20        updated application for site certification.  This



         21        typically reflects things that were proffered through



         22        the adjudicative proceeding.  And so we would get an



         23        updated application for site certification.  That



         24        information --



         25                      CHAIR DREW:  And what is -- can you say
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          1        what the time frame is for that updated application



          2        after the adjudication?



          3                      MS. BUMPUS:  Off the top of my head, I



          4        believe it's 60 days.  I believe our rules say 60 days



          5        is their deadline.  Within 60 days of ending the



          6        adjudicative proceeding, the applicant must submit an



          7        updated application for site certification.  I'd want to



          8        double-check it, but I believe it's 60 days.



          9                 And so after that occurs -- or, I should say,



         10        concurrently, you know, as that is happening, the



         11        Council would be working with our Administrative Law



         12        Judge to prepare Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law



         13        which are based off the adjudicative proceeding.  And



         14        then once the application for site certification that's



         15        been updated is received, the Staff will take a look at



         16        that.  It will also be shared with the public and the



         17        Council, posted to our website, et cetera, and we will



         18        look at that to see if there is anything in the final



         19        environmental impact statement that may need to be



         20        tweaked or, you know, edited in some way to reflect



         21        anything.



         22                 Usually, and historically, there is not, you



         23        know, vast differences between the original application



         24        and the application that follows adjudication, but every



         25        project is different.  And so after those processes are
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          1        completed.  The Council would have the final



          2        environmental impact statement completed, they would



          3        take some time to review that, and then there would be



          4        an opportunity to deliberate on the full record, which



          5        would be everything from the adjudicative proceeding,



          6        the final environmental impact statement, and anything



          7        that came in through tribal government to government



          8        consultation.  And after that, a recommendation would be



          9        made to the Governor.



         10                 I am -- I am, you know, just very high level.



         11        There is a lot more to it.  But those are sort of the



         12        big highlights.



         13                      CHAIR DREW:  Other questions from Council



         14        Members?



         15                 Or, Ms. Kelly, does that answer your question?



         16                      MS. KELLY:  That did.  Thank you for that



         17        detail.



         18                      CHAIR DREW:  Is there a motion on the



         19        extension request?



         20                      MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.  I will



         21        move that the Council approve the extension request with



         22        the date of January 31, 2024.



         23                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         24                 Is there a second?



         25                      MR. SANDISON:  Derek Sandison.  Second.
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          1                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          2                 All those in favor, please -- any more



          3        discussion, I should say?  Is there any discussion about



          4        this item?  We have had a lot of information.  Do



          5        Council Members have comments?



          6                      MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey Brewster



          7        again.  Yeah, this is quite a project and quite a



          8        process that takes a lot of time and energy, and I



          9        appreciate all the information and all the hard work



         10        Staff has done.  And I think the extra time will



         11        definitely give us the opportunity to fully assess the



         12        project.



         13                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         14                 Mr. Young?



         15                      MR. YOUNG:  Would it be fair to say that



         16        irrespective of Scout's request, that EFSEC Staff would



         17        need more time to conduct the process to its conclusion?



         18                      CHAIR DREW:  So yes.  The issue is how our



         19        law is structured.



         20                 Ms. Bumpus, do you want to -- so it says that



         21        an extension is agreed to by the applicant and EFSEC.



         22        Is that correct, Ms. Bumpus?



         23                      MS. BUMPUS:  Correct.



         24                      CHAIR DREW:  And so in order to do that,



         25        the Staff and the applicant work together, the Staff
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          1        knowing all the pieces that need to come together, the



          2        applicant also understanding that, to put forward an



          3        extension request, which, although I know there are



          4        people who have a lot of concern about extension



          5        requests, are -- actually happen with most of our



          6        projects that are complex.



          7                 Because of the amount of review that this one



          8        takes, I believe that we very much need this extension,



          9        and yes, Mr. Young, because we need it for the



         10        completion of the EIS, we need it for the adjudication,



         11        we need it for the steps after adjudication, and for all



         12        of that to come together so that the Council has time to



         13        deliberate before we make a recommendation to the



         14        Governor.  So yes, for all of those reasons.



         15                      MR. YOUNG:  Thank you.



         16                      MS. KELLY:  Chair, this is Kate Kelly.



         17                      CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead, Ms. Kelly.  Yeah.



         18                      MS. KELLY:  In reading that RCW which is



         19        cited in the -- Scout's letter, I -- you know, it works



         20        in the favor of the Council -- it seems to work in the



         21        favor of the Council to agree -- mutually agree to this



         22        extension with this applicant, just as a matter of due



         23        diligence, and -- and again, and also the complexity of



         24        the project.



         25                 I will just say that with regard to public
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          1        comment that may have been or -- or attempted to be



          2        submitted on this, I -- it's just -- it's just so



          3        terribly important that we have an opportunity to hear



          4        from the public, so, as this project goes through the



          5        process, and I know there is processes for that, but



          6        just want to make the point that that's an important



          7        role for us as Council Members, is, to be part of that



          8        dialog with community and others who have an interest in



          9        this, so you'd hope that we can continue that.



         10                 Another point is, on the subject of the



         11        schedule and the steps that Sonia just went through,



         12        I -- the more communication we can get as Council



         13        Members on what the schedule -- what we should be



         14        anticipating and what work -- you know, review processes



         15        will be upcoming would be very helpful for us as



         16        part-time Council Members and real-time State employees,



         17        so thank you for that.



         18                      CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  And as -- this is truly



         19        an administrative allowance as long as it's -- you know,



         20        we do take public comment on it.  We have a parallel



         21        process.  That extending the time frame for the project



         22        doesn't rule on the adjudication.  The adjudication



         23        is -- we have Judge Adam Torem who will be answering on



         24        behalf of the Council that -- those schedules, requests,



         25        and we can provide you with more information on that, as
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          1        well.  So.  I think that is part of the confusion, if



          2        you will, for the subject of today's meeting since this



          3        is about the extension of the project, it is not about



          4        the adjudication.



          5                 Are there more comments by Council Members?



          6                 Hearing none, all those in favor of approving



          7        the extension request, please say "aye."



          8                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



          9                      CHAIR DREW:  All those opposed?



         10                 Motion carries.



         11                 Thank you.  Thank you for the robust



         12        discussion.



         13                 Moving on to the Badger Mountain Solar Energy



         14        Project update.



         15                      MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and



         16        good afternoon, Council Members.  For the record, this



         17        is Joanne Snarski.



         18                 On June 19, 2023, we received responses to our



         19        third data request and also an update to the Badger



         20        Mountain grass pellet survey from the springs field



         21        work.  The applicant has also submitted a revised draft



         22        of the cultural resources survey which is currently



         23        under review by our contracted agencies and



         24        participating tribal nations.  We anticipate their



         25        feedback by the second week of July.  The information
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          1        provided in response to these data requests shall be



          2        used to support the development of the draft



          3        environmental impact statement that is currently



          4        in-progress.



          5                 Are there any questions?



          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions?



          7                 Hearing none, thank you.



          8                 Moving on to -- I turned my mic off.  Okay.



          9                 Moving on to the Wautoma Solar Project update;



         10        Mr. Caputo.



         11                      MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and



         12        Council Members.  This one should be pretty



         13        straightforward.



         14                 On June 1st of this year, the Council received



         15        a request for a five-month extension of the application



         16        review date.  As you will recall, on June 9th, at a



         17        special Council meeting, the Council granted this



         18        request.  The applicant is performing additional culture



         19        resource field surveys as requested by EFSEC Staff in



         20        order to complete our SEPA threshold determination.



         21                 I am available for questions.



         22                      CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?



         23                 Thank you.



         24                 Moving on to the Hop Hill Solar Project update;



         25        Mr. Barnes.
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          1                      MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew, and



          2        Council Members.  For the record, this is John Barnes,



          3        EFSEC Staff, for the Hop Hill application update for



          4        May.



          5                 We received additional materials from Brett



          6        Knight, the applicant, a revised cultural resource



          7        report which is being reviewed by Council Staff in



          8        coordination with the Washington Department of



          9        Archaeological and Historic Preservation.  We have also



         10        received updated project production information from the



         11        applicant.  These revisions include clarifications to



         12        the MWDC generating capacity and percentage of the AC



         13        capacity factor.  This updated information can be found



         14        on the Hop Hill Project page on the EFSEC website.



         15                 We are continuing to coordinate and review the



         16        application with our contractor, contracted agencies,



         17        and tribal governments.



         18                 Are there any -- or, there are no updates to



         19        report on.  No further updates to report on.



         20                 Are there any questions?



         21                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions for



         22        Mr. Barnes?



         23                 Thank you for your update.



         24                 Moving on to the Carriger Solar Project update;



         25        Ms. Snarski.
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          1                      MS. SNARSKI:  Thanks again, Chair Drew.



          2        Again, this is Joanne Snarski.



          3                 As you will recall, on June 9, 2023, the



          4        Council held a special meeting and voted to extend the



          5        time line for a decision on whether or not to grant



          6        expedited review.  Extension extends that decision



          7        through August 17, 2023.



          8                 On June 16, 2023, we received responses to our



          9        first data request for supplemental information on the



         10        proposed Carriger Solar Facility.  The information we



         11        received is assisting us in completing our State



         12        Environmental Policy Act threshold determination for



         13        this project.



         14                 Following the May 16th land use hearing for the



         15        proposed facility, Staff supported the development of



         16        the legal brief on the land use consistency the Council



         17        has received from our Assistant Attorney General, Jon



         18        Thompson.  The legal brief is intended to provide



         19        Council Members legal context for your discussion on the



         20        project's consistency with local, County, and regional



         21        land use ordinances and codes for the forthcoming land



         22        use consistency determination.



         23                 At this time, EFSEC Staff would like to request



         24        that the Council direct Staff coordinate with the



         25        Administrative Law Judge to prepare a land use
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          1        consistency order to then be brought to the Council for



          2        deliberation and potentially for Council action at the



          3        August Council meeting.



          4                 Are there any questions?



          5                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions?



          6                 Council Members, so the process for this is



          7        that we would ask the Staff to work with the



          8        Administrative Law Judge to prepare a land use



          9        consistency order.  I believe we are expecting to get



         10        that before the August meeting.  We will ask for public



         11        comment about land use consistency.  We have already had



         12        a hearing on land use consistency, but we will take



         13        additional written comments before that meeting, and



         14        then we will have those comments from the public.  The



         15        order will be shared with the Council Members to review



         16        before the meeting, and then we would make a decision on



         17        the land use consistency order.



         18                 Are there questions about that?



         19                      MR. CHILES:  Chair Drew, this is Matt



         20        Chiles.  So we are not voting on the consistency at this



         21        point; it won't be until August, if I am reading things



         22        correctly?



         23                      CHAIR DREW:  Correct.  What we would be



         24        doing at this point would be directing the Staff to work



         25        with the Administrative Law Judge to prepare that
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          1        consistency order.



          2                 So what we are saying is, is the Staff



          3        recommending that they work with the Administrative Law



          4        Judge to prepare a land use consistency order?



          5        Ms. Snarski?



          6                      MS. SNARSKI:  Yes.  That's correct.



          7                      CHAIR DREW:  But we are not deciding that



          8        until the August meeting, but we are asking for the



          9        order to be drawn-up and drafted.



         10                 Does that answer your question?  And it would



         11        be for consistency, Mr. Chiles.



         12                      MR. CHILES:  Yes, that answers my



         13        question, I believe.  So basically, we are asking for



         14        the Staff to draw something so we are ready for August,



         15        correct?



         16                      CHAIR DREW:  And we are asking for that to



         17        be an order of consistency, land use consistency.  Okay?



         18                      MR. CHILES:  Okay.  I have some things



         19        where I do not believe it's consistent.  Does that need



         20        to wait until August, or should I be in discussions with



         21        the Staff at this point?  I have read the Attorney



         22        General's report, and there are a couple things that I



         23        do not believe they are interpreting properly.  So if



         24        the Staff's report is going to be to basically do what



         25        the Attorney General said, then I am not going to be
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          1        voting for it in August.  So that's my knowledge at this



          2        point, although obviously today is not the voting point.



          3        So --



          4                      CHAIR DREW:  Correct.



          5                      MR. CHILES:  -- my question is, do my



          6        concerns with -- would now be a good time for me to be



          7        directing those concerns to the Staff or the



          8        Administrative Law Judge or should I be waiting until



          9        the August when we have discussion on that?



         10                      CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  I see our -- one of



         11        our Assistant AGs, Jenna Slocum, will comment on that.



         12                 Go ahead.



         13                      MS. SLOCUM:  Hi.  I worked with Jon in



         14        preparing this memo.  And I wanted to say that, first, I



         15        mean, I definitely want to hear from ALJ Larripa on this



         16        and how he sees this process, but from our side, we



         17        would very much like to have your input now, Council



         18        Member Chiles.  It would be very helpful for us in



         19        preparing this, working with Staff, working with the



         20        ALJ, and working through this.  I think, for the vote,



         21        you know, that will come at the August time line, but



         22        getting this -- this hashed out now would be very



         23        important.



         24                      MR. CHILES:  Thank you.  By "now," do you



         25        mean you want the input right now at the meeting or
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          1        should I contact you later in the week?



          2                      MS. SLOCUM:  Right.  I meant later in the



          3        week.  I think we are going to be working on this for



          4        the next month, two months, something like that, so we



          5        will have plenty of time, but right.  I mean, if you



          6        have questions right now, we can go into it.  It might



          7        be helpful with the Council there.  Or you could reach



          8        out to us separately; that would be great.  Thank you.



          9                      MR. CHILES:  I think it will be just fine



         10        for me to reach out to you separately.



         11                      MS. SLOCUM:  Okay.



         12                      MR. CHILES:  So I will do that.  Thank you



         13        very much.



         14                      MS. SLOCUM:  Yeah.  Thank you.



         15                      CHAIR DREW:  If any Council Members do



         16        have questions about the memo from the Attorney General,



         17        please reach out to either Ms. Slocum or Mr. Thompson,



         18        and they can answer your questions; provide additional



         19        information.  And we will have robust conversation about



         20        that.  You will get the land use consistency order



         21        before the meeting to review.  So that will be coming



         22        later.



         23                 Are there additional questions?



         24                 Okay.  All those in favor of -- oh, wait.  I



         25        need a motion.
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          1                 Okay.  Is there a motion to direct Staff to



          2        coordinate with our Administrative Law Judge and Staff



          3        to coordinate -- which includes our Attorney General's



          4        Staff to coordinate with the Administrative Law Judge,



          5        to prepare a land use consistency order to be brought to



          6        the Council for deliberation and potentially for Council



          7        action at the August Council meeting.



          8                      MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.



          9                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         10                 A second?



         11                      MR. LEVITT:  Eli Levitt.  Second.



         12                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



         13                 Any further discussion?



         14                      MS. KELLY:  Chair, this is Kate Kelly.



         15        And I have read the memo a couple times, and I -- the --



         16        there -- the possibility exists that we can find land



         17        use consistency with some of the -- part of the site and



         18        not with -- because there is three different zones



         19        implicated.



         20                      CHAIR DREW:  Yes.



         21                      MS. KELLY:  Is that correct?  Is there --



         22        maybe that's something I should follow-up with the Staff



         23        after, but.



         24                      CHAIR DREW:  I think it would be good to



         25        follow-up because the Council has precedent on what
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          1        consistency is.



          2                 Ms. Slocum, would you like to comment on what



          3        our determination of consistency is based on?



          4                      MS. SLOCUM:  Sure.



          5                 So we look at past precedents, or past cases,



          6        past decisions that the Council has issued.  And in this



          7        case, there is a Columbia Solar, is the name of the



          8        case, where they explained the test for whether or not



          9        it's consistent.  So in this memo, what we were looking



         10        at was whether or not this specific case in Klickitat



         11        County fit with the tests previously established, so



         12        whether, at the time of application, the facility was



         13        consistent/in compliance with the land use plans and



         14        zoning ordinances, and then specifically at what



         15        constitutes land use plans and zoning ordinances, and



         16        then the -- go through -- and then the test being



         17        whether the pertinent local land use provisions



         18        expressly prohibit, or, by operation, clearly,



         19        convincingly, and unequivocally prohibit this type of



         20        use, so if it can be permitted through some type of



         21        separate conditional use permit or provision or the



         22        moratorium is only a short-term suspension rather than



         23        an outright prohibition.



         24                 According to the Council's precedent, that



         25        would mean that it's still consistent with land use.
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          1        And I think, in this case, we have got, you're right,



          2        three overlapping zones.  I think two of them are



          3        overlapping, and then all of it is within the energy



          4        overlay zone.  So you have got these two -- you have got



          5        the extensive agriculture and the general rural zone,



          6        and then about two-thirds of it also falls within the



          7        energy overlay zone.  So we looked at each three of --



          8        each of those separately and tried to see how those



          9        would fit under the test.  And none of them, as far as



         10        we could tell, have an outright prohibition, so.  I



         11        mean, I definitely want to hear from Council Member



         12        Chiles on how he would interpret this, but as far as we



         13        looked at this from precedent from the Council, this



         14        would fall within the previous decision in Columbia



         15        Solar for finding that it is consistent.



         16                      CHAIR DREW:  Does that answer your



         17        question, Ms. Kelly?



         18                      MS. KELLY:  Yes.  Thank you.



         19                 Thanks for that explanation, Jen.



         20                      MS. SLOCUM:  M-hmm.



         21                      CHAIR DREW:  Are there any other questions



         22        from Council Members?



         23                      MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey Brewster.



         24        So just to get this clear in my head, so.  With the



         25        precedent set prior and consistency doesn't necessarily
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          1        mean approved.  There is still a process for the



          2        conditional use permit coming; is that right?



          3                      MS. SLOCUM:  Yes.  Absolutely.  Yes.



          4        Right.



          5                      MS. BREWSTER:  Thanks.



          6                      CHAIR DREW:  Our consistency test has a



          7        threshold of, is it prohibited, and that's how the



          8        Council has made its decision prior to now.



          9                 Any other questions or comments?



         10                 Okay.  We have a motion in front of us.  All



         11        those in favor of directing the Staff to coordinate with



         12        the Administrative Law Judge to prepare a land use



         13        consistency order to be brought before the Council for



         14        deliberation and potential action at the August Council



         15        meeting, please say "aye."



         16                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



         17                      CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



         18                 Motion carries.  Thank you.



         19                 That concludes our agenda for today.  Thank



         20        you, all.  There were many complex issues before us.



         21        Or, not many, but a few.  I appreciate the conversation,



         22        the questions, and the comments.  And our business is



         23        concluded.  The meeting is adjourned.



         24                                (The meeting was adjourned at



         25                                 2:42 p.m.)
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